TOWN OF PAONIA

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA
PAO N IA TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2023 6:30 PM

C+QO«L+OR+A-D-0O

Public Participation: Must raise hand and be recognized by the Mayor, come to the podium and state your
name and the street on which you live. Time limit is 3 minutes, one time per item. Direct all comments to the
Mayor. No responses will be made by staff or Board during the meeting. No derogatory or demeaning
statements or public displays. Please be respectful.

Roll Call
Approval of Agenda
Announcements
Public Comment
Any topic not included on the agenda, 3-minute time limit.
Consent Agenda
1. October 24, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. Liquor License Renewal - 2023 -118 Blue Sage Center for the Arts Inc

Staff Reports

Actions & Presentations

Public comments must be related to the agenda item, 3-minute time limit.
1. Presentation about Safe Routes to Parks Grant - Hannah Stevens with Western Slope Conservation
Center
Public Hearing
Public Hearing to Consider acceptance of the Housing Needs Assessment
Consideration of Approval of Signing a Memorandum of Understanding between the Bureau of Land
Management and the Town of Paonia as a Participating Agency for the UFO RMPA/EIS.
Consideration of Approval to Apply for DOLA Planning Capacity Grant
Consideration of Approval for Change Orders from K&D Construction
Consideration of Termination of the Contract with Shumscoda Associates

Mayor & Trustee Reports

Trustee Stelter - Report from One Delta County Annual Meeting

Adjournment




AS ADOPTED BY: 2
TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 — Amended May 22, 2018

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE

Section 1. Schedule of Meetings. Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each
month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting.

Section 2. Officiating Officer. The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s
absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem. The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings.

Section 3. Time of Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on
the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor. The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading
the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce
whether a quorum is present. Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a
majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.

Section 4. Schedule of Business. If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which
shall be conducted in the following manner. Note that all provided times are estimated:

(a) Roll Call - (5 minutes)
(b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes)
(c) Announcements (5 minutes)
(d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes)
(e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes)
(f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes)
(g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes)
(1) Town Administrator’s Report
(2) Public Works Reports
(3) Police Report
(4) Treasurer Report

(h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes)
(i) New Business (45 minutes)

(j) Disbursements (15 minutes)

(K) Committee Reports (15 minutes)
(I) Adjournment

* This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment.

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor
without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.

Section 6. Conduct of Board Members. Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and
polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town. Board Members shall address
Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr.,
Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific. Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall
be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda. Making a motion, asking a question or making a
suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.

Section 7. Presentations to the Board. Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be
given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation. On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the
Mayor and Town Staff. After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions.

Section 8. Public Comment. After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open
the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the
agenda item. Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before
speaking. Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group
they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question. Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding
officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee. Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s)
under discussion. The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks.




Section 9. Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.

Section 10. Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in
the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted.

Il. CONSENT AGENDA

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a
Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent
Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.
Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action
by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained
and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited
to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor
licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner
errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda. Should any Trustee feel there is a material error
in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion.

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely
request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a
second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either
immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.

111. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Section 1. An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by
the Board, not at a work session of the Board. To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the
open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board
to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without
compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the event the Board plans to discuss more than
one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the
announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded. In order to go into
executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board.

Section 2. During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject
to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive
session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or
with individuals not participating in the session. The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a
majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session.

Section 3. Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take
any formal action decided upon during the executive session. If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or
whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on
these matters.

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT

Section 1. Deviations. The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such
deviation is necessary under the circumstances.
Section 2. Amendment. The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time.




Minutes
Reqular Town Board Meeting
Town of Paonia, Colorado
October 24, 2023

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS
Mayor calls meeting to order at 6:30PM
Roll Call

PRESENT

Mayor Mary Bachran

Mayor Pro-Tem Dave Knutson
Trustee Paige Smith

Trustee John Valentine
Trustee Rick Stelter

Trustee Kathy Swartz

ABSENT
Trustee Morgan Maclnnis

Approval of Agenda

Mayor Pro-Tem Knutson makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Smith, to accept approval of
agenda.

Motion carries unanimously.

Announcements

Mayor Pro-Tem Knutson announces a reminder of the Planning Commission meeting to be held
on November 1, 2023.

Mayor Bachran announces an opening on the Zoning Board of Appeals & Adjustments-
Accepting applications and letters of interest for a 3-year term seat, until November 10,
2023. Position will be appointed at the November 14th, 2023 meeting.

Public Comment

M. Heepke — Thanked the Town and Public Works for the successful Pickle Fest event held at
Apple Valley. He provides an update on the skate park work starting 10/25.

M. Nierenberger —Asking for trash & graffiti to be removed from town park.

OCTOBER 24, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1




Consent Agenda

Trustee Stelter makes a motion, seconded by Trustee Valentine, to approve the consent agenda.

Trustee Smith suggested clarification on page 10, Ms. Watson resigned from Zoning Board of
Adjustments since she’s been appointed to the Planning Commission.

Motion carries unanimously.

Staff Reports

Departmental Scorecard

Town Administrator Wynn updates the Board on progress made on projects, moving forward
with 2022 fiscal audit, signed contract for ‘Safe Pathways’, and leaf pickup schedules.

Housing Needs Assessment Update
Town Administrator Wynn updates board on project. The final document goes to the Planning
Commission on November 1st and they will make a recommendation to the Board at the next

regular meeting on November 14

Actions & Presentations

Presentation of the DRAFT 2024 Budget to the Board of Trustees

Town Administrator Wynn advises that on 10/15 the draft budget was completed, the timeline is
presented for review & edits of budget, and walks through an overview of what he has presented.

Trustee Stelter asks about dog licenses fees and feels amount of dogs are way more than
recorded and Administrator Wynn agrees that enforcement is needed.

Mayor Pro-Tem Knutson asks about the sidewalk fee expiring this year. Mayor Bachran
explains that was a mistake and it expires in December of 2024.

Town Administrator Wynn continues to go through budget line items.

Mayor Pro-Tem Knutson questions if the overtime numbers listed are based on last year and
Administrator Wynn answers no, that is to-date. As of September, used as a forecast.

Trustee Smith asks about the status of the Town’s agreement with Delta County about the
building inspector. Town Administrator Wynn explains that that Delta County is in the process
of interviewing.

Town Administrator Wynn proceeds to discuss rate increases and 20-year forecast.

OCTOBER 24, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2




Trustee Smith asks about any wage increases since they were not listed in the draft

budget. Town Administrator Wynn response that there are no salary increases planned for
2024. Maybe one additional person for Public Works is a possibly. Mayor Pro-Tem Knutson
speaks to the importance of being competitive in salary to retain talent. Administrator Wynn
asks for suggestions of where to cut within the budget to provide increases so everything
balances.

Public Comments:

M. Nierenberger speaks about her Mesa County Landfill experience where she was told by the
operator it was limited to locals of that town.

Disclosure of the Police Chief's Interest in Contract with the Town of Paonia

Town Attorney Cotton-Baez speaks to the disclosure of the Police Chief’s interest in a ‘contract’
since he and his wife have purchased the Paonia Car Wash. Police vehicles make up about 8-9%
of the car wash business. He doesn’t see a conflict but felt a disclosure to the Board was
warranted. The car wash bills the town monthly, but he sees exception with state of ethics since
there is no other car wash in town to service as competition. The Town Attorney’s opinion is that
the Town can continue to use the car wash. The Board has right to terminate the contract at any
time.

Public comments:

C. Patterson — wonders how much is spent on car wash.

Board Discussion:

Trustee Stelter states it doesn’t make sense to travel to another town to use a car wash and wait
in line since car wash in the other town is busy. We are not spending a lot of money, then there’s
the added expense of fuel to drive to another town, it’s only one in town. He suggests continues
usage.

Town Administrator Wynn explains that it is not only vehicles washed, but also heavy
equipment by Public Works. And given convenient location next to the shop, it can become a
formalized agreement with the town.

Mayor Pro-Tem Knutson feels uncomfortable proceeding unless the town has a written contract
with the car was and suggests Chief Laiminger bring something to the Board. Town Attorney

Cotton-Baez states a written contract is what is preferred.

Trustee Swartz asks how much the Town spends per year at the car wash. Town Administrator
Wynn responds that $734 to be paid is forecast for 2023.

OCTOBER 24, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3




Mayor Bachran states that a letter formalizing an agreement would be appropriate instead of a
contract. The Mayor agrees that driving trucks/equipment to another town is a big difference
compared to in-town in regard to fuel costs.

Mavyor & Trustee Reports

None

Adjournment

Mayor Bachran adjourns the meeting at 8:24PM

Ruben Santiago, Deputy Clerk Mary Bachran, Mayor

OCTOBER 24, 2023 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES




CP OALO N IA ;ngévDogFP?é)l?;?EES MEETING

ARl STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM: Blue Sage Liquor License Renewal
SUBMITTED BY: Samira Vetter, Town Clerk
DATE: November 14th, 2023
BACKGROUND: e All forms and fees have been turned into the Clerk's office.

e The Police Department has no issues or concerns with the renewal.

e Public works has no issues or concerns with the renewal.

e The Clerk's Office has no issues or conerns with the renewal.
BUDGET: $175 in Revenue

All legal criteria has been met for the license renewal to proceed.

RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENT:




< « f ™ oy A
DO (S PE APPLICANT ID: 221906
DR 8400 (02/22/23) 1 L 4~ : Fees Diie 9
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liguor Enforcement Division
§!IEIII-II to Local | iQEDﬁiﬂQ E!IIhQ[m! Renewal Fee 433.75
Storage Permit $100 X 3
Sidewalk Service Area $75.00 3 7 e
BLUE SAGE CENTER Additional Optional Premise Hotel & i
PO BOX 700 Restaurant $100 X
Paonia CO 81428-0700 Related Facility - Campus Liquor
Complex $160.00 per facility I
Amount Due/Paid AN I~T
oun S112% .13
Make check payable to: Colorada Department of

Revenue. The State may convert your check to a ane-
time electronic banking transaction. Your bank account
may be debited as early as the same day received by the
State. If converted, your check will not be returned. If your
check is rejected due to insufficient or uncollected funds,
the Department may collect the payment amount directly
from your banking account electronically.

Coiorado Beer and Wine License Renewal Application

Please verify & update all information below Return to city or county licensing authority by due date
Licensee Name Doing Business As Name (DBA)
BLUE SAGE CENTER FOR THE ARTS INC BLUE SAGE CENTER
Liquor License # License Type
41-74390-0000 Arts License (city)
Sales Tax License Number Expiration Date Due Date
41743900000 12/10/2023 10/26/2023
Business Address Phane Number
228 GRAND AVENUE Pacnia CO 81428 9705277243
Mailing Address Email

PO BOX 700 Paonia CO 81428-0700

Operating Manager Date of Birth | Home Address Phone Number

1. Do you have legal possession of the premises at the streetaddress above? [AYes [ ] No
Are the premises owned or rented? [E}/Owned L] Rented* *“If rented, expiration date oflease

2. Are you renewing a storage permit, additional optional premiseg, sidewalk service area, or related facility? If yes, please see the
table in upper right hand corner and include allfees due. [\ f Yes [ | No

3a. Are you renewing a takeout and/or delivery pepmit? (Note: must hold a qualifying license type and be authorized for takeout and/or
delivery license privileges) [ ] Yes M

3b. If so, which are you renewing? [ | Delivery [ ] Takeout [ Both Takeout and Delivery

4a. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant, including its manager, partners, officer, directors, stockholders,
members (LLC), managing members (LLC), or any other person with a 10% or greater financial interest in the applicant, been
found in final order of a tax agency to be delinquent in the payment of any state or local taxes, penalties, or interest related to a
business? [ ] Yes [DAQ%

4b. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant, including its manager, partners, officer, directors, stockholders,
members (LLC), managing members (LLC), or any other person with a 10% or greater finangial interest in the applicant failed to
pay any fees or surcharges imposed pursuant to section44-3-503, C.R.S.? [ ] Yes M

5. Since the date of filing of the last application, has there been any change in financial interest (new notes, loans, owners, etc.) or
organizational structure (addition or deletion of officers, directors, managing members or general partners)? If yes, explain in detail
and attach a listing of all liquor businesses in which these new lenders, owners (other than licensed financial institutions), officers,
directors, managing members, or general partners are materially interested. [ ] Yes @’I(oce

6. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners\_o).enders (other
than licensed financial institutions) been convicted of a crime? If yes, attach a detailed explanation. [ | Yes 7 No




—

APPLICANT 1D; 2219086

DR 8400 (02/22/23) Fees Due : 10
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ’
Liquor Enforcement [hvision o !
! Renewal Fee : 433.7%
Storage Permil 100X __ $
Sidewalk Service Area 575 00 $
Additional Opticnal Premise Hotel &

BLUE SAGE CENTER pt "
PO BOX 700 Restaurant sto0x__ | ]

. o Related Facility - Campus Liguor ;

Paonia CO 81428-0700 Complex $160,00 per facility $

Amount Due/Paid 8
Make check payable to: Colorado  Deparimeni of

Revenue. The Siate may conveit your check fo a one-
time electronic banking transaction. Your bank account
may be debiled as early as the same day received by the
Siate. i converted, your check wilf not be returned, [fyour
check is rejected due io insufficient or uncollected funds,
the Depariment may collect the payment amount directly
fram your banking account electronicatly.

Colorado Beer and Wine License Renewal Application

Please verify & update all information helow Return to city or county licensing authority by due date
Licensee Name Doing Business As Name (DBA)
BLUE SAGE CENTER FOR THE ARTS INC | BLUE SAGE CENTER
Liquor License # License Type T
41-74390-0000 Arts License (city)
Bales Tax License Mumber | ! Expirafidr‘;hﬁgté T Due Date
41743900000 (1211002023 10/26/2023
Businass Address - Phone Number k
228 GRAND AVENUE Paonia CO 81428 9705277243
Malling Address tEmail
PO BOX 700 Paonia CO 81428-0700 ’
Operating Manager Date of Bith | MHomes Address ‘ Fhone Number

1. Da you have legai possession of the premises at tha street address above? Yes ] No
Are the premises owned or rented? [Q"(’ﬁwned {] Renteg* *If rented, expiration date oflease

2. Are you renewing a storage permit, additional optional premise;;,, sidewalk service area, or related facility? If yes, please see the
tabie in upper right hand corner and include allfees due. 34 Yes [ No

3a. Are you renewing a takeout andfor delivery permit? (Note: must hoid a qualifying licerse type and be authorized for takeout and/or

TV deliverylicense privileges) [} Yes  TErNo '

3b. If s0, which are you renewing? | Delivery "' Takeout . . Both Takeout and Delivery

4a. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant. including its manager. partners. officer, directors, stockholders,
members {L.1.C), managing members (LLC). or any other persen with a 10% or greater financial interast in the applicant, been
found in final order of a tax agency to be delinguent in the payment of any slate or local taxes, penalties. or interest related to a
business? [ ) Yes @}No

4b. Since the date of filing of the last application. has the applicant. including ils manager, pariners, officer, directors, stockholders,
members (LL.C), managing members (LLC}, or any other person with 2 10% or graater financial interest in the applicant failed to

pay any fees or surcharges impesed pursuant o section44-3-503, CR.S.? " Yes it4No

5. Since the date of filing of the last application, has there been any change in financial interest (new notes, loans, ownars, etc.) or
arganizational structure (addition or deletion of officers, directors. managing members or general partners}? If yes, explain in detail
and attach a listing of all liquor businesses in which these new lenders, owners {other than ligensed financia institutions), officers,
directors, managing members, or general pariners are materially interested. | Yes A No

8. Since the date of filing of the last application. has the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners orlenders (other
than licensed financial institutions) been convicted of a crime? if yes, aitach a detailed explanation, |1 ves &I'No




DR 8400 (02/22/23)

11

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Liquor Enforcement Division APPLICANT ID; 221906

7. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners or lenders (other
than licensed financial institutions) been denied an alcehol beverage license. had an alcohol beverage license suspended or
revoked, or had interast in any entity that had an alcohol beverage licanse denied. suspended or revoked? If yes, attach a detailed

explanation. [_]Yes I':Q/Nci'

8. Does the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners or lenders (cther than licensed financial institutions) have a
direct or indirect interast in any other Colorado liquer license, including loans to or from any licensee of interest in a loan to any

licensee? If yes, attach adetailed explanation. _|Yes  tNo

Affirmation & Consent
| deciare under penaity of perjury in the second degree that this application and alt attachments are true, correct and complete to the

best of my knowledge.

Type m Name of Applicant/Authorized Agent of Busipess Eﬁe ' /“
y -~ /s . e e o
DA TEY Y, e |/

&
%

o

Date

“'sighature O/ ~ n ite s
r'—///{ﬂ A //W,a’»;;g« Lo ot g(‘/ 255 / ot 5
e Approval of City%r County Licensing Authority r

The foregoing application has been examined and the premises, business conducted and character,of the applicant are satisfactory, and
we do hereby report that such license, if granted, will comply with the provisions of Title 44, Articles 4 and 3, C.R.S., and Liquor Rules,

Therefore this application is approved.

Local Licensing Autherity For Date

Tite Attest

Signature




DR 8495 (07/23/1¢) . 12
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Liquor Enforcement Division

Tax Check Authcrization, Waiver,
and Request to Release information

Q&&/\"ﬂ /i/&{ }1,£,vf”“ am 3|gn|ng this Tax Cjueck Authorlzation aiver and Request to Release
Informatlon (hereinafter “Waiver”) onbehaif of T %é g )_%Zf;g(the ‘Applicant/Licensee”)
to permit the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or Ioca taxmg authority to release information and
documentation that may otherwise be confidential, as provided below. If | am signing this Waiver for someone other than
myself, including on behalf of a business entity, | certify that | have the autharity io execute this Waiver on behalf of the
Appiicant/Licensee.

The Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Revenue is the State Licensing Authority, and oversees the
Calorado Liquor Enforcement Division as his or her agents, clerks, and employeas. The infofmation and documentation
obtained pursuant to this Waiver may be used in connection with the Applicant/Licensee’s liguor license application and
ongoing licensure by the state and local licensing authorities. The Colorado Liquor Code, section 44-3-101. et seq.
{"Liguor Code”), and the Colorado Liguor Rules, 1 CCR 203-2 ("Liquor Rules™), require compliance with certain tax
obligations, and set forth the investigative, disciplinary and licensure actions the state and local licensing authorities may
take for violations of the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules, including failure to meet tax reporting and paymentobligations.

The Waiver is made pursuant to section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., and any other law, regulation, resolution or ordinance
concerning the confidentiality of tax information. or any document. report or return filed in connection with state cr local
taxes. This Waiver shall be valid until the expiration or revocation of a license, or until both the state and local licensing
authorities take final action to approve or deny any application(s) for the renewal of the license, whichever is later,
Applicant/Licensee agrees to execute a new waiver for each subsequent icensing period in connection with the renewal
of any license, if requested.

By signing below, Applicant/Licensee requests that the Colorado Depariment of Revenue and any other state or local
taxing authority or agency in the possession of tax documents or information, release information and documentation to
the Colorade Liguor Enfercement Division, and is duly authorized employees, to act as the Applicant’s/lLicensee’s duly
authorized representative under section 39-21-113(4), C.R S., solely to allow the state and local licensing authorities, and
their duly authorized employees, to investigate compliance with the Liguor Code and Liguor Rules. Applicant/Licensee
authorizes the state and focal licensing authorities. their duly autherized employees, and their legal representatives, to

. use the information and documentation obfained using this Waiver in any administrative or judicial action regarding the
application or license.

Name (InlelduaI/Busmess " . i Social Security Number/Tax identification Number
/ J/é/ £ :’(-f S\f ( et S },/ L7 /'”7»'; L(wfus ,f"j:'i & f T
Address o :
f?fZ b /"“‘{WY / ? e | 4/ /¢ / . i ‘AV’PC, 7{ AL
City [ State - Zp . iy
fLhpnia (& SCYAS

Homea Phane Number . BusinessA\Work F‘hone Number )

575 (D G o K27 TAw3

Printed namre of person signjng on oehalf of the Applicant/Licenses

21 Z!K.a &

e {Signature authorizing the disclosure of confidential tax information) Dats signed

E]ﬁb%v}f Zg"ﬁ.w S(/ / \};5? / %,‘3
| Privacy Act Statement

Providing your Social Security Number is voluntary and no right, benefit or privilege provided by law will be denied as a
result of refusal to disclose it. § 7 of Privacy Act, 5 USCS § £52a (note).

4



THE FACE OF THIS'DOCUMENT HAS A COLORED BACKGROUND ON WHITE PAPER AND ORIGINAL DOCUMENT SECURITY SCREEN ON BACK WITH PADLOCK SECURITY IGON,

928 GRAND AVE: -~
DO B0 128 GRAND AVE. (BOX 587)". " -

UNITEDBUSINESSBANK -~ *. .= {2
PAGNIA, CO 81428 . - : 7. oRA o __ v L
S s e PAONIALCO 81428 102802023

" PHONE 870:527-4122.

PAYTOTHE  ~ _ . - oo o
. ORDER OF ' TOWﬂ of Papnla e

' “One Hundred Seventy-Five ang 00/ 100w +++sesvsssersmsststanmunsssbiaridisrimseisniammsatsinsissosnammmismrsstes (0| ane

S _Towr_f- of Paonia.
RS PO'BOXIZ}_GO..-:‘-T : ST
- Paonia, GO 81428 .

[D . Setuity features ifciuded. Detalls on back, |

- Memo

PDAEBTER H12LALATAMG 1000530398

Blue Sage Center for the Arts_' . S
Town of Paonia © . 10/25/2023
: C ' iiqour : .

United Business Bank = o L S 7500




14

TOWN OF PAONIA
REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON
PO Box 460

Paonia, CO 81428
970/527-4101
Paonia@townofpaonia.co

Here are things you need to know:

Formal Board agenda items should be matters of substance for the Board to consider. Examples
include: Presentations to the Board seeking support or wishing to inform the Board of plans
that affect the Town, Committees presenting their goals and accomplishments, Items that need
Board approval to proceed.

Submitting an agenda request does not guarantee placement on an agenda. The Mayor will
determine if this is an appropriate item for consideration on the Board of Trustees’ formal
agenda.

Should this request be denied, the requester may present their item in writing to the Board
under correspondence received or by making a verbal comment within the established time
limit at the beginning of a regular meeting.

Please complete the following information and return this form no later than Tuesday, two
weeks prior to the Board meeting to the Town Hall at 214 Grand Avenue. If the regular meeting
is on the Tuesday the 28, the request must be received before 5pm on Tuesday the 14,

If your issue is placed on the agenda, be aware that your presentation is limited to 5 minutes.

Office hours are Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
Regular Board meetings are scheduled for the second and fourth Tuesdays of each month.

Subject: Up to 6 words (example: Town P. rk Potholes, Open Meetings, etc.)
z /& J ﬂ

Name of Requester or Presenter: ,(gr] é/dw /ﬂr,/%l//"wf /fgﬁlfﬂé %W\f
Representing: (Group or Agency name, or Self) égi iﬁ L / S{édﬂ (@/7&677/71

Date of submittal: /0/20/20 2_2

Date of Requested Board Meeting: (Insert Board Meeting date) / / / / L/ / 23

SpecrflcrEQUestzjﬂﬁWj%ﬁf# /‘MW/—%
COO7 gremd! — 7ec S g5 s pmmce

/W%MWW% o7 ke vouter 75 /Gl
/ Mpe %a/éy ey,




15

Describe the problem that requires resolution* or the topic(s) to be presented:

*The Problem
* What is the problem that needs to be addressed?

* Please start with defining the problem, not describing the solution.
* Please explain briefly why it is essential that the Town address this

problem,
* This section should be no more than 4-5 sentences long.

a7y, ;7//%/ R
(’/‘ﬂ% rrpe ¥ s WQ/M” %//M féc/fmr/

ﬂ/mw//% W/mm/m@

/ &b/ﬁﬂw Va 5}/ vear )

Recommendation {Please state your recommendation here, along with the main points
needed for approval of your request, at most 50 words.) Example: The Paonia Association
recommends the Board passan ordinance preventing elk from standing in the road.

/(///72//5 | /W@(ﬁ /;a/// Wr/é’* | 7«9

) rzf;/ﬁwé/ Tt &2 7 7o /ﬁ ~ 20 fad ¢
249

What staff member have you spoken to about this? Please summarlze your discussion:

ST2lns — mgmined Y tomee , Lest o
[Wc/ o P h W apiact




Contact information:

Nappe:
ﬁo‘ﬁ /&MPhysica! Address:

Mailing Address:

E-mail:
Daytime Phone:
%
a )1y

16

Office Use Only:
i Received:
Approved for Agenda:
Board Meeting Date:




«ReA+D-

PAONIA

TOWN OF PAONIA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
Sl STAFF REPORT

17

AGENDA ITEM:

Agenda ltem #2 - Public Hearing to Consider Acceptance of
Housing Needs Assessment

SUBMITTED BY:

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

DATE:

11/12/2023

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission has recommended Approval of the
Housing Needs Assessment. The first step to address affordable
housing shortages in Paonia is to complete the Housing Needs
Assessment. The process began at the end of April, 2023 and
included numerous stakeholder meetings and public outreach
sessions. The Paonia Planning Commission held a public hearing
on the Housing Needs Assessment on November 1, 2023 and
unanimously recommended acceptance of the HNA to the Paonia
Board of Trustees. This HNA will become an element within the
DRAFT of the Paonia Master Plan. This document will assist the
Board, the Commission and staff in addressing the affordable
housing crisis in Paonia. The action at this meeting is to accept the
HNA and action plan and officially recommend that it become an
element for inclusion within the DRAFT of the Paonia Master Plan.

BUDGET:

Original Contract: $70,150; Contract Amendment to include Add-ons: $78,910.
Reimbursable Expenses to DOLA: $59,850; Amount requested from DOLA to
date: $32,348.25; Reimbursable Balance Remaining: $27,501.75

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff Recommends Approval of accepting the Housing Needs Assessment
and requiring its inclusion in the DRAFT of the Paonia Master Plan.
RECOMMENDED MOTION: | move to approve the acceptance of the
Housing Needs Assessment and Action Plan and require its inclusion in the
Draft of the Paonia Master Plan.

ATTACHMENT:

Attachment 1: 2023.11.14 Paonia HNA-HAP_ForBoard
Attachment 2: 20231012 BoT Public Hearing Notice
Attachment 3: Proof BoT PH




---------------

Housing Needs
Assessment &

Housing Action Plan

Town of Paonia
November 2023




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The consulting team appreciates the opportunity to work with the Town of Paonia—residents,
employers, organizations, and Town staff—who are dedicated to obtaining a better understanding of
Paonia’s housing issues and needs and working toward solutions. We are thankful for everyone who
gave their time, assistance, knowledge, and expertise during this process. The information in this report
relied on many people who participated in their individual and professional capacities. It is a document
informed by the community and for the community.

A special thank you goes to the members of the housing task force who were instrumental in connecting
us with the community and assisting us throughout the process.

Housing Task Force

Alicia Michelsen, The Learning Council
Bobby Reedy, Reedy’s Service

Dave Knutson, Town Trustee

Gia Fanelli, Paonia Laundromat

Jenica Schevene, Educator

Linda McCone, VP of Senior Center

Lyn Howe, Planning Commissioner

Marissa Mommaerts, Comprehensive Plan Team and Fertile Edge Community Land Trust
Mary Difranco, North Fork Trailer & RV Park
Molly Wheelock, Comprehensive Plan Team
Paige Smith, Town Trustee

Patti Kaech, Realtor, Paonia Realty

Town Trustees

Mary Bachran, Mayor

Dave Knutson, Mayor Pro Tem
Morgan Maclnnis

Paige Smith

Rick Stelter

Kathy Swartz

John Valentine

Consulting Team

URBAN

—continuum—

AYRES

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Pagei

19




DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS

20

Affordable Housing

As used in this report, housing is affordable if the monthly payment (rent or
mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to or less than 30% of gross household
income (before taxes).

AMI

The Area Median Income is published annually by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. In Colorado, these figures are published
annually by the Colorado Housing Finance Authority. They are used to set
income and rent limits for affordable housing programs statutorily linked to
HUD income limits (e.g., low-income housing tax credit rentals).

ACS

The American Community Survey is part of the Decennial Census Program of
the U.S. Census. The survey was fully implemented in 2005, replacing the
decennial census long form. Because it is based on a sample of responses, its
use in smaller areas (under 65,000 persons) is best suited for monitoring
general changes over time rather than for precise estimates due to margins
of error.

ADU

An accessory dwelling unit is a dwelling unit that is clearly incidental and
subordinate to a primary dwelling unit and located on the same property.

Average Household
Size

This refers to the number of persons living in a housing unit, including all
adults and children.

Catch-up Needs

The number of housing units currently needed to house workers commuting
to Town each day for work and those filling open jobs.

CHFA

The Colorado Housing and Finance Authority invests in affordable housing
and community development. CHFA administers the Low Income Housing Tax
Credit and provides mortgage funding, among other funding and assistance.

Cost Burdened

When housing costs exceed 30% of a household’s gross (pretax) income.
Housing costs include rent or mortgage and may or may not include utilities,
homeowner association fees, transportation, or other necessary costs
depending upon its application.

COVID-19/COVID

Coronavirus disease 2019, which caused a global pandemic starting in March
2020 and resulted in extensive local public health precautions.

Deed
Restricted/Restriction

A deed is a legal document that defines who owns a particular property. Deed
restrictions are stipulations written into a property’s deed or recorded as a
restrictive covenant. Such restrictions can be varied. Throughout this report,
use of the terms deed-restricted housing or a deed restriction(s) is generally
in reference to written rules that limit the amount a property can be sold or
rented for, or that restricts who it can be rented or sold to based on
household income, the location of the tenant/future owner’s employment,
etc.

DOH

The Division of Housing is within the Colorado Department of Local Affairs. It
partners with local communities to create housing opportunities for
Coloradans who face the greatest challenges to accessing affordable, safe,
and secure homes. DOH supports projects ranging from homelessness
prevention to homeownership.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page ii




21

DOLA

The Colorado Department of Local Affairs serves as the primary interface
between the State and local communities. The department provides financial
support to local communities and professional and technical services to
community leaders in the areas of governance, housing, and property tax
administration.

ESRI

Environmental Systems Research Institute is a supplier of geographic
information system software, web GIS, and geodatabase management
applications.

HISTA

A custom four-way cross tabulation of ACS household data prepared
specifically for Ribbon Demographics, LLC for housing market analysis.

HOA

A Homeowners Association is typically part of condominium developments.

HUD

Housing and Urban Development is the federal agency providing funding and
regulations for low-income housing.

Keep-up Needs

The number of units needed to keep up with future demand for housing
through 2028 based on projected job growth and backfilling jobs that will be
vacated by retiring employees.

Local Area Unemployment Statistics is a federal-state cooperative effort to

LAUS .
prepare monthly estimates of total employment and unemployment.
LEHD Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics is a federal program that is part
of the Center for Economic Studies at the U.S. Census Bureau.
Low Income Housing Tax Credit is a federal program to stimulate capital
LIHTC investment in affordable rental housing, administered in Colorado by the
Colorado Housing and Finance Authority.
MLS The Multiple Listing Service is used for the purchase and sale of residential

real estate.

Occupied Housing
Unit

As defined by the U.S. Census Bureau, this refers to a housing unit that is
occupied by persons who consider their home in a particular geography as
their usual place of residence or that have no usual place of residence
elsewhere. Occupied units are also referred to as resident/local households in
this report.

Paonia CCD

The Paonia Census County Division is a statistical entity established
cooperatively by the Census Bureau and officials of state and local
governments designed to represent community areas focused on trading
centers or major land use areas with visible, permanent, and easily described
boundaries.

PMI

Private Mortgage Insurance is an insurance policy often required to be
purchased by a home buyer if the down payment is less than 20% of the
purchase price. It protects the lender if the homeowner is unable to pay the
mortgage.

Proposition 123

Colorado voters passed Proposition 123 in November 2022, a ballot measure
authorizing the state to retain money from existing state tax revenue to
support affordable housing investment. These funds are administered
through the Department of Local Affairs and the Governor’s Office of
Economic Development and International Trade in partnership with CHFA.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page iii




22

QCEW The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Quarterly Census of Employment and
Wages program publishes a quarterly count of employment and wages
reported by employers covering more than 95% of U.S. jobs, available for
numerous geographic levels (including counties) by industry.

Tenure Tenure provides a measurement of home ownership. Occupied housing units

are classified as either owner-occupied or renter-occupied.

Workforce (or

Housing intended for and affordable to employees and households earning

Employee) Housing local wages.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page iv




TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...ccccitiuuiiiinnininniiiininiiniiieniiessisiesssessssisssssessseses 1

g Yo F =N 7
ATV NV 5 Lo U 1Y [ oY= TR PUUPRRRt 7

[ 0T of L3N 7
[\ E34 0 To Yo (o] [0 Y-V 2P 8
PrIOr TOWN EFfOIES .oeiiiiiiieiiiee ettt et e st e e s st e e e st te e e s abaeessabaeeesabbeaesnbaeesabnaeeesabeeesnnnes 8

Y TeleTa Yo - V2N D | - TSRS 8

[ T 00 b= TV 2 (=T 1 o RSP TSS 9
CoMMUNITY ENBABEMENT..cciiiiiiiieiiiiiieie e e e e et et et e e et et et e e eeeeeteeee et e eereeeeeeeeeeesesesesesenenens 10
Housing for the COMMUNILY ...ccceiiieiiiieiiiieeierteiereeerteeeeeeseereasceressecesssessssesssssessassessnsssses 11
PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT .....ccccciiiiiiiniiiiniinnieninnienieniesecscsnnenns 13
PV 0 11 ToT=d =T ] 1| ol 13
(Lo o101 F=YuToT oY= T o l oYU Y=Y oY1 [ £y PSR 15

B. EMPIOYMENT ...c..ieeiiiiiiiciieeeteeertenetteneetenserennseremsesesssessssssssasssssssssssssessssssssssessnssessnsssses 20
N TET 0] o T=T e o] o 3PP PRO PRI 20
o] o T =Y o Vo Yo Vo B f oY =T ot £ o] s L3S TR 20
TYPES OF JODS @NT WAEZES ....eeeieeiiii ittt ettt e e et e e e te e e et a e e e s bt e e e astaeeesnsaeeesnsseeeannsseesannsneesnsseeennn 21
Labor FOrce and UNEmMPIOYMENT ...c..uiiiiiiiie e eeee ettt e et e e ee e e et e e e s ea e e s santeeesnseeesanssesesnsaeessseneans 23
Jobs per Employee and Employees per HOUSENOID .........ooeieiiiiicciiie et 23

(60 0010 1014 o V- SO U PTPTPPPPPPPPPPPTPPRt 24
Employer QUestionNaire INSIZNt...........uuiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e satbaa e e e e e e eensraaeeeeas 25

C. HOUSING INVENTOIY . .ccuuiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiirieireessisesssrassssnssssrssssssssssrssssssasssssassssanes 28
HOUSING UNIES ettt ettt e e e s e e e e e e s e r e e e e e s e e nnn e e et e e e s e s ammrrnneeeeeesanrnnnneeens 28
TYPES OF HOUSING .ttt ettt st e st e st e e sab e e sabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabaesabeesabaesareens 30
ABE OF HOUSING .ttt ettt s e b e st e e bt e s at e e s bt e e s bt e e bt e e sate e bteestesabeeenseeenbeeeseesabaesnsnennns 31

D. Housing Market ConditioNns.......cccceeeiiiiimniiiiiinniiiiiieiiiiieniinieemiiienessssnessssnssns 33
FOI-Sal8 IMIAIKEL ... eeeei ittt ettt e sttt e e sttt e e e s bt e e s sasteee s bbeeeesabeeessaseeeesasbeeessnbaeesastaeesssanenns 33
RENTAI IMIAIKET .ttt ettt e e st e e sttt e e e s bt e e s saseeee s sbeeeesabeeesaaseeeesabbeeesaabaeesaantaeessseaenns 40
MODITE HOME PAKS ...ttt ettt ettt et sbe e e sat e e bt e e s a b e e bt e e sabeesbteesabeenbteenaeeenaeas 44
Income-Restricted and SUbSIAIZEd HOUSING ....cocuuiiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt e 45

E. Current and Projected Housing Needs.........cccccivuiiieniiiniiiinniiiniiiniieiss. 46
Catch-Up Needs (CUrrent CONAItIONS)......cccuiiiieiiie et e ettt ettt ettt e e et eee e e e e etbeeeeeateeeeeasaeesetbeeeeenreeeeenneeas 46
KEEP-UP (FULUIE NEEAS) ... ettt ettt e ettt e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e bt eeeeaaeeeeetseeaeeataeeeassaeesasseseaentseeeasseessasseaaans 47
SUMMArY Of HOUSING NEEUS ...ttt e et e e e e e et et e e e e e e e e naaaaeeaaeeseesassbeseaaeseanstaeseaaesannas 48
HOUSING NEEA DY TENUIE .....eviiiiiiee e cieee ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e et e e e s sta e e e sasteeessseeeesssaeesanssseesnsseeeasnsaeseansaessnsseneans 49
Housing Needed bY INCOME LEVEL ........ooiceiiie ettt e s e e e st e e s sae e e e sate e e e ntaeeeennaeeesnseaeans 49
(0T ol 2101 Lo B=T g Yo I @Y o 1 =1 G- o TR SRR 50

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page v




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN ......cccciirimnnirinnniiinnninienniininnsiniesssseassisiensseseanses 3

A, OVEIVIEW cuuuiiiienniiiiiinuiiiiiiieeisiiiessiisiiesssistimssssssimrsssistessssssssssssssstsssssssstessssssssssssssssssnses 54
HOW t0 USE This ACHION PIAN ..eniiiiiieeiie ettt ettt et sa e e bt e e s st e e bt e e sabeensteesaneenaees 54
Y =Tol U [a Y= N o T<T o o F=TU U EUUR 55
NeW Housing Production GOal ..........cuuiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s atbaaeeeeeeeensraaeeaeas 57
B. Actions to Start NOW (YEars 1-2).....cccciieeeeeeniiiinininnnennnsssssssnninnesssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssnns 58
Regulate Short-TEIM RENTAIS .....ueeeieiiii ettt e et e e e st e e eae e e e tte e e e s teeeesaseeeessseeeeansseeeenseeessseneans 58
Allow for AcCeSSOrY DWEIIING UNITS...ccciciiiiieeiiieicieeeeiiiee ettt e s ee e st e e e st e e e e aae e e s nae e e esataeeeenaneesnseeeesnsseesnnnns 61
Explore Public-Private Partnerships to Build Housing for the Community .....cccccoueeivciiieiiiieeecccccee e, 63
Establish Partnership for Sweat EQUItY PrOgrami........occcuiiiiiii ittt e e et e e e e e e e araaeee s 65
Use, Promote, and Build 0N EXiSTING RESOUICES ....cciiiiiciiiiieie ettt ettt e e e e e rttee e e e e e et e a e e e e e e e snaaaaeeeaas 67
C. Actions to Start Next (YEars 3-5)...ccccccuecriiiiiiiiiinnnnniiiiiiiinieeennssssinisismssssssssssssssssssnns 69
Update Land Use Regulations to Remove Barriers and Add Flexibility........ccccceeeveeiviiiieiiiieceeee e, 69
Align Community INfrastructure INVESTMENTS . .......uiii i cciee e e et e e et e e e sreae e esnraeeesnsaeeeennns 71
ACUITE Land/Bank Land ......cc.vieeieeiiie ettt sttt e rtee et e st e esta e e saae e bbeesnae e tseeneeebaeenseeetaeenseeetaeennaeenes 72
D. FUtUIre ACtiONS (YEAIS 5) cuuiieeuiiieuieitenirieniertnniereenereensereenceranceresseessssessnsssssssessassessanssses 74
E. Land Use RegUIAtioNs REVIEW .......cceveuirienereeniereenerieeereenereanierenseeenssersnsesssssessnssessnsssees 76
F. Potential Housing Development ........ccciivuiiiiiiiuiiiiiieiiiineiineesemense. 81
SaMPIE DEVEIOPMENT SErATEEY .. iiiieiieeiiiieeeeiiee ettt e e e e e st e e e e s ta e e e e aae e e s saeeeeassaeeeessaeesssseeeeanseeenannes 81
POtENtial DEVEIOPMENT SItES...ciuiiieeiiiie ettt et e e e et e e e st e e e sete e e s tteeeesataeessnsseeesnsseeeaansaeeeanaeeessseaeans 87

Appendix A — Family Income vs. Household INCOmMe........cccceeveririencreeniereenereeenereenerenneeeenne 90
Appendix B — Area Median INCOME........ceeuiiiierererenirenireeirreeressreneresssesssrassrasesasesassssnssennses 92
Appendix C — Existing Public HOuSing RESOUICES .......cccceitreueiiiiinniiiiienniiinienniiniieeenenes 94
Appendix D — Open HOUSE SUMMAIY ...c.cceeieerenerenirencreesennsressrescresssessssasssssesasesassssnssennses 98
Appendix E — Task Force Meeting SUMMAries .........ccccceeiiireniiniinnniiiniieniiniieennene. 153

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page vi

24




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Housing Needs Assessment and Action Plan
Town of Paonia

part1 HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Identifies housing needs and issues in the community.

part2 HOUSING ACTION PLAN

Defines community-supported actions to meet the Town's housing needs
and address issues.

Detailed input was 150
received from about | COMMUNITY

VEMBERS This is an
element of
Paonia's
Comprehensive
Thisincludes | . = o [representiign — ogs

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 1 I



PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

HOUSING ISSUES

The Town’s population (1,478) has changed very little over time. L.

The Town’s population is aging

4 9 (43% of residents are 55+ About 25% of households are cost
years old) and the prime age burdened, paying more than 30% of their

== workforce (age 25 to 54) is gross income for housing.
Age shrinking.

The housing stock is very old

The existing housing stock is and many homes need repairs.

misaligned with household ﬁ

t——1 . .
size. 73% of all households The housing stock is very
have just 1 or 2 people, yet homogeneous, primarily
only 12% of homes are a consisting of single-family
studio or 1-bedroom. homes, limiting households’

choices if they want or need to
move as their life circumstances

Commuting to work in Paonia is change.

prevalent and expensive. This

impacts workers and employers.

Current land use regulations @
Building costs exceed what contain barriers to
most locals can afford. A affordable housing.

significant amount of funding
is needed to fill this gap.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 2

-



PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

(CONTINUED)

The average annual price per

@ square foot of homes sold
increased 5.5 times fasterthan . & & 7 7
average pay from 2013 to 2022.

Only 2 homes for sale in June 2023 were
Locals struggle to compete affordable to households earning up to

with cash buyers (62% of @ $110,000 per year.

homes sold in Paonia in 2022
were purchased with cash).

Short-term rentals have reduced Rental options are limited

housing options in town and unaffordable for many

locals.

Local employers indicated they are

The water tap moratorium has having trouble finding and keeping
temporarily restricted new qualified employees and that a lack of
housing development. housing is a top reason for this.

HOUSING NEED

100 additional housing units are estimated to be needed in the
Paonia area by 2028 to reduce in-commuting, fill available jobs, and
keep up with housing demand from new jobs and retirements.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 3 I



PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN

Building affordable housing is a community endeavor. Partnerships
across the public, private, and non-profit sectors will be paramount.

RECURRING THEMES

The Town’s goal is to build 25 to 35 new housing
units at prices affordable to households earning
no more than 120% AMI as quickly as possible

once the water tap moratorium is lifted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 4 I



PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN

(CONTINUED)

Housing issues are complex, and it is important to avoid analysis
paralysis. Take action, strive for continuous improvement, and
capitalize on opportunities as they arise.

ACTIONS

ACTIONS TO START NOW  ACTIONS TO START NEXT

(YEARS 1-2) (YEARS 3-3)
= Update land use regulations to
" Regulate short-term rentals remove barriers and add flexibility
= Allow for accessory dwelling = Align community infrastructure
units investments

= Explore public-private = Acquire land/bank land

partnerships to build Housing

for the Communit
Y FUTURE ACTIONS
= Establish partnerships for a (YEARS 5+)
sweat equity program Eight additional actions are identified in
. the plan that may be considered in the
= Use, promote, and build on future.

existing resources

See the plan for the following: @

®  Recommended edits to the Town's land use regulations to remove
barriers and better facilitate the creation of affordable housing.

A sample development strategy with potential partners and
funding along with a list and map of public sites.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 5 I



INTRODUCTION




INTRODUCTION
PURPOSE

PURPOSE

The Town of Paonia sponsored this Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan to

1. Identify the housing needs and issues in the community, and
2. ldentify and define community-supported actions to meet housing needs and address issues.

Part 1 of this report is the Housing Needs Assessment and Part 2 is the Housing Action Plan.

WHY HOUSING?

Shelter, in this case housing, has always been and continues to be instrumental in the lives of humans. It
is also implicated in economic development and economic success. Today there is an abundance of
research highlighting the importance housing quality, safety, stability, and affordability plays in human
health, economic outcomes, and overall quality of life.

Housing is considered a social determinant of health and has been shown to play a decisive role in
human health status and health outcomes. It has also been shown to reduce intergenerational and
childhood poverty. Increasing access to affordable housing has also been shown to bolster economic
growth and increase economic mobility.

Beyond the individual or household level, housing affects Paonia’s economy. Local employers are
concerned because it is adversely impacting their ability to recruit and retain workers (see Part 1 —
Housing Needs Assessment, below). The current prices of homes (for rent and sale) and the availability
of homes affordable to their workforce were top problems identified during this project. Many workers
now live in other communities and drive to Paonia. In addition to the ways the housing market is
impacting current businesses, it may also be impacting new business creation and business relocation.

Housing has been, and continues to be, a community issue of concern. It is integrally intertwined with
Paonia’s future, including the personal and financial health of its residents, the economy, and
community vibrancy.

PROCESS

31

Affordable housing

. o . Town hires Consultant
identified as a Town receives Consultant learns . .
- consultant to consolidates info
priority at grant from state, . about Town and - .
- . complete Housing into Housing
Community issues request for gathers
Strategic Planning proposals Needs Assessment community input Needs Assessment
session & Action Plan & Action Plan
January 2023 . May-Aug. 2023
June 2022 April 2023 Aug.-Nov. 2023

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 7




INTRODUCTION
METHODOLOGY

This Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan was developed at roughly the same time as the
Paonia Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan was initiated prior to this project and will be
finished after the completion of this document. Members of each consulting team collaborated with
each other throughout the process to avoid duplication and ensure consistency. This Housing Needs
Assessment and Housing Action Plan serves as the housing element of Paonia’s Comprehensive Plan.

METHODOLOGY

This project relied on prior Town efforts, secondary data, primary research, and community
engagement.

PRIOR TOWN EFFORTS

Numerous prior Town efforts like surveys, reports, studies, and plans prepared for or by the Town of
Paonia were reviewed and used in the preparation of this document, including but not limited to the
following:

e 1996 Comprehensive Plan

e Paoniain Motion, Parks, Recreation & Trails Master Plan, June 2022

e Asset Inventory/Capital Improvement Plan, September 2021

e  Municipal code and zoning map

e Space to Create Paonia: Arts Market Study, January 2019 and Preliminary Feasibility Report,
March 2018

e Strategic Planning session, summer 2022

e Town Priority Survey Results, April 2023

e Community Heart and Soul, North Fork Valley, 2010 to February 2014

e North Fork Community Health Needs Assessment, September 2020

e Mind the Gap, Evaluating Workforce Housing in Colorado’s Region 10, 2023

e Short-Term Rentals — GAPS Committee Overview

SECONDARY DATA

Numerous sources of published information were referenced or used in the preparation of this
document, including but not limited to the following:

e U.S. Census 2000, 2010, 2020

e American Community Survey (ACS) 5-year data

e State Demography Office, Colorado Department of Local Affairs

e Employment information from the Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW)
accessed via the Bureau of Labor Statistics and the Colorado Department of Labor and
Employment, Labor Market Information Gateway

e 2023 Area Median Income from U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the
Colorado Housing Finance Authority (CHFA)

e  Multiple Listing Service (MLS) data courtesy of Paonia Realty

e Residential permit data from the Town of Paonia, 2012 to May 2023

e Registered Mobile Home Parks from Colorado Department of Local Affairs

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 8

32




INTRODUCTION
METHODOLOGY

e Ribbon Demographics, LLC HISTA Summary Report 2023 and Age Estimates Report 2023
e Business Summary Reports prepared by ESRI using data from Data Axle, Inc.
e National Housing Preservation Database

PRIMARY RESEARCH

Primary research in the form of an employer questionnaire was conducted to gather information not
otherwise available from public or private data sources. In addition, interviews were conducted with
realtors, local developers/builders, landlords, and social service agencies.

Employer Questionnaire

A brief online questionnaire was prepared and distributed to local employers and self-employed people
to gather information about challenges they and their employees face, and to forecast housing demand
now and over the next 5 years. The survey was distributed as an online link in person and via email.
Responses were received from 50 respondents located in the Town of Paonia and surrounding area
during a period of just over 30 days—from June 8, 2023, to July 10, 2023. Information from three
respondents reporting they operate in Hotchkiss was excluded and is not part of the total respondent
count.

Most respondents operate in Paonia’s municipal boundary. Of the 50 total local respondents

e three-quarters (74%) operate in the Town of Paonia boundary and
e about a quarter (26%) are located near the Town of Paonia but outside the town’s municipal
boundary.

Respondents represent almost 500 jobs including year-round jobs, seasonal jobs, and slightly fewer
than 20 self-employed respondents. This represents at least 45% of all jobs in the Paonia area.

Interviews

Interviews were conducted with about 18 individuals in three broad stakeholder categories to gather
information, data, and local perspectives and observations.

e Realtors and Property Managers/Landlords: Information was obtained about the for-sale market
and trends over time (prices, trends, availability) along with rental conditions and trends (rates,
vacancy, turnover).

e Builders/Developers: Information was collected about the current cost to build, entitlement
process, and challenges of building in a small, remote town.

e Social Service Organizations: Information was collected and/or confirmed about the many
programs and services currently offered and available to Paonia residents. This information was
compiled into an existing resources document to be widely disseminated and reviewed and
updated over time. It is attached as Appendix C.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 9

33




COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Housing Task Force

The housing task force was established as an informal
committee to help advocate and champion this project for the
community. The task force helped connect the community
with this project and the consultant team with the
community. The task force was made up of 12 individuals
representing the Town Board, local businesses, seniors, local
non-profits, property owners, and more. The task force met
four times throughout the project to provide direction,
provide input, and review drafts. Summaries from the housing
task force meetings are included in Appendix E.

Open House

A community-wide open house was held on Thursday, July
13" from 5:30 pm to 8:30 pm at the Ellen
Hanson-Smith (Teen) center. The event was
publicized widely online, in person, on posting
boards around town, and in numerous Town
Board meeting packets. It was a true open
house where attendees were directed
through stations that first provided a brief
project background, then illustrated data and
issues with the opportunity to vote on their
most pressing issues, then listed potential
actions with the opportunity to vote on most
favored actions, and then wrapped up with
next steps. Participants not only provided
input via dot voting but also had the
opportunity to provide written feedback on a
handout. Thirty-seven community members
attended the event and most took their time
to provide very thoughtful feedback. The
input received from this open house has been
incorporated in this document.

INTRODUCTION
METHODOLOGY

Engagement at a Glance
Throughout the course of this
project, the consultant team
received detailed input from about
150 community members. This
includes 50 employers representing
almost 500 local jobs. This does not
include the participants from past
plans and studies that were
reviewed for this project,
coordination with the concurrent
Comprehensive Plan efforts, or
Town Board meetings.

A detailed summary of the open house can be found in Appendix D.

Targeted Outreach

Targeted outreach was conducted to reach segments of the community who may have not been
reached through other efforts, including marginalized and vulnerable populations. The consultant team
attended regularly established meetings or events and had conversations with seniors, people
experiencing homelessness, mothers, members of the LGBTQ+ community, members of churches, and
more. Through these efforts, the consultant team was able to reach 36 community members.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 10

34




INTRODUCTION
HOUSING FOR THE COMMUNITY

Most of the meetings, events, and conversations started with a quick project background and centered
around housing issues observed and experienced. A few conversations touched on potential solutions
and actions. The feedback received through this outreach is incorporated in this report but purposefully
does not single out individuals who provided this information.

Board Meetings

The Board of Trustees received the draft Housing Needs Assessment at their regular meeting on August
22, 2023. Staff and board comments were received and incorporated where appropriate and to the
extent practicable.

A work session with the Board of Trustees was held on September 11, 2023, to review the draft Housing
Action Plan. Written public comment was taken at the meeting and for one week following. Input was
received and incorporated where appropriate and to the extent practicable.

HOUSING FOR THE COMMUNITY

Housing for the Community is used in this document
to mean homes that those who live and/or work in
Paonia can afford to purchase or rent. This concept is
sometimes referred to as “workforce” or “attainable”
housing. The intent is that Housing for the Community
meets the full range of rental and ownership housing
types and prices needed to support household changes over time and ensure Paonia remains a
complete and vibrant community.

Affordable housing is critical to the
town for mawy reasovs, ncluding
allowing people who work i town
afford to live m toww.

—~ Open House participant

This document, therefore, centers on an understanding of how much households can afford to spend on
housing in Paonia, or “what is affordable.” It uses the definition that housing is affordable when the
monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to no more than 30% of a household’s gross
income (i.e., income before taxes). This standard is commonly applied by federal, state, and local
housing programs, mortgage lenders, and leasing agents.

Important Definitions

Affordable in this report is consistent with the federal standard that no more than 30% of a
household’s gross income (before taxes) should be spent on housing costs, including utilities.

Area Median Income (AMI): The median family income in Delta County, Colorado, which is used to
determine eligibility for affordable housing programs. The AMlI is set according to family size.

Cost Burden: Spending more than 30% of gross household income on housing costs.

The application of this 30% standard results in affordable rents and purchase prices that are often
calculated for various income levels, expressed as a percentage of the Area Median Income (AMI). AMI
is published annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for each county
and represents the Median Family Income of an area, which is higher than the median income of all
households because many local households (single and roommate households) are not considered
families and typically have lower incomes. AMI varies by household size. More information is available in

Appendix B.

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 11

35




Delta County Income Limits by Household Size, 2023

HOUSING FOR THE COMMUNITY

AMI Level | 1-Person | 2-Person | 3-Person | 4-Person | 5-Person
30% $18,270 $20,880 $23,490 $26,100 $28,200
60% $36,540 $41,760 $46,980 $52,200 $56,400
80% 548,720 $55,680 $62,640 $69,600 $75,200
100% $60,900 | $69,600 | $78,300 | $87,000 | $94,000
120% $73,080 | $83,520 | $93,960 | $104,400 | $112,800
160% $97,440 | $111,360 | $125,280 | $139,200 | $150,400
180% $109,620 | $125,280 | $140,940 | $156,600 | $169,200

SOURCE: CHFA 2023 INCOME LIMITS

INTRODUCTION

In this assessment, the income limits for a two-person household are used to analyze affordability
because the average household size is approximately two people, and about 73% of households are

comprised of just one or two people. The maximum affordable rent and purchase prices by AMI (below),
therefore, apply to the vast majority of local households.

Maximum Affordable Housing Costs, two-person household

AMI Household Income | Maximum Rent | Maximum Purchase
Price [1]
<=30% $0-$20,880 <8522 $66,100
30.1-60% $20,881-541,760 $1,044 $132,100
60.1 - 80% $41,761-555,680 $1,392 $176,200
80.1 - 100% $55,681-569,600 $1,740 $220,200
100.1 - 120% $69,601-583,520 $2,088 $264,300
120.1-160% $83,521-$111,360 $2,784 $352,400
160.1 - 180% $111,360-$125,280 $3,132 $396,400
> 180% > $125,280 >$3,132 >$396,400

[1] Assumes 30-year mortgage at 7% with 5% down and 20% of the payment covering taxes, HOA, PMI, and insurance.

SOURCE: CHFA 2023 INCOME LIMITS, CONSULTANT TEAM

Mortgage interest rates have risen dramatically since the summer of 2022. The national average rate for
a 30-year fixed mortgage as of July 6, 2023, was 7.22%* although this assessment uses 7%. A
household’s mortgage interest rate greatly affects their purchasing power.

To illustrate this, if a local couple had a combined household income of $69,600 (100% AMI), they can
only afford a $220,000 home today based on the assumptions in the table above. If the interest rate
were to fall to 6%, and all other assumptions remain the same, they could afford a $244,000 home,
giving them $24,000 more in purchasing power.

! Mortgage News Daily 30 Year Fixed daily survey, July 6, 2023

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 12

36




PART 1:
HOUSING NEEDS

ASSESSMENT




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
A. DEMOGRAPHICS

A. DEMOGRAPHICS

This section focuses on demographic changes and trends—especially since 2010—in the Town of Paonia.
It provides information about changes in the population and households, including how much money
households earn. Comparison to a larger area of the northern North Fork Valley, the Paonia County
Census Division (Paonia CCD), is also included to provide context for the greater Paonia area even
though this report is mostly focused on the area within the Town boundary.

Paonia CCD Area Relative to Town of Paonia

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 14

38




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
A. DEMOGRAPHICS

POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLDS

Demographic trends are a foundational component of

Why is this important?
understanding local housing demand.

As the population grows, so does the

Population need and demand for housing.

An estimated 1,478 residents live in the Town of Paonia in

2023, an increase of about 30 residents since 2010. Despite the recent uptick, the population has
changed very little since 1980, although there have been population fluctuations between decades with
ebbs and flows of the local economy, especially natural resource extraction activity (e.g., the increase
and decrease from 1980 to 1987). Today’s population is almost identical to the Town’s population in
1987 (1,471), 1998 (1,475) and 2005 (1,472).

Town of Paonia Population, 1940 to 2023 (est.)
1,600

1,497

1,500 1,478

1,451 1,447

1,425
1,403

1,400
1,300 1,257
1,200 1,161
1,117
1,100 1,083
1,000
900
800

1940 1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2023
(est.)

SOURCE: COLORADO DEMOGRAPHY OFFICE, HISTORICAL CENSUS DATA, TOWN OF PAONIA, CONSULTANT TEAM

While the Town’s population was basically the same in 2020 as 2010, the population of the Paonia CCD
excluding the Town of Paonia declined by about 2% over the decade to roughly 2,500 residents. In
contrast, Delta County grew by 0.6% per year on average from 2010 to 2020 due to positive net
migration rather than natural increase (deaths outpaced births in the county).

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 15

39




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
A. DEMOGRAPHICS

Age

The Town’s population is aging, with two of five (43%) residents aged 55 or older; this is significantly
higher than that of Colorado where only 27% of residents are that age. The share of residents aged 65
and over increased by about 7 percentage points from 2010 to 2020, but otherwise the distribution of
Paonia residents by age has changed little since 2010 and is similar to that of Delta County. It is
important to ensure seniors, many of whom are long-time valley residents, can safely age in place.

Town of Paonia Age Distribution, 2010 to 2020

W 2010 m 2020

[ 21%
. 28%

N 11%
. 10%
. 12%
I 12%
R 14%
I 11%
. 15%
I 15%

C
=2
o
m
]
=
(%)
=
(%)
1
N
N
N
(€]
1
w
o
w
(6]
1
o
o
o
(6]
1
(0]
o
(€]
(0]
1
(e)]
o
(o))
(0]
+

The aging of the population is pronounced. The median age of residents was 41 in 2000, 44 in 2010, and
49 in 2020. This same trend is occurring in Delta County at large, which is in sharp contrast to the much
younger median age of 37 in the State of Colorado.

The age of residents is important to the local economy. The share of residents who are part of the prime
age workforce, those aged 25 to 54, has declined from 37% in 2010 to 33% in 2020. A decline in this age
cohort coupled with an increase in seniors creates a challenging economic environment. Retired seniors
consume local goods and services, which requires a large enough workforce to support their needs.
Local employers report difficulty recruiting and retaining workers, which aligns with fewer people in the
community of prime working age and a very low unemployment rate (see Section B — Employment for
more details).

The Paonia CCD excluding the Town of Paonia is also aging. Just under half (48%) of residents in this part
of the valley are aged 55+, a much higher share of residents than in 2000 (29%) and 2010 (40%).

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 16

40




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
A. DEMOGRAPHICS

Households

The Town of Paonia has an estimated 670 households today, which is approximately 13 more than in
2010. Like the population, the number of local households hit a low of 627 in 2015. Since then, the
number of households in Town has consistently increased each year.

Town of Paonia Total Households, 2010 to 2023 (est.)
680

670 e
660
650
640
630
620
610

600
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2023
(est.)

Household Size

The size of households has changed little over the last two decades, only declining slightly. On average,
households are comprised of two people, which is lower than in Delta County where the average
household size is about 2.5. In Paonia, homeowner households are larger than renter households on
average.

Average Household Size by Tenure, 2000 to 2021

2000 2010 2021
Total occupied 2.3 2.2 2.1
Owner occupied 2.3 2.2 2.3
Renter occupied 2.2 2.1 1.8

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 17

41




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
A. DEMOGRAPHICS

The distribution of households by size has not changed much since 2010. The vast majority (73%) of all
households only have one or two people in them.

Town of Paonia Household Size Distribution, 2010 to 2020

X
o
. II

1-PERSON 2-PERSON 3-PERSON 4+ -PERSON
HOUSEHOLD HOUSEHOLD HOUSEHOLD HOUSEHOLD

m 2010 m 2020

39%

39%
34%
34%

15%
17%

B 2

May not sum to 100% due to rounding.

The Paonia CCD excluding the Town of Paonia has a higher share of two-person households (45%) and a
lower share of one-person households (29%) relative to households within the Town of Paonia
boundary.

Household Type

The composition of households has not changed much since 2010, including the share of family
households (53%) versus non-family households (47%). Just under two-thirds (63%) of households are
comprised of a single person living alone or a couple without children (many being empty nesters). Of
those living alone, about two of every five (42%) are seniors who are more likely to be living on a fixed
income.

Town of Paonia Household Types, 2010 to 2020

N 2010 m2020

I 39%
I 39%

I 24%
8%
8%
6%
9%
7%
8%

I 26%

I 14%
B 12%

LIVING ALONE COUPLE, WITH COUPLE, NO MALE/FEMALE OTHER FAMILY OTHER NON-

CHILD(REN) CHILD(REN) HOUSEHOLDER HOUSEHOLDS, FAMILY
WITH NO KIDS HOUSEHOLDS

CHILD(REN), NO (E.G.,
SPOUSE PRESENT ROOMMATES)

May not sum to 100% due to rounding.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 18

42




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
A. DEMOGRAPHICS

The biggest difference between households in the Paonia CCD excluding the Town of Paonia and
households living within the Town boundary is that the share of couples without children outside of
Town is 41%, or about 17 percentage points higher than in the municipal limits.

As seniors get older, some will sell their homes and move away to seek other living arrangements, live
closer to family and/or medical services, etc. Freeing up these homes for newcomers could mitigate the
need for more housing, but current home prices are generally too high for most local households
earning local wages, which means such sales are likely to be to wealthier newcomers like retirees and
remote workers earning higher than local wages.

Household Income Why is this important?

Household income in the Town of Paonia is similar to that of = An understanding of how much local

Delta County, lower than the broader Paonia area (Paonia households earn through wages or
CCD), and significantly lower than Colorado as a whole. The other income sources is important to
median income of the Paonia CCD is 24% higher than inthe | determine the availability and need
Town of Paonia. for housing at various price points.

Household Income, 2021 [1]

Town of Paonia Paonia CCD Delta County State of Colorado
Median $53,646 $66,646 $51,803 $80,184
Average $72,552 $79,600 $72,549 $107,446

[1] 2021 inflation-adjusted dollars

See Appendices A and B for more information about the income of families and households in the Town
of Paonia and the AMI limits by household size established by HUD and reported by CHFA.

Housing Cost Burden

Paying too much for housing is relatively common for households in Paonia; this leaves less money
available to pay for other life necessities, including food, health care services, and transportation. This
impacts local businesses because less money is available to spend locally on goods and services. If a
household pays more than 30% of their gross income toward housing, they are cost burdened.

Cost Burdened Households by Tenure Roughly one of every five homeowners
Households | Percentage [1] and two of every five renters are cost
burdened.
All households ~150-180 22% - 27%
Owner households ~100-120 19% - 22% With a very large increase in property
Renter households ~50-60 33% - 40% tax assessments in 2023, the risk of

local households being forced to move
because they can no longer afford to
stay in their home has increased.

[1] based on number of households for which cost burden is calculated.

In general, cost-burdened households are at increased risk of being evicted and even becoming
homeless. This is especially true for those who are extremely cost burdened (i.e., those who pay more
than 50% of their income toward housing payments). In Paonia, just over half of cost-burdened
households are extremely cost burdened.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 19

43




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
B. EMPLOYMENT

B. EMPLOYMENT

This section provides an overview of area jobs, wages, and
commuting patterns.

Why is this important?
Jobs and housing are interconnected.
The economic success and mix of jobs

NUMBER OF JOBS in a region informs the amount, type,

There are almost 14,000 total jobs in Delta County, with and price point of housing needed to

roughly 56% being wage and salary jobs. sust'ai'n the Io'caI econon?y. Likewisg, a
sufficiently diverse housing supply is

needed to attract and keep quality
employees that are invested in the

community.
Total Jobs, Delta County
16,000
15,000 -
14,000 IEEPPPYT Lk

13,000 A m—— N /

.
12,000
11,000
10,000
R R R Rt i L gt gt G gt g

JOB TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS

The number of jobs in Delta County grew by about 0.78% per year from 2011 to 2021. Jobs were lost
quickly and dramatically in 2020 because of the COVID pandemic, but the recovery was swift with total
jobs in 2021 exceeding the number in 2019. Job growth in Delta County from 2023 to 2028 is projected
to be 1.24% per year on average. Due to the rapid increase in interest rates in the last year and
continued concerns about a potential recession, the lower historical rate of job growth from 2011 to
2021 (0.78% per year) is applied below to project the number of jobs in 2028 rather than 1.24%. Using
this lower growth rate results in a projection of 890 new jobs in Delta County over the next 5 years.

Job Estimates and Projections, 2011 to 2028

2023 2028
2011 2021 (estimate) | (projected)
Delta County 12,327 13,319 13,982 14,872

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 20

44




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
B. EMPLOYMENT

As shown below, multiplying the number of new jobs forecasted in the county (890) by the Paonia CCD
share of county jobs yields between 40 and 80 new jobs. This figure is closely aligned with the number of
new jobs projected by local employers responding to the 2023 employer questionnaire.

Number of New Jobs by 2028, Paonia CCD
Delta County, new jobs projected through 2028 [1] 890
Paonia CCD share of new jobs (4.5-9%) [2] 40-80

New jobs projected by local employers in Paonia CCD
through 2028 [3]

74

[1] Based on 0.78% compound annual growth rate.
[2] Range based on U.S. census county business patterns and LEHD data.
[3] Based on employer questionnaire distributed as part of this assessment.

TYPES OF JOBS AND WAGES

Employment in the Town of Paonia is concentrated in
sectors like education; arts, entertainment, and
recreation; social assistance; and food and other
services. Many local businesses and employers
benefit directly or indirectly from seasonal visitation
and there is a seasonal increase in employment in the
summer and fall.

- With the incoming weatth avd people

- workiug remotely (or retired)... ie., vew
- people does vot equal new jobs, it's ;
becoming more dire to keep this

- community vibrant and businesses open

. or it becomes a dead retirement

- community.

Local employers completing the 2023 employer i — Local employer

questionnaire confirmed this seasonal employment
uptick, noting that a large share of their seasonal employees live in the area year-round.

e Respondents indicated that 86% of their seasonal or part-year employees work during the
summer or harvest season.

e Respondents indicated that at least 60% of seasonal or part-year employees live in the area
year-round.

Spending by visitors to the area provides a revenue boost that helps sustain many local businesses over
the slower winter months. The closure of Highway 133 in the spring/early summer of 2023 precluded
typical visitation patterns for months, which adversely impacted local businesses prior to it reopening in
June 2023. This is indicative of the local area’s reliance on spending by tourists and those traveling
through the area. The local economy is also tied to the hundreds of well-paying mining and wholesale
trade jobs at the West Elk Mine in Gunnison County.

The average annual wages in Delta County in 2016 and 2022 shows that jobs in retail, arts and
entertainment, and the food services sectors are the lowest paying on average, which makes housing
affordability a serious struggle for many local employees working such jobs.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 21

45




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

B. EMPLOYMENT

Delta County Average Annual Wage and Change, 2016 to 2022 (sorted 2022 high to low)

Average

Annual %

2016 2022 Change [2]

Management of Companies and Enterprises $57,824 | $76,856 4.9%
Utilities $56,784 | $71,864 4.0%
Finance and Insurance S44,408 | $62,764 5.9%
Mining [1] $73,684 | $60,476 -3.2%
Professional and Technical Services $37,596 | $55,952 6.9%
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing $35,308 | $52,312 6.8%
Construction $42,640 | $51,064 3.1%
Health Care and Social Assistance $34,372 | $49,920 6.4%
Public Administration $42,536 | $49,192 2.5%
Wholesale Trade [1] $40,768 | $47,840 2.7%
Information $32,760 | $47,112 6.2%
Transportation and Warehousing $38,792 | $46,384 3.0%
Manufacturing $35,360 | $44,564 3.9%
Administrative and Waste Services $28,288 | $41,236 6.5%
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting $28,704 | $41,184 6.2%
Other Services, Ex. Public Admin $30,420 | $37,804 3.7%
Retail Trade $26,156 | $34,424 4.7%
Accommodation and Food Services $13,884 | $21,060 7.2%
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation $20,124 | $19,500 -0.5%

[1] Many mining and wholesale trade jobs associated with the Paonia economy are located in Gunnison County, which had an

average annual wage in Q4 2022 of $106,714 and $65,867, respectively.

[2] Represents the compound annual growth rate.

Note: data for “Educational Services” is suppressed in 2016 and 2022, along with “Unclassified” in 2016 and therefore not
reported. Annual wage is calculated as average weekly wage multiplied by 52 weeks per year.

SOURCE: COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT, LMI GATEWAY (QCEW DATA), CONSULTANT TEAM

Wages in all but two sectors above increased from 2016 to 2022. Annual wages in the mining sector and

arts, entertainment, and recreation decreased by 3.2% and 0.5% per year on average.

The average annual pay for all industries increased by 4.6% per year on average from 2016 to 2022 to

just under $44,000 per year in 2022.

Average Annual Pay, 2016 to 2022

Average Annual Pay

2016 $32,765
2022 1] $43,858
Average Annual % Change [2] 4.6%

[1] Data provided by BLS is preliminary and subject to change.

[2] Represents the compound annual growth rate.

SOURCE: COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT, LMI GATEWAY (QCEW DATA), CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 22

46




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
B. EMPLOYMENT

Although wages have increased over time, projections indicate that most household growth through
2028 will be among households earning $125,000 or more per year. This is a very high income for local
households, even those with two earners, and points to the continued inflow of retirees and those
earning money from outside the local area.

LABOR FORCE AND UNEMPLOYMENT

Shrinking Labor Force

The labor force comprises people aged 16+ who are either employed or unemployed but looking for
work. The labor force in Delta County was lower in 2022 than in any year since 2000. As baby boomers
continue to retire, local businesses will increasingly have to recruit from outside the local labor market.

Delta County Labor Force and Unemployment, 2002 to 2022

2002 2012 2022
Labor Force 14,298 14,365 13,282
Employed 13,556 12,958 12,802
Unemployed 742 1,407 480
Unemployment Rate 5.2% 9.8% 3.6%

Very Low Unemployment

The unemployment rate is very low, at or near the lowest since 2000. In the first 5 months of 2023 it
ranged from a high of 4.4% in February 2023 to a low of 3.0% in April 2023. This is important because it
means that almost all people in the labor force already have a job. With so few people unemployed in
the county, local businesses must compete against other businesses in the county for a small number of
available workers, or recruit them from adjacent counties or farther away.

JOBS PER EMPLOYEE AND EMPLOYEES PER HOUSEHOLD

The number of jobs per employee and the number of employees per employed household are used to
translate job growth into the number of housing units workers need to fill jobs. Since some employees
have more than one job, the number of jobs per employee is greater than one (1.07).

Delta County Average Jobs per Resident Employee, 2023 projections

Jobs held by residents 14,701
Resident workers with more than one job 929
Employed residents 13,773
Jobs per employee 1.07

It is important to note that many households in Paonia and the Paonia CCD do not have a worker
because many local households are comprised of non-working retirees or people with a disability. About
28% of Paonia's population is 65+ and more than one in ten residents (14%) has a disability, some of
which may preclude them from working. The average of 1.5 employees per household with a worker
indicates many working households have more than one employee. For example, a couple with two kids
where both parents work would be two employees per household.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 23

47




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
B. EMPLOYMENT

Employees per Household with a Worker, 2021

Paonia CCD (excluding Town) | Town of Paonia
Employed population age 16 and over 948 732
Households with a worker 576 497
Employees per household with a worker 1.65 1.47
COMMUTING

Commuting is a necessity for many workers in western Colorado, including those who work in the
Paonia area. The limited supply of new homes over the last decade, an aging population (more retirees
living in homes rather than members of the labor force), and a massive reduction in housing
affordability over the last 5 years has created a situation where local businesses will increasingly rely on
workers who must drive to work from elsewhere. Construction of additional housing priced to be
affordable to local workers is needed.

In-Commuting

About 80% of those who work in the Town of Paonia and over half of those employed in the Paonia CCD
live outside these boundaries, respectively. Employers responding to the 2023 employer questionnaire
report that about one in five employees (20%) drive to work from towns/places outside the Paonia area.

Percent of In-Commuters
% of In-Commuters

Employed in Town of Paonia, live outside Town (U.S. Census) 79%
Employed in Paonia CCD, live outside this area (U.S. Census) 53%
Employed in Paonia area, live outside this area (2023 Employer 20%

Questionnaire)

The opposite is true for those who live in Paonia or the Paonia CCD. About 77% of workers living in
Paonia are employed outside Town and 71% of workers living in the Paonia CCD are employed outside
its boundary. Out-commuting is largely a function of the region’s job centers being located elsewhere in
Delta County and adjacent Mesa and Montrose Counties.

Building more housing affordable for people working in or near Paonia would provide them with more
opportunities to live closer to work and reduce their daily commute time and expenses.

Cost of Commuting

- WMy staff presently commute from

. Somerset, Cedaredae, and Crawford.
work and minimize this cost not only benefits working ' Local employer

households but also reduces tailpipe emissions.

The cost of commuting is often an overlooked
household expense. The ability to live near one’s

Using the Internal Revenue Service 2023 standard mileage rate, the cost of commuting from nearby
communities ranges from about $235 to $785 per month.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 24

48




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
B. EMPLOYMENT

Cost of Commuting to and from the Town of Paonia, Colorado

49

Daily Cost of Commute | Cost of Commute
Community Miles [1] | IRS Cost/Mile (one way) (per month) [2]
Hotchkiss & Somerset 9 $0.66 $5.90 $236
Crawford 15 $0.66 $9.83 $393
Cedaredge & Delta 30 $0.66 $19.65 $786

[1] Exact mileage may differ depending on start/stop point.

[2] Assumes 20 commuting days per month.
SOURCE: IRS 2023 STANDARD MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT RATE, GOOGLE MAPS, CONSULTANT TEAM

EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE INSIGHT

Key insights gained directly from the local business community responding to the employer
guestionnaire are highlighted below.

Challenges Recruiting and Retaining Employees

Local employers are facing headwinds recruiting and retaining employees to operate successfully in the
valley.

How would you rate your ability to recruit and retain qualified employees for your business

or organization?
1 = Never a problem (can always find who | need), 5 = Significant problem (almost always have few or
unskilled applicants and unfilled jobs)

40% 36%
35%
30%
25%

0 18%
20% 15%
15%
10% 6%
- .
0% e = . T S
1 2 3 4 5

SOURCE: 2023 EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE, CONSULTANT TEAM

24%

Respondents indicated that about 3% of their jobs are unfilled. This rate is quite low compared to
Colorado, where the total nonfarm job openings rate (seasonally adjusted) in March 2023 was 7%>.

Local employers were asked to list issues they face finding or keeping employees. Responses indicate
that they are challenged by the tight labor market, a lack of housing, pay issues, and a lack of childcare
options, among others. A lack of housing received the third-highest number of responses.

2 U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics JOLTS data accessed July 10, 2023.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 25




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

In the past year, have you experienced any of the following issues in finding

B. EMPLOYMENT

or keeping qualified employees? (select all that apply) Responses
No or few applicants 18
Unskilled applicants 13
Lack of housing 12
Lower pay or benefits compared to other areas 10
Lack of childcare options 7
Work ethic or dedication problems 6
Long commute or tired of commuting 5
Lack of transportation 3
Spouse unable to find employment 3
Other [1] 2

[1] Other responses included “can only find high school kids” and “no options for career advancement”.
SOURCE: 2023 EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE, CONSULTANT TEAM

Problems Housing Employees

Local employers were asked to identify how much of a problem various aspects of the housing market
are for their employees. Although prices and the lack of available housing their employees can afford
were identified as the biggest problems, home variety and condition were also rated as notable

problems.

How much of a problem are:

50

1 = No problem, 5 = Critical problem Average
Current prices of homes for sale in/near Paonia for your employees 4.3
Current rental prices in/near Paonia for your employees 4.1
The availability (supply) of housing in/near Paonia that your employees can afford 4.1
The selection and variety of homes in/near Paonia for your employees 3.4
The condition of homes in/near Paonia for your employees 3.3

SOURCE: 2023 EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE, CONSULTANT TEAM

When asked about housing needed for their employees, local employers identified entry-level housing
and year-round rental housing priced to be affordable for their employees as the most pressing need.
This was followed by rental housing for seasonal employees and smaller homes to accommodate

downsizing retirees.

How would you rate the need for the following:

1 = No need/sufficient supply, 5 = Critical need/insufficient supply Average
More entry-level housing that is for sale at prices your employees can afford 4.2
More year-round rental housing your employees can afford 4.1
More rental housing for seasonal/part-year employees they can afford 3.3
Smaller homes that retiring employees could purchase to downsize their current 3.3
home and stay in Paonia

More move-up housing (bigger or nicer homes) for your employees who are already 2.6

homeowners

SOURCE: 2023 EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE, CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 26




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
B. EMPLOYMENT

Employer Housing Assistance

Employers were asked whether they provide housing assistance in a variety of forms. About 60% of
respondents said they do not provide any assistance and 40% said they do. Of those that do, assistance
with housing search and paying a higher wage than nearby communities for the same or similar job
were the most common responses. A few local employers reported that they provide temporary or
relocation housing, only one of which operates within the Town boundary.

Do you provide any of the following types of housing or cost of living
assistance for your employees? (select all that apply) Responses

Assistance with housing search 4
Higher wage than nearby communities for the same or similar jobs
Temporary or relocation housing
Employer owned or leased units rented to or provided as compensation to employees
Other [1]
Hiring bonus 1

[1] Other responses included “we give [cost of living] raises as the budget allows” and “have been . . . implementing a raise

every four months to help offset living prices . . .”
SOURCE: 2023 EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE, CONSULTANT TEAM

NINW |~

About one-third of local employers completing the question about their willingness to help with housing
for local employees indicated that they are willing to help for either their own employees or all
employees in the community. Another 53% said they are uncertain and need more information.
Engaging the local business community in the solutions to local housing issues will be very important
going forward.

51

In the future, would you be interested in opportunities to

work with local employers or community organizations to Percent of
help with housing for local employees? Respondents | Respondents
Uncertain, need more information 26 53%

Yes, for any employee in the community 9 18%

No, | am not willing to or cannot support housing for employees 8 16%

Yes, for my employees only 6 12%
Total question respondents 49 100%

SOURCE: 2023 EMPLOYER QUESTIONNAIRE, CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 27




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
C. HOUSING INVENTORY

C. HOUSING INVENTORY

This section examines Paonia’s housing stock. This includes

Why is this important?

the occupancy rate, homes rented versus owned, home The characteristics of the Town’s
types and when they were built, and the income-restricted housing stock provides an
inventory. understanding of the variety and

quality of current housing and the

HOUSING UNITS rate of development. The information

There are about 755 housing units in the Town of Paonia
and almost 90% of them are occupied year-round. The

assists in identifying imbalances in the
market and informs the size, type,
and tenure of housing that is needed.

Town’s housing inventory is very homogenous, comprised
almost entirely of single-family and manufactured homes.

Housing Occupancy

Today’s occupancy rate is similar to what it was in 2010 (approaching 89%). This rate is high compared
to many Colorado communities with high levels of second homeownership and short-term rentals.

The home occupancy rate fell from 2010 to 2015 before picking back up. The upward home occupancy
trend since 2015 is indicative of a tightening housing market, which continues today given the very low
inventory of homes for sale and restrictions on new construction due to the water tap moratorium.
Anyone looking to move to Town for work is faced with very few choices in a market where demand
outpaces supply.

Town of Paonia, Home Occupancy Rate, 2010-2021

89%

88%

87%

86%

85%

84%

83%

< /

N

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 28

52




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
C. HOUSING INVENTORY

About 11% of homes are classified as unoccupied or vacant, which includes those for sale or rent, those
sold or rented but not yet occupied, vacation homes and short-term rentals, as well as homes not
occupied year-round for other reasons.

e Forrent: The consultant team found only about two to four units publicly listed for rent in any
given month in the first half of 2023 (see Section D — Housing Market Conditions for details).

e Forsale: There were only 11 homes for sale in the Town of Paonia in early June 2023 (see
Section D — Housing Market Conditions for details).

e Short-term rentals: Previous research conducted by the Town’s GAPS Committee indicated that
there were approximately 20 short-term rental units (excluding rooms rented for less than 30
days) in Paonia in February 2020 and 19 in May 2021. In numerous searches in June and July
2023, the consultant team found 273 units.

Housing Tenure (Own versus Rent)

According to the 2020 Census, the share of homeowners in Paonia (65%) is the same as that of
Colorado, but much lower than that of the Paonia CCD excluding the Town (83%). Yet so few rentals
were identified in the Town of Paonia during this project that it appears the homeownership rate is
quite a bit higher. Private data estimates indicate it is 78%, which more closely aligns with information
gathered by the consultant team during this assessment. This is important because it highlights how few
rentals there are in Town.

Town of Paonia Tenure, 2023 Estimate

B Rent m Own

22%

78%

3 A manual review of www.airbnb.com and www.vrbo.com was conducted in June 2023 and www.airdna.co was
reviewed in mid-July 2023. Neither rooms being rented on a short-term basis nor those in commercial lodging

operations are accounted for.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 29

53



http://www.airbnb.com/
http://www.vrbo.com/
http://www.airdna.co/

PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
C. HOUSING INVENTORY

At least one-third of homes in the Town of Paonia area headed by someone aged 65+. About two of
every five owner-occupied homes and at least one in five rentals is headed by someone aged 65+. This is
important because many of these households, especially homeowners, are in homes that are larger than
needed and often expensive and difficult to maintain. Inflation is hitting seniors on fixed incomes (at
least 35% of households in Paonia receive social security income) particularly hard.

Senior Households by Tenure

2016 2021
Share of owner-occupied homes with a senior householder (65+) 38% 41%
Share of renter-occupied home with a senior householder (65+) 21% 20%

SOURCE: U.S. CENSUS BUREAU, 2012-2016 AND 2017-2021 AMERICAN COMMUNITY SURVEY 5-YEAR ESTIMATES

TYPES OF HOUSING

The housing stock in Paonia is extremely homogenous. About nine in ten homes are either single-family
homes or mobile/manufactured homes. Other than the Creek Vista Senior Living Apartments, there are
only a few other small apartment complexes in Town, like the Maple Leaf Apartments and the
apartments a few blocks away on Onarga Avenue. Few housing units exist that fall into the category of
“missing middle” housing types, like duplexes.

With very little diversity in the types of housing in Paonia, residents have few choices other than a
single-family or mobile/manufactured home. A more diverse inventory would provide households with
more choices to best suit their needs and desires at different life stages. For example, a single person
who moves to Town for work wanting to rent will have very few options other than to try to find a room
in an existing single-family house due to cost and availability. Some seniors living in homes that they
raised children in may find them to be too big and expensive to maintain. Smaller accessible units with
very low maintenance needs would help them age in Paonia with fewer challenges.

Town of Paonia Housing Unit Distribution by Building Type

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

87%

6% 7%
T [

Single Family Mobile/Manufactured All Other [1]

[1] 2+ units per building.
SOURCE: U.S. CENSUS BUREAU, AMERICAN COMMUNITY SURVEY 5-YEAR ESTIMATES, CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 30

54




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
C. HOUSING INVENTORY

AGE OF HOUSING

Paonia’s housing stock is extremely old with very little new inventory constructed since 2010.

e 54% of homes were built 50+ years ago.

e From 1940 to 2010 (excluding the 1970s), there were about 55 homes built per decade in Town,
or roughly 5 to 6 new homes per year.

e About one in five homes in Town were built in the 1970s.

e Town records indicate that only 21 new homes were permitted/built (includes change of
occupancy) from 2012 to May 2023.
» 12 units in the Silver Leaf Co-housing project

» 9 single-family or manufactured homes

The figure below highlights the timing of housing supply and showcases the fact that very few homes
have been built since 2000. It is important to note that it shows when the structure was first constructed
and not when it was remodeled, added to, or converted. Home remodeling and updates are occurring
across Paonia, however, the number of units being fully rehabilitated (completely gutted and redone
including electrical, plumbing, heating, and cooling, etc.) appears to be a small percentage of the total
housing stock (information about partial versus full rehabilitation is not readily available). This is
important because the rehabilitation of older homes changes the effective age of the housing stock.

Town of Paonia Total Housing Units by Original Year Built

40%

35% 34%
30%

25%

20% 19%

15%

10% 0 8% 9% 8%
7% » 6%
(o]
5%
2%
<1%
0% .

<1940 1940s 1950s 1960s 1970s 1980s 1990s 000s  2010s 2020+

May not add to 100% due to rounding.
SOURCE: U.S. CENSUS BUREAU, AMERICAN COMMUNITY SURVEY 5-YEAR ESTIMATES, COLORADO DEMOGRAPHY OFFICE, TOWN OF PAONIA,

CONSULTANT TEAM

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 31

55




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
C. HOUSING INVENTORY

The housing stock in the Paonia CCD excluding the Town of Paonia is much newer than that of the Town,
with less than 20% being built prior to 1940. This part of unincorporated Delta County experienced very
robust housing construction in the 1970s and 1990s, but like Paonia, new residential construction has
been limited since 2000.

Number of Bedrooms and Household Size

There is a significant misalignment of the housing stock and the size of households in Paonia. Roughly
two out of five households are comprised of only one person, but only about one in ten homes is a
studio or one-bedroom unit that is more appropriately sized for people living alone. One of the main
reasons there is such a mismatch is the sizable senior householder population (42% of one-person
households are aged 65 or older, many of whom are still living in the larger home they purchased to
raise a family). Moreover, at least 40% of homeowners in Paonia are seniors and about 20% of renters
are seniors (65+). These households are mostly no larger than two people. There is a need for smaller
units to accommodate one- and two-person households.

Town of Paonia Home Size Distribution by Town of Paonia Household Size
Number of Bedrooms Distribution, 2020
35% 39%
o)
33% 34%
20%
17%
12%
10%
Studio/ 1 2 3 4+ 1 2 3 4+
# of bedrooms # of persons per household

SOURCE: U.S. CENSUS BUREAU, CENSUS 2020, CONSULTANT
TEAM

SOURCE: U.S. CENSUS BUREAU, AMERICAN COMMUNITY
SURVEY 5-YEAR ESTIMATES, CONSULTANT TEAM

The Paonia CCD excluding the Town of Paonia differs from the Town in terms of the size of homes and
households. In general, homes tend to be larger than in Town with just over 70% of homes having three
or more bedrooms, about 20 percentage points higher than in the Town of Paonia. On average, the size
of households in this part of the county is similar to the Town, but the distribution differs. There is a
smaller percentage of one-person households (29% of all households) and a higher percentage with two
people (45%).

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 32

56




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

This section evaluates each segment of the housing market

Why is this important?
(for sale and rent) separately. It includes information on

Housing market conditions provide

prices, availability, and trends over time. insight into what the housing market
is providing, how much is available,
FOR-SALE MARKET and at which price points. This

information helps us understand the
housing types and price points
missing from the housing market.

The information below primarily documents home sales in
the Town of Paonia municipal limits. It does include some
information about sales in the Paonia multiple listing service
(MLS) boundary area, which is similar to the Paonia CCD.

Number of Sales per Year

There have been 690 residential sale transactions in the Paonia area since the beginning of 2013. The
percentage of sales within the Town of Paonia (48%) over this time is slightly less than in the Paonia area
excluding the Town of Paonia (52%). In the 10 years from 2013 to 2022, annual sales in Town peaked in
2017 at 43, whereas sales outside of Town peaked in 2020 at 46.

Home Sales per Year, 2013-2023

Town of Paonia Area (excluding
Year Paonia Town of Paonia) [2]
2013 9 33
2014 26 27
2015 35 40
2016 41 44
2017 43 31
2018 38 42
2019 37 31
2020 38 46
2021 35 30
2022 21 28
2023 [1] 7 8
Total 330 360

[1] Through June 2, 2023.
[2] The Paonia MLS geography is similar to the U.S. Census Bureau Paonia CCD boundary.

Price Trends

Home prices have increased quickly and dramatically. From 2016 to 2022 the average and median price
of homes sold in the Town of Paonia more than doubled, increasing by just over 16% per year on
average, or about 3.6 times as fast as the average annual pay in Delta County (see Types of Jobs and
Wages, above). The median 2022 sale price in Town ($330,000) was about $200,000 more than the 2016
median sale price.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 33

57




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Homes sold in the Paonia CCD excluding the Town of Paonia have been, and continue to be, much more
expensive than within the Town boundary. In general, however, homes and home prices within and
outside of Town are not comparable because many homes outside of Town are sold on larger lots, often
with agricultural land and water rights, etc.

Town of Paonia and Paonia Area (excluding Town) Home Sale Prices, 2013 to 2023

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

S0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 (1]

==@==Town of Paonia Average ==@==Town of Paonia Median

==@==Pa0nia area (excluding Town) Average ==@==Paonia area (excluding Town) Median

[1] Through June 2, 2023.
SOURCE: MLS COURTESY OF PAONIA REALTY, CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 34

58




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

From 2016 to 2022, the average price of a two-bedroom home in the Town of Paonia increased by
224%, more than one (123%) and three-bedroom units (135%).

Town of Paonia Average Sale Price by Number of Bedrooms, 2013 to 2023

$400,000
$350,000

$300,000

$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
=]
$

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(1]

o

1 bedroom ™2 bedrooms ™3 bedrooms

[1] Through June 2, 2023.
SOURCE: MLS COURTESY OF PAONIA REALTY, CONSULTANT TEAM

Price per Square Foot

The average annual sale price per square foot in the Town of Paonia hit $100 in 2016 and consistently
increased each year to $263 in 2022, a more than 160% increase over this time.

Town of Paonia Average Sale Price per Square Foot, 2013 to 2023

Year Sale Price per Sq. Ft.
2013 $75
2014 $83
2015 $96
2016 $100
2017 5138
2018 S163
2019 5171
2020 $200
2021 $201
2022 $263
2023 [1] $220

[1] Through June 2, 2023.
SOURCE: MLS COURTESY OF PAONIA REALTY, CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 35

59




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

The discrepancy between home prices and wages is even more drastic when considering price per
square foot rather than the average or median annual sale price. From 2013 to 2022, the average annual
price per square foot of homes sold in Paonia increased by about 14.9% per year on average, while the
average annual pay in Delta County increased by just 2.7% per year on average. Through this lens, prices
have increased 5.5 times faster than wages. The year-over-year change below shows this disparity in
more detail.

Town of Paonia Average Annual Sale Price per Square Foot and Delta County Average
Annual Pay, 2013 to 2022

40%
35%

. 30%

[4°]

()]

>

5 25%

&

£ 20%

‘o

2 15%

(4]

<

(@]

2 10%

3

o

o 5% I I
0% [ ] l I- I I I -.
-5%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

B Town of Paonia Avg. Annual Sale Price per sq. ft. m Delta County Avg. Annual Pay

List Price Received, Days on Market, and Home Size

Since 2016, the average percentage of the listing price received at sale has been above 95%. It was
highest in 2022 at 99%, followed by 2021 at just over 98%.

The average number of days homes in Town were on the market in 2021 and 2022 were the lowest of
any year since 2013. This is indicative of a tighter market in these years, with sellers much less likely to
need to negotiate or provide concessions. Homes on the market for a long period of time may indicate
that the home has been priced too high, that there is a problem with the home, or it may just indicate
soft demand for homes on the market.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 36

60




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Average Annual Number of Days on Market, Residential Sales, 2013 to 2023

Paonia Area (excluding
Year Town of Paonia Town of Paonia)
2013 150 178
2014 165 334
2015 180 187
2016 140 194
2017 89 160
2018 103 116
2019 119 172
2020 127 120
2021 73 180
2022 62 87
2023 [1] 154 178

[1] Through June 2, 2023.

The average size of homes sold since 2013 ranges from about 860 square feet for a one-bedroom home
to almost 2,100 square feet for a four-bedroom dwelling.

Town of Paonia Average Size of Homes Sold by Number of Bedrooms, 2013 to 2023 [1]

Bedrooms | Average Square Feet
1 859
2 1,088
3 1,538
4 2,094

[1] Through June 2, 2023.

Cash Buyers

The share of homes purchased by cash buyers has and continues to be high. Even local households with
sufficient earning power to afford homes priced at $400,000 and higher are at a distinct disadvantage if
they need a mortgage because cash buyers often outcompete buyers who need a loan. Roughly three
out of every five homes sold in Town in 2022 were bought with cash. Interviewees indicated that these
buyers are often moving from other parts of Colorado (or from other states), and that they are bringing
equity from home sales in very high-priced housing markets and buying in Town. Homes purchased near
Paonia in unincorporated Delta County are also often bought with cash—57% of homes sales in 2022.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 37

61




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Town of Paonia Cash Sales by Year, 2013 to 2023

2023[1]
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

I 57%
P 629
I 37%
I 34%
I 43%
I 37%
I 9%
I 56%
P 46%
I 46%
P 33%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

[1] Through June 2, 2023.
SOURCE: MLS COURTESY OF PAONIA REALTY, CONSULTANT TEAM

For-Sale Listings - June 2023

Only 11 homes were listed for sale in early June 2023.

Town of Paonia Active Listings, June 7, 2023

Bedrooms | Bathrooms | Approximate Square Feet | List Price | List Price/Sq. Ft.
3 3 1,250 $350,000 $280
3 2 1,310 $350,000 $267
3 2 1,955 $363,000 $186
3 3 1,844 $379,000 $206
3 2 1,796 $399,000 $222
3 2 1,228 $417,000 $340
4 2 1,815 $425,000 $234
2 2 998 $479,000 S480
5 5 4,016 $565,000 $141
3 4 2,810 $589,000 $210
4 3 1,788 $699,000 $391

Note: Excludes one listing under $350,000 that was not yet habitable.
SOURCE: MLS COURTESY OF PAONIA REALTY, CONSULTANT TEAM

This number of active listings is higher than recent lows in the single digits, and lower than at some
points in the past 10 years. Local realtors, however, report that it is relatively typical over the long term
for there to be roughly a dozen active listings at any one time. Compared to just under two sales per

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 38

62




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

month on average in 2022, 11 homes for sale represents about 6 months of inventory, which is generally
associated with a balanced market. Yet, only a few of these listings are affordable to most locals.
Housing is needed at lower price points (below $350,000) to create a more balanced market.

Housing Affordability and Buyer Preferences

The rise in home prices combined with the increase in Cost of housiw@ is why our employee

m(?rtgage mterest‘ ratets over the past'year has ver'y' will be Iea\fln@ e area.

quickly and negatively impacted housing affordability !

. . . _ i — Local employer

in Paonia. Even though local prices are not as high @s 1.
in many other Colorado markets, prices are too high for a large share of local households earning a living
locally.

The least expensive homes for sale in early June 2023 were $350,000 ($267 and $280 per square foot).
To purchase a home for $350,000, a local household would need to make about $110,000 per year,
which is more than about 74% of local households earn per year. This observation assumes the
household would have a 5% down payment and access a 30-year loan at 7% interest. It also assumes
that 20% of the housing payment would cover taxes, HOA dues (if applicable), private mortgage
insurance (PMI), and property insurance.

The table below shows the maximum affordable purchase price for a two-person household at different
income levels. It also shows the distribution of all owner households by AMI and the share of listings
corresponding to the maximum price a two-person household can afford. Current home listings are
mostly at or near $400,000 and above. This corresponds to about 180% AMI and higher for the average-
sized two-person household in the Town of Paonia and Paonia CCD.

Homeowner Affordability: Owner Household Income Compared to Homes for Sale

Maximum
Household Income Affordable Owner Junc? 7: 2023,
AMI Range (2-person Purchase Price [1] Household Listings
household) (2-person Distribution | (% of (# of
household) listings) | listings)
Under 30% | $0-520,880 | $66,100 | 12% 0% | 0O
30.1-60% | $20,881-$41,760 _ $132,100 _ 16% 0% 0
60.1 - 80% $41,761-555,680 _ $176,200 _ 9% 0% 0
80.1 - 100% | $55,681-569,600 _ $220,200 _ 10% 0% 0
100.1 - 120% _ $69,601-$83,520 _ $264,300 _ 9% 0% 0
120.1 - 160% $83,521-$111,360 $352,400 17% 18% 2
160.1 - 180% $111,360-$125,280 $396,400 6% 18% 2
Over 180% > $125,280 >$396,400 21% 64% 7
Total - - 525 100% 11

[1] Max purchase price assumes a 30-year mortgage at 7% with 5% down and 20% of the payment covering taxes, HOA, PMI,
and insurance.

The comparison of listing prices relative to the purchasing power of a two-person household using CHFA 2023 Income Limits is
provided for illustrative purposes — see Appendix B for detailed income limits.

Shading represents key gaps in the market.

May not sum to 100% due to rounding.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 39

63




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Gaps in the market are highlighted in gray in the table above, which indicates that the share of owner
households in that AMI range exceeds the share of current listings. The 120.1-160% AMI row is also
shaded gray because only two homes were available for sale at the very top end of the price range
(about $350,000) with a relatively high share of owner households (17%). It is important to note that if a
home for sale needs repairs or upgrades on top of the purchase price, such cash outlays are not
accounted for above.

Stakeholders interviewed noted that local buyers would need homes priced in the high $100,000s to the
low $200,000s, which are not available. It is also important to note that because of the age of many
homes, and the way they were constructed and maintained over time, many need fairly significant
repairs. This includes structural issues with foundations, roofs that need to be repaired or replaced,
among many other maintenance items.

With so few homes available, many buyers are purchasing homes in need of large repairs. They often
have no other choice if they want to live in Town. Realtors report that buyers are purchasing these
homes fully aware of the problems and potential repair costs prior to purchase. In some cases, this could
be on the order of $100,000. The need for additional cash outlays on top of the purchase price further
reduces affordability. This is especially problematic for younger households who want to become
homeowners (first-time home buyers), and may preclude others from moving up or down in the market
as their life circumstances change.

RENTAL MARKET

The rental market in the Town of Paonia includes full
rental units and room-only rentals. The market is
tight, vacancies are low, and prices are too high for
many locals.

Rents are too high for what wages
will support.
— Local Emplover

Full Rental Units

Excluding Creek Vista Senior Living Apartments, the rental market in Paonia is small and available rentals
are often leased via word of mouth rather than public listings. The consultant team found only 16 single-
family homes and apartments for rent in the Town of Paonia from January through early July 2023.
Rental listings were found in the following ways:

e Public rental listing platforms were monitored from early May to early July 2023. Searches for
old listings back to January 2023 were also conducted.

e Community boards in Town were checked numerous times in May and June 2023.

e Two available rentals were shared with the consultant team via word of mouth and were not
publicly listed.

Most rentals found in the Town of Paonia were two-bedroom units; the monthly rental amount varied
widely from $900 to $1,975 per month.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 40

64




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Paonia-area Rental Listings and Rental Rates

No. of Average Monthly Rent
Bedrooms Listings Monthly Rent Range
0 1 $750 NA
1 1 $1,100 NA
2 11 $1,359 $900 - 51,975
3 3 $1,850 $1,600 - $2,000

Most public rental listings did not specify whether utilities are paid by the landlord or the tenant. Based
on interviews with local property managers, many rentals in Town require tenants to pay for electricity
and/or gas service, and quite a few also require tenants to pay for water, sewer, and trash service (see

Utilities, below, for more details).

The deposit required to move in is frequently the same as the monthly rent, but many listings asked for
the first and last month’s rent plus the deposit to move in. Of the ten public listings indicating whether
pets are allowed, only three prohibited pets. The others allowed pets or indicated they could be
approved or are negotiable. Landlords report that many local renter households have pets, and that
rentals that do not accept pets often have a harder time finding tenants given a smaller pool of potential
applicants. Only four public listings stated whether smoking is allowed, and all of them indicated that it
is not. Lease terms varied for listings that included this information, with six out of seven indicating a 6-
to 12-month term.

Interviewees indicated that the rental market in Paonia is somewhat bifurcated between properties that
are well maintained and meet basic health and safety codes, and those that may not. The latter may not
be publicly listed and are more likely to be rented for less than publicly listed market rates, according to
interviewees. It is extremely difficult to know the condition of all property being rented in Town without
in-person inspection, which is outside of the scope of
this assessment, but this does point to a demand for
rental units and the potential need for increased code
enforcement in Town.

. Couditions [some] people are livivg i
- are “shocking.”
. — Local resident

Rooms or Shared Space

In addition to the 16 units listed for rent above, four public listings were for a room only and two were
to be shared. Room-only listings ranged from $425 to $750 per month. Listings to share a single-family
home were $600 and $950 per month.

Near Paonia

Five additional rental listings were found outside of the Town of Paonia, including one on Pitkin Mesa
and one east of Town. Rents for these ranged from $1,200 for a small studio apartment to $1,800 for a
three-bedroom/two-bathroom single-family home. In addition, four listings were found in Hotchkiss,
which is outside the study area, with rents ranging from $925 to $1,800 per month.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 41

65




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Vacancy

Rental vacancy rates are very low (<=3%), indicative of a tight rental market. More rentals are needed.
Landlords interviewed indicated that they almost never have an involuntary vacancy. This typically only
occurs when the landlord does not rent a unit for a short time to do maintenance, repairs, or upgrades.
Vacancies appear to be more common for rentals that preclude pets.

When rental vacancy rates are this low, the market is near capacity and cannot as easily absorb new
residents or employees moving to Paonia. This results in numerous issues, including the following:

e Rents tend to increase faster than incomes.

e Renters have difficulty moving from one unit to another as their circumstances change.

e New employees struggle to find housing when hired, impacting businesses and the economy.

e Renters displaced due to owners selling rentals, converting their unit from a long-term to short-
term rental, or other reasons have few or no options.

e Landlords have little incentive to make repairs and capital investments.

Renter Affordability

Of the 16 publicly listed rental units identified while rental listings were monitored, no rentals were
found that are affordable to the average-sized household earning under 30% AMI and only one was
affordable to households earning 30-60% AMI (see Renter Affordability table, below). Combined, this is
one rental listing for roughly half of renter households. Interviews with landlords indicated there are a
few more rentals in Town in the 30-60% AMI range, but they are rarely on the market.

Renters under 30% AMI are much more likely to face difficult choices between housing costs and other
life necessities and are more at risk of becoming homeless. During this project, one local service
employee likely earning between 30% and 60% AMI indicated they are living on a friend’s couch because
rents are just too high.

With so few rental choices, lower income households are being forced to take on rents above their
means. This is evident by the fact that most publicly listed rentals are priced between $1,000 and $2,000
per month, which is affordable to a relatively small share of renters.

The percentage of listings from 60% to 120% AMI is higher than the share of renter households with
incomes in this AMI range, which normally indicates that market pricing generally aligns with renter
household incomes. But, because there are so few rentals under 60% AMI and such a high share of
households who make under this amount, there are far too few rental units available at these price
points, which is a major gap in the market. When prices are higher than what people can afford, people
get creative. This tends to incentivize overcrowding and people living in undesirable or unsafe situations.
Based on public listings, many people are looking for roommates to help cover rent.

More rental units are needed for households earning under 80% AMI, and especially less than 60% AMI.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 42

66




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

Renter Affordability: Renter Household Income Compared to Homes for Rent

67

Household Max Affordable Renter
Income Range (2- | Rent + Utilities Rental Listings [1]
AMI Household
person (2-person c e L. (% of (# of
Distribution . .
household) household) listings) listings)
Under 30% S0-$20,880 < $522 34% 0% 0
30.1-60% $20,881-$41,760 $523 to $1,044 17% 6% 1
60.1 - 80% $41,761-$55,680 | $1,045 to $1,392 8% 13% 2
80.1-100% $55,681-$69,600 | $1,393 to $1,740 6% 38% 6
100.1 - 120% $69,601-$83,520 | $1,741 to $2,088 2% 13% 2
120.1 - 160% $83,521-$111,360 | $2,089 to $2,784 10% 31% 5
160.1 - 180% $111,360-$125,280 | $2,785 to $3,132 6% 0% 0
Over 180% | > $125,280 >$3,132 | 17% 0% | 0
Total - - 150 100% 16

[1] Rental listings based on a search from early May to early July 2023, inclusive of public listings since January 2023; assumes
monthly utility allowance of $120 for water/sewer/trash and gas and/or electric service at $200/mo. unless listing specified that
utilities are included.

The comparison of listing prices relative to the purchasing power of a two-person household using CHFA 2023 Income Limits

is provided for illustrative purposes - see Appendix B for detailed income limits.

Shading represents key gaps in the market.

May not sum to 100% due to rounding.

Utilities

When determining the amount of monthly “gross rent” a household can afford (30% of monthly gross
annual household income), utilities and any non-optional fees paid by the tenant are added to the total
of the monthly resident-paid rent. Telephone, cable, or internet are typically not accounted for.

Housing subject to federal and state code, regulations, and policies must adhere to utility allowance
requirements. In general, however, it is important to understand the range of costs local tenants pay for
gas and electric service.

Town of Paonia Monthly Electricity and Gas Cost Distribution

Electricity Gas
Less than $50 5% 34%
S50 to S99 50% 43%
$100 to $149 15% 20%
$150 or more 30% 2%

In Town, utility costs vary widely for many reasons including the home’s insulation,
appliance/equipment type and condition, household use and preferences, etc. The consultant team
spot-checked actual utility bills for single-family homes in the Town of Paonia and found that homes
ranging in size from 1,050 to 1,460 square feet had gas bills from about $55 to $100 per month when
averaged over a year. Electric bills in Town range from about $60 per month to $360 per month when

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 43




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

averaged over a year. Fees for Town provision of water, wastewater/sewer, and trash collection services
must also be accounted for if paid by the tenant.

Town of Paonia Basic Residential Rates for Water, Sewer, Trash

Monthly Rate
Water $40
Wastewater/Sewer S55
Trash (one 33-gallon container pickup up weekly) $25
Total $120

SOURCE: TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, RESOLUTION NO. 2022-08, 2022-14, 2022-15

Applying a generalized monthly amount for electricity and gas service of $125 and $75 per month,
respectively, plus $120 per month for water, sewer, and trash sums to $320 per month. If a tenant
household were responsible for paying for all these services in this example, $320 should be accounted
for in determining whether a household can afford the monthly rent. The example below is included to
illustrate this point.

Example of Maximum Rental Amount for Local Household Making $65,800 per Year

Annual gross (before taxes) household income - (100% AMI for a 2-person household) | $65,800
Annual affordable payment (30% of gross income) $19,740
Monthly affordable housing payment $1,645
Utilities paid by tenant (water, sewer, trash, electricity, gas) $320

Monthly rental amount (monthly affordable payment minus utilities) | $1,325

SOURCE: CHFA 2023 INCOME LIMITS, CONSULTANT TEAM

MOBILE HOME PARKS

One mobile home park is registered with the State of Colorado’s Department of Local Affairs—the North
Fork Trailer & RV Park—located near Paonia.

Registered Mobile Home Parks Near Paonia, 2023

Registration
Name Address City County | Number

North Fork Trailer & RV Park | 1514 Highway 187 | Paonia adjacent | Delta MHP-000730

SOURCE: COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS, DIVISION OF HOUSING MOBILE HOME PARK REGISTRY

Some of these homes likely cost 30% or less of their residents’ gross income. When costs are affordable,
but the home does not have a formal income restriction like a deed restriction, it is referred to as
naturally occurring affordable housing. This makes their preservation important even though they are
not located in the Town of Paonia.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 44

68




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
D. HOUSING MARKET CONDITIONS

INCOME-RESTRICTED AND SUBSIDIZED HOUSING

There is only one income-restricted property in Paonia: the Creek Vista Senior Living Apartments. These
provide affordable independent living options for seniors aged 62 and older. There are 20 apartments at
Creek Vista:

e 13 (65%) units have two bedrooms

e 7 (35%) units have one bedroom

Income-Restricted and Subsidized Rental Inventory - Paonia
Name Address Type of Subsidy Who Is Housed Units | Built

Creek Vista Senior

Living Apartments
[1] One unit is being used to house the property manager.

446 Vista Drive | 9% LIHTC Seniors 62+ 20 [1] 2001

Sixteen of the units are also subsidized through the federal Housing Choice (Section 8) voucher program,
which pays the difference between the monthly rental amount and each tenant’s affordable housing
payment (30% of their gross income). Of these sixteen, five of them are project-based vouchers that stay
with the units. On top of the monthly rent, tenants pay for electricity and internet, if desired.

As of early June 2023, there were 14 people on the waitlist for these units:

e 9 people on the list for a one-bedroom unit
e 5 people on the list for a two-bedroom unit

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 45

69




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

This section estimates the number of new housing units needed in Paonia through 2028 and relies
heavily on information presented in previous sections, but mostly on direct feedback from local
employers that filled out the employer questionnaire. The number of new homes needed is projected
through 2028 and is quantified in two categories.

e Catch-Up Needs — the number of housing units currently needed to house workers commuting
to Town each day for work and those filling open jobs.

o Keep-Up Needs — the number of units needed to keep up with future demand for housing based
on projected job growth and backfilling jobs that will be vacated by retiring employees.

CATCH-UP NEEDS (CURRENT CONDITIONS)

In-Commuters

An additional 25 homes are needed to house in-commuters (those who drive to work from locations
outside of the Paonia area, which could include places like Somerset, Hotchkiss, Crawford, and Delta, or
farther away like Montrose or Grand Junction) who are likely to move to Paonia if suitable housing they
could afford is available. Creating such housing opportunities would reduce expenses for these workers
and reduce emissions. Other benefits of housing near employment include a reduction in employee
turnover and absenteeism, and increased community vibrancy and year-round occupancy.

Local employers who completed the questionnaire indicated that almost 40% of their in-commuting
employees would likely move to Paonia if suitable housing they could afford were available.

Estimated Housing Units Needed to House In-Commuters

Total number of in-commuters 93

% that would move to Paonia area if suitable housing were available 39%

# that would move 36

Employees per household with a worker 1.47

New housing units needed (rounded to nearest 5) 25
Unfilled Jobs

Roughly 10 new housing units are needed to help fill unfilled jobs.

Estimated Housing Units Needed to Help Fill Jobs

Unfilled jobs 14
Jobs per employee 1.07
Employees filling jobs 13
Employees per household with a worker 1.47
New housing units needed (rounded to nearest 5) 10

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 46

70




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS
Pending Development Adjustments

No new projects are in the planning pipeline. Therefore, no Typically, housing units planned to be

downward adjustments were made to the 35 catch-up built are subtracted from the catch-up

housing units needed. Due to the water tap moratorium, need number. Since there are not any

this is likely to be the case for about 3 years. pending residential development
applications in Paonia, nothing was

KEEP-UP (FUTURE NEEDS) subtracted.

Job Growth

About 45 housing units are needed to keep up with job growth over the next 5 years, as projected by
local employers. Housing shortages worsen when local job growth and the need for more workers
exceed the available housing inventory.

Estimated Housing Units Needed to Fill New Jobs, 2023-2028

New jobs (through 2028) 74
Jobs per employee 1.07
Employees filling jobs 69
Employees per household with a worker 1.47
New housing units needed (rounded to nearest 5) 45

Retiring Employees

T have some long-term employees but
- as they start to retire housing will

- become a real issue with the high rent
. awd home prices.

Local employers are projecting that just under 50 — Local employer

Just under 20 new homes are projected to be needed
to house new employees filling jobs vacated by
current employees who will retire over the next 5
years.

current employees will retire over the next 5 years,
85% of which live in the Paonia area (excludes Hotchkiss, Crawford, and Somerset). Of those who live in
the Paonia area, employers estimate that 36 will stay (and occupy a home) in the area. Employers
estimate that four retirees who live in the area will not stay, but since housing prices are too high for
most working households, it is assumed that the sale of their homes will not be to workers filling their
jobs.

Estimated Housing Units Needed to Fill Jobs Vacated by Retirees, 2023-2028

Number to retire over next 5 years 47
Number to retire who live in the Paonia area 40
Number to retire and likely to stay in the Paonia area 36
Employees per household with a worker 1.47
New housing units needed (rounded to nearest 5) 25

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 47

71




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

SUMMARY OF HOUSING NEEDS

An additional 105 housing units are estimated to be needed to help reduce in-commuting, fill available
jobs, and keep up with new jobs and retirements. For simplicity, the figure of 100 new units is used
below. This figure is based on feedback received from local employers in response to the 2023 employer
guestionnaire and should be considered a conservative figure for the following reasons:

1.

The employer questionnaire responses do not represent all local employers. It did, however,
capture the majority of large employers in the Paonia CCD.

It does not account for employment projections of the West Elk Mine in nearby Gunnison
County. Should coal prices remain high over the next 5 years, demand for housing in the Paonia
area by mine workers, including in the Town of Paonia, will remain as the mine seeks to
maximize production. This was not accounted for because natural resource extraction jobs are
more prone to fluctuation due to commodity price volatility, among other variables, which
makes forecasting challenging.

It does not account for the number of people on the waitlist for the Creek Vista Senior Living
Apartments.

It does not account for the number of unhoused people in the Pacnia CCD. The truly unhoused
population appears to be very small, but not nonexistent.

It does not account for the possibility of new employers/businesses moving to Town. Any new
jobs created would increase the number of new housing units needed.

All 100 units do not need to be constructed in Town because not all households want to be in town and
are willing to absorb the cost and time of commuting. Some working households will desire to live in
other communities or outside of Town on larger lots where they can more easily grow food, keep
animals, etc. The summary table below, therefore, shows the total need based on three scenarios—to
meet 20%, 50%, and 100% of the need. Based on U.S. Census data, building half of the need in Town
would begin to reverse historical commute patterns; building 20% of the need in Town would retain
current commute patterns.

Estimate of Total Housing Units Needed through 2028

Share of Housing Need Located in
the Town of Paonia

100% 50% 20%

# of units to house in-commuters 25 12

# of units to help fill jobs | 10 5] 2
Total Catch-up Need 35 17

# of units to fill new jobs | 45 23 | 9
# of units to fill jobs vacated by retirees | 20 10 | 4
Total Keep-up Need 65 33 13
Catch-up and Keep-up through 2028 | 100 50 | 20

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 48

72




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

The current water tap moratorium restricts new development at this time, but under normal
circumstances, approximately 4 to 20 units would have to be built each year to meet this need,
depending on the assumptions used.

Town records indicate that only 21 new homes have been permitted/built (includes change of
occupancy) since 2012. This amounts to only about two new residences built or under construction per
year on average. This rate would need to double to build 20 units over the 5-year period through 2028.

Setting a housing production goal based on the identified need is a policy decision. Many communities
set a goal somewhere between the current production rate and the full need, depending on local
building capacity, available land and funding, and other community priorities.

Should there be a material change in economic conditions over the next 5 years (e.g., mine closure,
economic downturn or recession), the estimated number of housing units needed will also change. It is
important, therefore, to monitor local economic conditions over time. Moreover, because the local
housing market is relatively small, it will be important to start relatively small and test the market.

HOUSING NEED BY TENURE

Assuming the current share of owners and renters remains unchanged, 78% own and 22% rent, then 16
to 78 homes need to be built and sold and 4 to 22 need to be built and rented.

Estimate of Total Housing Units Needed through 2028 by Current Tenure Split

Share of Housing Located in
the Town of Paonia
100% 50% 20%
Catch-up and Keep-up through 2028 100 50 20
Own (78%) 78 39 16
Rent (22%) 22 11 4

Yet because there are so few rental units in Town and very low rental vacancy rates, it is recommended
that developers and policymakers prioritize investments in new rental units more heavily than this, such
as a 50-50 tenure split. Doing so would result in the need for 10 to 50 units for sale and 10 to 50 units
for rent.

HOUSING NEEDED BY INCOME LEVEL

New housing should generally be built in amounts proportionate to the distribution of households by
income; therefore, the number of units needed is distributed by the share of households by income in
the table below. The number of units needed, and corresponding AMI range, is included below to assist
public, private, and non-profits applying for federal and state funds tied to specific AMI thresholds (see
Appendices A and B for additional AMI and household income information). In addition, it is important
to note that many banks and private equity investors also look at household income data and
demographics to better understand the local market.

The table below assumes that 50% of the housing need will be met by new construction in the Town of
Paonia, or 50 units, and that of these, half will be rental units and half will be for sale. It also assumes

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 49

73




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

the current distribution of household incomes by AMI remains steady through 2028. Based on current
land and construction costs (see Cost to Build and Capital Gap, below), many units will need to be priced
below market rates and well below the cost of construction, which will require changes to local policies
and subsidies. Creativity and persistence will be needed to build at prices below market. Using these
assumptions, the table below shows that 24 units are needed below 80% AMI, which is the same
number as the Town's Proposition 123 commitment and almost the same as the 23 units called for by a
project-specific market study completed in January 2019.

Units Needed through 2028 by AMI [1]

Rent Own
<30% 9 3
30.1-60% 4 4
60.1-80% 2 2
80.1-100% 1 3
100.1-120% 1 2
120.1-160% 2 4
160.1-180% 2 2
>180% 4 5
Total 25 25

[1] Assumes 50% of total need built in Town and 50-50 tenure split.

COST TO BUILD AND CAPITAL GAP

An understanding of the current costs to build new housing The capital gap is the difference

in the State of Colorado in general, and specifically in between the cost to build and the
Paonia, highlights a big challenge—the cost to build exceeds ' amount of money local households
what a large share of local households earning local wages can afford to pay. Plugging this

can afford. financial shortfall is a major challenge

to building affordable housing for

Based on conversations with developers around the state loel el

and developers/builders in the Paonia area, the costs to

build a home range from $250 per square foot to $400 per

square foot, on average. The cost varies based on many variables, including the finishes, ability to access
competitive subcontractor labor pools, and the cost of land. Other factors—most notably the scale of
development—influence unit cost, with larger projects being more cost effective on a per-unit basis
than small projects.

Like many parts of Colorado, the Paonia area has a limited supply of construction labor, especially skilled
laborers. Local builders report that they would hire more people today—especially locals with the right
skills—if they could find them, and that many area subcontractors are understaffed and overbooked.

As a recent case study suggests, for a community like Paonia without a deep pool of contractors and
subcontractors, building homes at affordable prices will be a challenge. In Craig, Colorado, the Craig
Housing Authority is seeking to build 20 units of affordable modular housing with an estimated cost of
$9.5 million. The homes are for sale and targeted to households at or below 120% AMI. While the cost

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 50

74




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

to build is $475,000 per unit, the sale price is set at $259,000 to $310,000. The cost to build is being
subsidized through state and federal housing grants to ensure an affordable price point. Although many
factors influenced Craig’s construction cost, it does provide a good case study as to the challenges of
building homes that households earning their income locally can afford.

Numerous assumptions are used to identify the capital gap to construct seven for-sale units and 22
rental units, below.

For-Sale Gap

Based on conversations with local builders, it appears that a 1,500 square foot, three-bedroom, single-
family home with modest finishes and amenities could be built for around $375,000 excluding the cost
of land, although building at this price is currently very challenging. Adding an assumed $85,000 in land
costs brings the total cost per unit to $460,000. Note that the average cost of the five lots sold in town in
2021 and 2022 was $105,400. Based on these assumptions, most local households are unable to pay for
this house.

The capital gap to construct seven units at this price given a range of household incomes up to 120%
AM I is estimated to be about $1.5 million.

Capital Gap Between Construction Costs and Household Buying Power

Household Maximum Gap Per Unit
Income Affordable between Number Gap x
(3-person Purchase Price Cost to of Units | Number of
household) (3-person Build and Needed Units
[1] household) [2] Sales Price (3] Needed
Break-Even Price $145,369 $460,000 1]
60.1 - 80% AMI $62,640 $198,200 -$261,800 2 -$523,600
80.1 - 100% AMI $78,300 $247,800 -$212,200 3 -$636,600
100.1 - 120% AMI $93,960 $297,300 -$162,700 2 -$325,400
Total Capital Gap (for-sale units) [1] -$1,485,600

Based on a per-unit cost of $375,000 + $85,000 for land and limited infrastructure costs.

[1] 2023 CHFA income limits.

[2] Max purchase price assumes a 30-year mortgage at 7% with 5% down and 20% of the payment covering taxes, HOA, PMI,
and insurance.

[3] Assumes the distribution by AMI in the “Units Needed through 2028 by AMI” table in this assessment, except that all
households with incomes <60% AMI will rent, not own.

For-Rent Gap

A basic analysis of the dollar shortfall (financing gap) to construct and rent 22 units to households with
incomes at 80% AMI for a two-person household ($55,680 per year and an affordable payment of
$1,392 per month) is $5 to $6 million.

An income corresponding to 80% AMI was used because federal and state funders typically use this AMI
as the cutoff for multifamily rental projects.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 51

75




PART 1: HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT
E. CURRENT AND PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS

It is important to note that construction costs can vary depending on site conditions, topography, and
access to utility and street infrastructure. In addition, the limited local labor pool and subcontractors
may also impact actual project prices.

In this example, the total development costs would be just under $10 million using the following
assumptions:

e A 22-unit multifamily development on a 1.5-acre site, which would allow room for parking and
other amenities.

e A building size of roughly 20,570 square feet—850 square feet per unit plus a 10% allotment for
shared space, such as hallways and utility closets.

e S25/square foot for site work and $250/square foot for construction.

Total Capital Gap

The total capital gap to construct the seven for-sale units from 60% to 120% AMI and the 22 units at
80% AMI in the examples above is roughly in the range of $6.5 million to $7.5 million, given the many
assumptions. Changes to any of the assumptions used would yield different results and a larger capital
gap dollar amount is possible.

The inclusion of this information is intended to highlight a key housing issue and challenge in Paonia—
under current market conditions it is extremely difficult to build housing at price points that are
affordable to many local households. This information can provide a basis for future grant requests.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 52

76




PART 2:

HOUSING
ACTION PLAN




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
A. OVERVIEW

A. OVERVIEW

This plan of action identifies and defines community-supported actions to be taken to meet the
housing need and address issues and challenges outlined in Part 1 — Housing Needs Assessment. The
actions generally aim to increase the supply and diversity of Housing for the Community, including
housing priced below current market prices.

Building Housing for the Community is a community endeavor. No one entity can do it all. Although
this plan primarily focuses on actions the Town of Paonia can take, it also highlights actions that can be
spearheaded and implemented by other local entities in whole or in part (e.g., Delta County Housing
Authority, the new Fertile Edge Community Land Trust, local non-profit organizations, and employers). It
does not address all possible actions or strategies that are being pursued, or could be pursued in the
future, by other entities. These entities should proceed with their efforts and coordinate with the Town
where appropriate. Partnerships across the public, private, and non-profit sectors will be paramount.

The plan relies heavily on input from residents, stakeholders, and Town of Paonia staff and trustees
gathered over the course of this project. Information included in Part 1 — Housing Needs Assessment is
not repeated and should be referenced often during plan implementation. The plan is purposefully
concise for ease of use, allowing for quick review of priority and future actions.

HOW TO USE THIS ACTION PLAN

This plan is not intended to be rigid, static, or to sit on Don't let His sit on a shelf — set
a shelf; it is a living document. It is not a description

of aspirations to strive for, but rather a list of actions
to take in the near term, and strategies and actions to
be pursued over time. As with any plan, the Town will
need to sort out the specifics of each action as they
are implemented. Actions may evolve into something
different than described herein and priorities may
shift—that is okay. The intent is to start addressing housing issues, and this plan offers a path to do that.

priorities and do something! You have
to start from where you are, set the
plan avd push through the small
percevtage of nay-sayers and do-
nothingst

— Open House participant

This plan is based on opportunities, constraints, and community input in 2023. The local housing market
will continue to change along with local concerns and desires, so it is recommended that the Town of
Paonia revisit it periodically and adjust priorities as appropriate. Moreover, opportunities should be
capitalized upon when they arise even if they are not spelled out or are out of sync with the strategies
and timeline herein. Housing issues are complex, and it is important to avoid analysis paralysis and strive
for continuous improvement.
Continuous improvement — As the Town of Paonia’s Plan
first housing action plan, the goal is to take action in
the near term, learn as you go, and continue to refine
and build capacity to address housing needs and
challenges over time. When it comes to community
housing, there is no silver-bullet solution.

Refine Act

Learn Monitor

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 54

78




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
A. OVERVIEW

The action plan is divided into three action categories—start now, start next, and future actions. Actions
to start now are to be started right away, at least within the first 2 years following plan adoption. These
actions are outlined in the most detail. Actions to start next were identified as less of an immediate
priority and are to be implemented in years 3 to 5. Finally, numerous future actions are identified, which
should be prioritized after the actions to start now and start next are addressed or as opportunities
arise. Revisiting and reprioritizing this housing action plan is recommended in about 5 years.

2 Actions to | - Actions to || Future

¢ Start Now || ¢ Start Next | & Actions

> >
\ J 77 W )

RECURRING THEMES

Throughout this project the following themes emerged based on public feedback, employer input,
interviews, targeted outreach, and other community outreach.

Focus on Locals

T am gevninely concerned for our
- current locals who rent and those of us
i who depend on a work force tHhat can

Paonia residents care deeply about their community
and want its future to be created by and for locals.
Regarding housing, the following themes emerged:

e Increase housing security for locals. afford +o live here.
e Create pathways for locals to build home L Local emplover
equity, AN Y e

e Discourage profiteering by out-of-town investors.
e Use local expertise and labor as much as possible.

Maintain Community Character

Throughout the process, residents and stakeholders old hous’mg stock shouldn'+ be +orm
indicated a clear desire to retain Paonia’s character

: ' ' - down. New housing is vever as
while seeking to do the following:

- tharmivg avd aesthetic,

e Provide housing for the community—this - — Opev House participant
includes housing for people of varying ages,
household types, and income levels, and those who want to rent or own.

e Improve the existing housing stock.

e Integrate new housing into the fabric of the community.

e Design and build sustainable homes.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 55

79




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
A. OVERVIEW

Use the Water Tap Moratorium as an Opportunity

In early 2020, the Town of Paonia enacted a moratorium on new water taps. The moratorium set criteria
to be met prior to it being lifted. The Town is diligently working to meet those criteria, but estimates it
will be about 3 years until the moratorium can be lifted.

While the moratorium is in place, the Town has a unique window of opportunity to begin implementing
this plan. Without the ability to purchase new water taps while the moratorium is in place, new
construction is severely constrained. This reduces Town time commitments to review new development
proposals and process residential permits, which allows more time to be devoted to plan
implementation and the creation of a solid foundation upon which to build. Waiting to implement this
plan until the moratorium is lifted is a missed opportunity.

Leverage the Town’s Capacity

Implementing some of this plan’s actions will be
complicated and time consuming, and Town staff and
trustee time is not boundless. It is important,
therefore, to focus on “quick win” actions early on to
build momentum and not get bogged down with lengthy and costly analysis and consideration of all
possible options. It is recommended that the Town consider and seek to minimize the administrative
burden associated with plan implementation to the extent practicable.

We should prioritize impact i a timely
mavner.
~ Open House participant

The Town can also leverage its capacity through collaboration and partnership with others. Focusing on
what the Town can do and provide, while engaging and using the expertise and capacity of others, is
more likely to enhance the success of numerous plan actions.

Resources

Two great online resources contain a plethora of information to help communities understand and
respond to their housing challenges. As the Town begins to implement actions in this plan, or as new
ideas arise, it will be helpful to consult the following resources:

Affordable Housing Toolkit for Local Officials, DOLA’s Division of Housing
https://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colorado.gov/

Housing Policy Library, Local Housing Solutions
https://localhousingsolutions.org/housing-policy-library/

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 56

80



https://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colorado.gov/
https://localhousingsolutions.org/housing-policy-library/

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
A. OVERVIEW

NEW HOUSING PRODUCTION GOAL

There is a need for at least 100 new homes over the next 5 New housing production goal:
years in the Paonia area (see Part 1 — Housing Needs 25-35 units at or below 120% AMI
Assessment). As explained in the housing needs assessment,

many households want to live outside of Town or in other communities for a myriad of reasons and
therefore less than 100 housing units need to be built in the municipal boundary. The consultant team
recommended setting an aggressive but attainable housing production goal.

The Town of Paonia’s housing production goal once the moratorium is lifted is to build 25 to 35 new
units as quickly as possible at prices affordable to households earning no more than 120% AMI. Most, if
not all, of these units will require some financial subsidy because the amount local households can
afford to pay is less than the cost to build them. It is important to note that in general, government
funding is not available for projects serving households earning more than 120% AMI.

To address the housing needs of the community, new units are needed for homeownership and for rent.
The following number of units by housing tenure and price can serve as a guide but should not be
considered set in stone. Adjustments may be needed due to changes in the market, available financing
and partners, etc.

e 5to 10 homes for sale (generally affordable to households earning from 80% AMI up to 120%
AMI)

e 20to 25 homes for rent (generally affordable to households earning up to 80% AMI)

While the data supports more homes are needed for rent, community outreach efforts indicated a
strong desire for homeownership opportunities.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 57

81




B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

Actions to start now, following adoption of this plan and within about 2 years:

Regulate short-term rentals
Allow for accessory dwelling units

Establish partnerships for a sweat equity program
e Use, promote, and build on existing resources

REGULATE SHORT-TERM RENTALS

Overview

Regulating short-term rentals (STRs) was the community’s top
priority during 2023 community engagement efforts. This
action focuses on updating the municipal code to regulate
STRs, which are typically defined as a dwelling unit or portion
of a dwelling unit that is rented on a short-term basis,
typically 30 days or less. There is some confusion about the
Town code already prohibiting STRs, specifically within the
definition of a dwelling unit. Establishing clear regulations will
help address this confusion and other concerns raised by the
community.

In Paonia, there are about 30 documented STRs. Community
input received during this project identified pros and cons to
having STRs in Paonia. Pros included that STRs provide more
lodging options (e.g., for people visiting their families),
income for local businesses due to visitor spending, and
income for local STR owners. Cons included that STRs reduce
the supply of housing for the community, provide income and
profit for out-of-town STR owners, and negatively impact

Explore public-private partnerships to build Housing for the Community

Addressing Recurring Themes
Regulating STRs can benefit locals by
helping retain the supply of much
needed long-term rentals and
discouraging out-of-town
investment. This can also help
maintain community character by
regulating things important to the
community like parking. Regulating
STRs can be implemented quickly by
the Town with minimal resources, as
long as the regulations are kept
simple and easily enforceable.

Time Needed to Complete
4-6 months

Implementation: easy
Impact: medium
Timing of Impact: short term

community and neighborhood character and residents’ quality of life.

As part of this project, the consultant team will deliver a first draft of proposed code revisions to
regulate STRs. This first draft will be based on community input received throughout this project and the

Regulate short-term rentals! This is
the most-obvious, biggest bang-for-
buck tool n our kit.

- Open House participant

recommended.

consultant teams’ expertise. This draft will jump-start
implementation of this action and can be revised

through the Town’s typical process for code revisions.
Developing clear and easily enforceable regulations is

An additional fee or tax on STRs, like a regulatory fee or excise tax, could be considered but should not
delay adopting regulations. Establishing a new fee or tax requires ample time to analyze the possibilities

(which may be limited due to Paonia being a statutory town), conduct legal review, and seek and obtain

voter approval if a tax is desired.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 58

82




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

Implementation

83

Step Lead/Partner
1. Discuss and gather feedback on the first draft of proposed code revisions to Town staff, board,
regulate STRs as delivered by the consultants. This could entail the planning PC/citizens

commission (PC) holding a public meeting, the Town hosting an open house, or
other methods determined to be the most productive way to deliberate and
collect community input.

2. Refine the first draft of proposed code revisions based on feedback. Prepare Town staff

an ordinance to amend the municipal code.

3. Go through the Town’s process to review and consider an ordinance to revise | Town staff, board,

the municipal code. Edit the ordinance as needed. PC/citizens

4. Finalize and adopt the ordinance. Town staff, board

5. Publicize the newly adopted regulations to the community, and consider Town/STR

allowing a little time to gain compliance. operators

6. Monitor and enforce the new regulations. Town
Examples

There are a lot of different ways to regulate STRs. The Colorado Municipal League published a
table with communities’ regulatory approaches to STRs that can be found online:
https://www.cml.org/docs/default-source/uploadedfiles/issues/economic-development/short-
term-rental-ordinance-matrix.pdf?sfvrsn=96264f69. When looking at other communities’
regulations, consider the recurring themes in this document to be sure any new regulations help

achieve the community’s overall desires. Also consider the cost and enforceability of the
regulations.

The Colorado Lawyer published a comprehensive article in April 2022 with an overview of STR
regulations in Colorado: https://cl.cobar.org/features/the-state-of-short-term-rentals-in-
colorado/.

Local Housing Solutions published a brief on regulating STRs:
https://localhousingsolutions.org/housing-policy-library/regulating-short-term-rentals/.

III

Educate the community through a “rent local” campaign—partner with local organizations and
businesses to communicate the need for and benefits of renting units to locals rather than as an
STR.

In the future, and if funding is available, consider incentivizing the conversion of STRs to long-
term rentals. These programs require ample funding but often result in many conversions. The
Town of Winter Park runs an incentive program: https://wpgov.com/stf/. Summit County also
has an incentive program: https://www.summitcountyco.gov/1461/Lease-to-Locals.

A regulatory fee on STRs could be considered like in Breckenridge, Pagosa Springs, and Estes
Park. This can generate funding for affordable housing but is most effective in areas with a lot of
tourism and STRs. The fee amount needs to be based on the relationship between STRs and
employment generation that leads to the need for affordable housing, which a study will help
determine.

An excise tax could also be implemented on STR stays like in Ouray (15%), Crested Butte (7.5%),
and Telluride (2.5%). Note that these examples are all home rule municipalities and Paonia is a

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 59



https://www.cml.org/docs/default-source/uploadedfiles/issues/economic-development/short-term-rental-ordinance-matrix.pdf?sfvrsn=96264f69
https://www.cml.org/docs/default-source/uploadedfiles/issues/economic-development/short-term-rental-ordinance-matrix.pdf?sfvrsn=96264f69
https://cl.cobar.org/features/the-state-of-short-term-rentals-in-colorado/
https://cl.cobar.org/features/the-state-of-short-term-rentals-in-colorado/
https://localhousingsolutions.org/housing-policy-library/regulating-short-term-rentals/
https://wpgov.com/stf/
https://www.summitcountyco.gov/1461/Lease-to-Locals

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

statutory town, which may limit taxing options. Any tax increase must be approved by the voters
through an election. This is most productive in areas with high tourism and a lot of STRs.

Resource Needs and Funding

e Town staff, board, planning commission, and attorney time will be needed to prepare and adopt
an ordinance. Town staff time will also be needed for ongoing monitoring and enforcement.

e The Town may choose to engage a consultant to assist with drafting and refining the code
language.

e Consider implementing a licensing fee that will offset all costs of administering the STR
regulations, including staff time to review, monitor, and enforce code compliance. A licensing
fee does not require a study or voter approval; it should simply be informed by the staff time
and resources needed to implement the regulations.

e STR operators should already be paying 9.5% sales tax and the 2% Delta County lodging tax.
Ensure these existing taxes are being remitted.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 60

84




ALLOW FOR ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS

Overview

Allowing accessory dwelling units (ADUs) was identified as
another top priority by the community. Typically, an ADU is
defined as a dwelling unit that is clearly incidental and
subordinate to a primary dwelling unit and located on the
same property. They are often smaller dwelling units that are
rented to smaller households at more affordable prices. In
Paonia, there are currently both historical and non-
conforming ADUs.

To allow for ADUs, the Town will need to modify the
municipal code to establish clear parameters regarding where
and under what conditions they are allowed. The Town will
want to ensure they contribute to the housing stock while still
maintaining the community’s character. The Town will also
need to sort out if an ADU will require new taps and/or tap
fees.

As part of this project, the consultant team will deliver a first
draft of proposed code revisions to allow for ADUs. This first
draft will be based on community input received throughout
this project and the consultant teams’ expertise. This first
draft will jump-start implementation of this action and can be
revised through the Town’s typical process for code
revisions. The regulations should be kept clear and
easily enforceable.

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

Addressing Recurring Themes
ADUs can help local owners build
equity while providing local renters
more affordably priced rentals.
ADUs can also help maintain
community character by adding
housing units to the community
slowly, without overwhelming the
existing building fabric. Items
important to maintaining
community character can also be
regulated. This could be
implemented quickly by the Town
without significant outside
resources.

Time Needed to Complete
4-6 months

Implementation: easy
Impact: medium
Timing of Impact: long term

. Wlore apartments or accessory dwelling
- uwits for singles, low-income folks and

' elderly are veeded.

- — Open House participant

Implementation

85

Step Lead/Partner
1. Discuss and gather feedback on the first draft of proposed code revisions to Town staff, board,
allow for ADUs as delivered by the consultants. This could entail the PC holding a | PC/ citizens

public meeting, the Town hosting an open house, or other methods determined

to be the most productive way to deliberate and collect community input.

2. Refine the first draft of proposed code revisions based on feedback. Prepare Town staff

an ordinance to amend the municipal code.

3. Go through the Town’s process to review and consider an ordinance to revise
the municipal code. Edit the ordinance as needed.

4. Finalize and adopt the ordinance.

Town staff, board,
PC/citizens
Town staff, board

5. Publicize the newly adopted regulations to the community, and consider Town
allowing a little time to gain compliance.
6. Monitor and enforce the new regulations. Town

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 61




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

Examples

There are a lot of different approaches to allow for and regulate ADUs. For example:
https://accessorydwellings.org/adu-regulations-by-city/. Consider the recurring themes in this
document when making decisions on regulations. Also consider the cost and enforceability of
the regulations.

The Town may consider promoting the ability to have or build an ADU through an informational
handout that can be on the Town’s website and provided to anyone interested. Be prepared to
share the need and benefits of ADUs and explain the regulations through meetings with
property owners, builders, and banks. See Grand Junction’s ADU Toolkit for an example:
https://www.gjcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/8907/ADU-Toolkit?bidld=.

The ADU Amnesty program in Durango aimed to catalog the existing ADUs in Town, legal or not.
The city asked owners to come forward with their existing ADUs to get logged into the city’s
inventory. Owners were asked to pay a fee and sign an affidavit confirming the unit was safe for
human occupancy. In return, the city issued an acknowledgement to confirm that the unit could
exist and be used.

Tap fees for ADUs vary across communities: in Ridgway they are waived if the ADU is not used as
an STR, in Salida tap fees are 40% of the standard single-family fee, and in Durango tap fees are
50% of the standard single-family fee.

Partnerships could be created with organizations like Habitat for Humanity and Fertile Edge
Community Land Trust to get ADUs built. This can be a shared-equity model, which is typically a
partnership between a homeowner and an entity such as one of the above non-profit
organizations where the non-profit subsidizes construction costs and shares equity in the
property and/or its use for a defined period. The homeowner may contribute time, money,
existing assets, or a commitment to rent the ADU at an affordable rate. See CLTPlusOne of
Durham Community Land Trust (https://dclt.org/current-project/clt-plus-one/) or Y-Help of
YardHomes (https://vardhomesmn.com/y-help) for examples.

In the future, if funding is available, consider implementing something like Durango’s “ADUs for
Locals” rebate program. This program provides 10 grants of $8,000 for homeowners to build or
legalize an existing non-conforming ADU. The ADUs must then be leased to an individual or
family working at least 32 hours a week for a business or organization in La Plata County and
must be leased for 6 months or longer. The unit must also remain as a long-term rental. For
more information: https://www.durangogov.org/850/ADU-Program-Information.

Resource Needs and Funding

Town Staff, board, planning commission, and attorney time will be needed to prepare and adopt
an ordinance. Staff time will also be needed for ongoing monitoring and enforcement.

The Town may choose to engage a consultant to assist with drafting and refining the code
language.

Consider adjusting the Town’s permit fee schedule to cover the administrative expense of
monitoring and enforcement of any new ADU regulations.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 62

86



https://accessorydwellings.org/adu-regulations-by-city/
https://www.gjcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/8907/ADU-Toolkit?bidId=
https://dclt.org/current-project/clt-plus-one/
https://yardhomesmn.com/y-help
https://www.durangogov.org/850/ADU-Program-Information

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

EXPLORE PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS TO BUILD HOUSING FOR THE

COMMUNITY

Overview

This priority action focuses on exploring public-private
partnerships to build more Housing for the Community in
Paonia. Public-private partnerships to build housing typically
involve the Town partnering with a carefully selected
developer who has experience developing affordable housing.
It is vital for Paonia to clearly outline the terms and conditions
with which it would enter in a partnership and what the Town
is prepared to contribute. This may include contributions of
land, fee waivers, density bonuses, and/or leveraging grant
opportunities.

When considering a public-private partnership to build
housing, it will be important to reference the Housing Needs
Assessment in Part 1 of this report to ensure the project helps
meet the housing need in Paonia, including the following:

e A more diverse housing stock to provide households
with housing choices as their life circumstances
change.

e Smaller homes for seniors, first-time home
buyers, and renters.

e More rentals to increase the share of renter-
occupied homes in town.

e Below market rate housing.

Addressing Recurring Themes
Building Housing for the Community
will add housing units to the current
stock. With this type of partnership,
the public sector sets the vision,
ensuring the project serves locals
and maintains community character.
Planning for such a project could be
started as the water tap moratorium
gets sorted.

Time Needed to Complete
At least 2 years, likely 3-6 years

Implementation: difficult
Impact: high
Timing of Impact: long term

Dedicate housing to mivimum wage
employees who work in the town.
— Open House participant

The information contained in Part 1 may also help determine the type, size, and price of new housing.

Implementation

Public-private partnerships vary significantly depending on the exact project. It is not uncommon for
communities to leverage surplus public land for affordable housing projects. Should the Town decide to
leverage surplus Town property for this purpose, it could be done in a few ways, including a simple
transfer of property or a long-term ground lease in exchange for affordable housing units. The Town
could also complete entitlements, since providing certainty in a development project can be worth a lot

to a developer.

The table below outlines a sample approach that is described in more detail in Section F — Potential

Housing Development.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 63

87




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

Step

Lead/Partner

88

1. Develop a vision and consider what the community is willing to bring to the
partnership (land, infrastructure, etc.).

Town/ community

2. Select a site and gain site control.

Town

3. Create a conceptual site design grounded in the original vision along with
physical and regulatory opportunities and constraints.

Town/ community

4. Identify a developer through a request for qualifications (RFQ) process.

Town

5. Finalize development details—partnerships, site and building design,
agreements, financing, etc.

Town/all partners

6. Groundbreaking celebration to mark the start of construction.

Town/community,
all partners

7. Project construction and compliance monitoring.

Town, developer/
all partners

8. Project operations and open house.

Developer or
property manager,
Town

Examples

e The City of Craig recently used its housing authority to leverage $4.25 million in state housing

grant funding to build a 20-unit attainable housing project.

e Rural Homes is building affordable housing projects in rural Colorado, such as Pinion Park in
Norwood, a 24-unit modular housing project. Their approach focuses on low-cost capital, low-
cost construction, and donated land. For more information: https://www.ruralhomes.co/.

e The Basalt Vista project created 27 workforce homes near Basalt High School through a
partnership between Habitat for Humanity Roaring Fork Valley, Roaring Fork Schools, and Pitkin
County. Home prices were determined by family income and size and have a price appreciation
cap of 3% annually. For more information: https://habitatroaringfork.org/pages/basalt-vista.

e Habitat for Humanity Vail Valley has partnered with the Eagle County School District, who
donated land to the project. They are building 16 for-sale modular homes, mostly for local
teachers. Other partners include the Town of Eagle, Eagle County/Eagle County Housing and
Development Authority and the Department of Local Affair’s (DOLA) Division of Housing. For
more information: https://habitatvailvalley.org/2023/06/habitat-vail-valley-prepares-to-break-

ground-on-16-modular-homes-in-eagle/.

e The Anvil Mountain project near Silverton was developed by San Juan County in partnership
with the Town of Silverton and many others. Twelve income-restricted apartments were created
along with market rate lots, resulting in about 50 housing units/lots. This was developed on a
Brownfields site that was cleaned up prior to development through a partnership with San Juan
County; Colorado Brownfields Foundation; multiple state departments; the Environmental

Protection Agency; and the Bureau of Land Management.

Resource Needs and Funding

e Partnerships to develop housing require significant Town staff and board time. Ample Town

attorney time will also be required.

e For potential funding, see Section F — Potential Housing Development, below.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 64



https://www.ruralhomes.co/
https://habitatroaringfork.org/pages/basalt-vista
https://habitatvailvalley.org/2023/06/habitat-vail-valley-prepares-to-break-ground-on-16-modular-homes-in-eagle/
https://habitatvailvalley.org/2023/06/habitat-vail-valley-prepares-to-break-ground-on-16-modular-homes-in-eagle/

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

ESTABLISH PARTNERSHIP FOR SWEAT EQUITY PROGRAM

Overview

Sweat equity programs provide low-interest loans and
technical assistance to low-income homebuyers for the
construction or rehabilitation of their future home. These
programs require a large time commitment from the
homebuyer and the program administrator but result in
ownership and equity building opportunities for locals. Such
programs are typically administered by an organization with
this expertise and capital resources rather than a municipality
and typically make a slow but meaningful impact in the
community.

Just as with creating impactful public-private partnerships,
organizations administering a sweat equity program are
encouraged to reference the Housing Needs Assessment in
Part 1 of this report to inform their efforts.

Implementation

Addressing Recurring Themes
These programs help locals who
would otherwise not be able to
enter homeownership. This provides
housing security and an equity
building opportunity. Typically, the
projects are small and fit right into
the fabric of the community. The
partnership and planning work can
be completed while the water tap
moratorium gets sorted.

Time Needed to Complete
Ongoing

Implementation: easy
Impact: medium
Timing of Impact: long term

Step Lead/Partner

1. Reach out to potential partners like Habitat for Humanity Delta and Town/Habitat for

Community Rebuilds for a preliminary discussion of opportunities in Paonia. Humanity,
Community
Rebuilds

2. Follow up on any potential opportunities. Determine what role the Town Town

could take to help get a sweat-equity project built in Paonia.

Examples

e Habitat for Humanity runs the classic example of a sweat equity for homeownership program:
https://www.habitat.org/stories/what-is-sweat-equity. There are eight ways Habitat generally

accepts homeowner sweat equity including, but not limited to, preforming construction work on
their home or another home in the program, clearing debris from a building site to prepare for

new construction, working at a ReStore, preforming administrative tasks, and making lunches

for volunteers on a building site.

e Habitat for Humanity Delta, in partnership with Elevation Community Land Trust, is
rehabilitating four homes in Delta for low-income individuals or households:

https://www.hfhofdelta.com/.

e U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Mutual Self-Help Housing Technical
Assistance Grants provide funding to organizations that run sweat equity projects:

https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/mutual-self-help-

housing-technical-assistance-grants.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 65

89



https://www.habitat.org/stories/what-is-sweat-equity
https://www.hfhofdelta.com/
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/mutual-self-help-housing-technical-assistance-grants
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/mutual-self-help-housing-technical-assistance-grants

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

e Community Rebuilds based in Moab, Utah, income qualifies future homeowners with financing
partners. They also raise funds to support student interns learning about straw-bale
construction. The interns and qualified homeowners work with instructors to build their energy
efficient, low-carbon home. For more information: https://www.communityrebuilds.org/.

Resource Needs and Funding

e Town staff and/or board time will be needed for initial outreach and continued partnership.

e This action relies heavily on partners to bring resources and funding to the table along with
future homeowners to dedicate their time.

e This is a great opportunity for the community to donate their time or money directly to a
project.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 66

90



https://www.communityrebuilds.org/

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

USE, PROMOTE, AND BUILD ON EXISTING RESOURCES

Overview

This action focuses on using and promoting existing housing
resources that serve Paonia. There are a lot of resources that
local and regional organizations currently provide that are not
widely known, like housing rehabilitation and weatherization
assistance. Actively promoting these resources to be sure
locals use them would take little effort from the Town and
other partners with the potential to make major impacts. See
Appendix C — Existing Public Housing Resources for a detailed
list. For example, a local household receiving down payment
assistance to buy their first home would create housing
stability for that household and allow them to build home
equity. Local households receiving assistance with home
weatherization improvements are likely to realize a notable
reduction in monthly utility costs.

Not all existing resources need to be promoted at
once. The Town can pick which ones may serve the
highest need or be the easiest to share.

Why vot use existing resources — Delta
. Housing Authority. Don’t recreate

Addressing Recurring Themes
Existing resources can benefit locals
and assist with an array of housing-
related issues and challenges. Such
programs are already staffed and
funded, requiring minimal Town
staff time to help promote.

Time Needed to Complete
Ongoing

Implementation: easy
Impact: high
Timing of Impact: mid to long term

- [the] wheel.
- — Open House participant

Implementation
Step

Lead/Partner

91

Keep the Existing Public Housing Resources document updated, perhaps Town

annually, and make it widely available to the public—not only on the Town’s

website but also partner websites and at physical locations.

Establish and sustain relationships with the organizations providing services to

Town/CHFA, non-

Paonia and with the Colorado Housing Finance Authority (CHFA) by maintaining | profits
regular communication. Start with an initial meeting between the Town and the
organization to learn more about the services they provide and partnership
opportunities. Keep up to date with current efforts and needs.

Work with these organizations to promote their resources and services to the Town

community.
When resources allow, coordinate with these organizations to build on their
existing efforts to make an even larger impact in Paonia.

Town/non-profits

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 67




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
B. ACTIONS TO START NOW (YEARS 1-2)

Examples

See Appendix C — Existing Public Housing Resources for a detailed list.

The Delta Housing Authority serves all of Delta County, which includes Paonia. They have a
strong track record of building and managing affordable housing and currently administer 30
Housing Choice Vouchers in Paonia. If a local property owner wants to become a Housing Choice
Voucher landlord, they can coordinate with the Delta Housing Authority to do so.

Housing Resources Center of Western Colorado runs a weatherization and rehabilitation
program that the older homes in Paonia could significantly benefit from. The Town could
champion an effort in coordination with them to publicize the opportunity and even provide
technical assistance to homeowners in applying for and using the funds. The Town could
potentially find additional funding to assist even more property owners.

Counseling and educational resources are available from numerous organizations in the area
including Housing Resource Center of Western Colorado and Community Resources and Housing
Development Corporation. Share these services with citizens so they can get professional
assistance as first time homebuyers, renters, and landlords. These organizations help with
homebuyer and post-purchase education, foreclosure and default assistance, reverse mortgage
and financial capability assistance, and more.

Downpayment/mortgage assistance and rent/security deposit assistance can help locals secure
housing and begin to build equity. Community Resources and Housing Development
Corporation, USDA Rural Development, and Delta Housing Authority provide some of these
services.

CHFA provides mortgage assistance to eligible home buyers and works through participating
local banks to provide down payment assistance. Buyers are often required to complete a
financial wellness class as a requirement for assistance.

The Town could work with the Technical College of the Rockies to build upon their
Carpentry/Carpenter program and add other building trade programs. This could help
strengthen the local building trades workforce, making it easier to build in the area.

School districts in Aspen and Frisco are exploring programs in which students help build tiny
houses for educators and staff to occupy: https://coloradosun.com/2023/09/15/aspen-frisco-
tiny-homes-built-for-teachers/?mc cid=cd2ba79b18&mc eid=05dd0b8305.

Resource Needs and Funding

Many programs are already in place and funded. Some Town’s staff time and revenue could be
directed toward educational and promotional campaigns to ensure Paonia residents are fully
using existing resources. See Appendix C — Existing Public Housing Resources for details.

Local banks often have Community Reinvestment Act requirements and may help fund
promotional efforts or a local program to build on existing resources.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 68

92



https://coloradosun.com/2023/09/15/aspen-frisco-tiny-homes-built-for-teachers/?mc_cid=cd2ba79b18&mc_eid=05dd0b8305
https://coloradosun.com/2023/09/15/aspen-frisco-tiny-homes-built-for-teachers/?mc_cid=cd2ba79b18&mc_eid=05dd0b8305

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
C. ACTIONS TO START NEXT (YEARS 3-5)

C. ACTIONS TO START NEXT (YEARS 3-5)

Actions to start next, in Years 3 to 5 after adoption of this plan

e Update land use regulations to remove barriers and add flexibility
e Align community infrastructure investments

e Acquire land/bank land

UPDATE LAND USE REGULATIONS TO REMOVE BARRIERS AND ADD
FLEXIBILITY

Overview

The Town’s land use regulations control what can be built and where Time Needed to Complete
within the community. This action focuses on revising the land use 9% el renis
regulations in the municipal code to remove barriers and add

flexibility to what can be built and where. This can help allow the Implementation: moderate
market to meet the current housing demand while also adding Impact: medium
flexibility for public projects. Priority revisions include regulating STRs Timing of Impact: short to
and allowing for ADUs as described in detail above. Additional edits long term
could be made to the code to make it easier to create Housing for the
Community. Funding

e Local Planning Capacity
Multiple recent public engagement efforts have highlighted the Grant Program, DOLA
importance of updating the Town’s land use regulations. This includes e Energy and Mineral
the following: Impact Fund, DOLA

e The 2023 Town of Paonia Priorities survey (not part of this
project) identified “Municipal code rewrite — Update the Town code and resolve its flaws” as
having the highest importance or being very important.

e “Zoning rules contain barriers to affordable housing” was identified as the 6™ most pressing
issue at the community-wide open house held for this project. Many written comments from
the open house included statements about the need to update land use regulations. This was
also mentioned often during interviews conducted by the consultant team.

How to Implement

e See the first draft of proposed code revisions to allow for small square footage residential unit
size and the creation of an expedited development review process submitted by the consultant
team as part of this project. Consider taking this to the planning commission for their
recommendation to the board.

e Have community conversations around what is appropriate for the community based on the list
of potential code revisions in Section E — Land Use Regulations Review, below. Talk about each
potential revision, how it could impact housing affordability, and other potential community
impacts. Decide what topics the community wants to address and what specific regulations fit
Paonia best.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 69

93




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
C. ACTIONS TO START NEXT (YEARS 3-5)

Codes can be updated one topic at a time by existing Town staff with the help of the Town
attorney. To expedite the process and make many code revisions at once, the Town could hire a
consultant with expertise in land use codes. Using consultants with this specific expertise would
be an effective way to walk the community through the process of considering changes and
their implications to ensure they align with the community’s vision outlined in the
comprehensive plan. The Town is currently working on obtaining funding for a full code update.
When ready to amend the code, create an ordinance and schedule it for hearings as Town
regulations dictate.

Educate the community about any revised regulations and enforce them.

Examples

See Section E — Land Use Regulations Review, below, for a detailed review of the Town'’s
municipal code and consultant-recommended edits to remove barriers and add flexibility
related to affordable housing.

With the help of state funding, multiple Colorado communities are undertaking updates to their
land use codes with a focus on housing affordability. This includes Cortez
(https://www.cortezco.gov/870/Land-Use-Code-Update), Delta
(https://cityofdelta.net/cd/page/municipal-code-update-building-subdivision-zoning), and
Grand Junction (https://gjspeaks.org/projects/zdcupdate).

Allow for small dwelling units. This was mentioned a lot during community engagement efforts,
specifically the desire for tiny homes. Remove any restrictions on minimum house size and
consider allowing for tiny homes and houses as regulated by DOLA.

Allow gentle density, like allowing duplexes on lots that currently allow just one single-family
unit or allow for a few more units on multifamily lots. This not only provides an opportunity for

the Town to protect agricultural land surrounding the Town but also promotes a sustainable
development pattern that is more affordable for the Town to maintain over time. It is important
to underscore the fact that density will be added gradually over time rather than all at once.
Consider allowing multifamily housing like what exists in town today (e.g., the Maple Leaf
Apartments, apartments on Onarga Avenue, and Creek Vista Senior Living Apartments).

Revise parking regulations as follows:

»  Reduce parking required for certain uses or in certain areas, like multifamily development
and/or residential uses downtown.

»  Reestablish a fee-in-lieu program where one can pay a fee into a fund for parking rather
than providing the parking on-site.

Consider adding a density bonus or other incentives while looking at all other code revisions.
While adding a density bonus is included in Section D — Future Actions, below, it could be much
more efficient to consider it at the same time as other code revisions rather than on its own. It
may also affect how the community wants to adjust other regulations.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 70

94



https://www.cortezco.gov/870/Land-Use-Code-Update
https://cityofdelta.net/cd/page/municipal-code-update-building-subdivision-zoning
https://gjspeaks.org/projects/zdcupdate

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
C. ACTIONS TO START NEXT (YEARS 3-5)

ALIGN COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS

Overview

This action focuses on aligning the Town’s infrastructure investments
with potential affordable housing projects. While the Town plans and

Time Needed to Complete

Ongoing

completes multiple infrastructure projects to lift the water tap
moratorium, there is an opportunity to include some minor additional Implementation: moderate
improvements to serve potential future affordable housing. This Impact: medium
approach is likely to save money in the long run due to efficiencies Timing of Impact: short to
with contracting, mobilization, and more. long term
How to Implement Funding

e Complete a quick study to overlay planned infrastructure * Proposition 123 funding

improvements with opportunity sites for Housing for the for infrastructure

improvements, DOLA
e Energy and Mineral
Impact Fund, DOLA

Community. Identify where infrastructure gaps may exist.
Consider filling those infrastructure gaps during planned
projects. For example, this could include extending a main
water/sewer line just a bit further than otherwise planned.
The Town and anyone exploring the creation of Housing for the Community should maintain
regular communication to coordinate infrastructure plans and needs.

Examples

If a clear opportunity site for affordable housing is identified, coordinate any utility work near
the site to extend main utility lines and/or add taps for future use. This example would need to
consider the status of the water tap moratorium.

Create a funding agreement with a property owner to install taps for future use while main lines
are replaced. This example would need to consider the status of the water tap moratorium.

See the Town of Buena Vista’s new Water Allocation Policy:
http://buenavistaco.gov/2242/Water-Department. This policy allocates the Town’s available
and usable water rights to align with community goals and needs. This policy specifically
allocates a significant percentage of water to various types of affordable housing with the intent
to incentivize the development of these needed housing types.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 71

95



http://buenavistaco.gov/2242/Water-Department

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
C. ACTIONS TO START NEXT (YEARS 3-5)

ACQUIRE LAND/BANK LAND

Overview

Acquiring or banking land for the eventual development of affordable

Time Needed to Complete

housing limits upward appreciation of the land to help reduce the cost Ongoing

of future dwelling units developed on that site. It can also allow the

community to have some control over future development since the Implementation: easy
goal will be to leverage the land in exchange for affordable housing. Impact: high

Timing of Impact: long term

There are a few ways the Town could approach acquiring land or

banking land. The first would be to set aside current Town-owned Funding

property or find a site to purchase for this purpose. Another approach e Proposition 123 funding
would be for the Town to partner with a community land trust that for land banking, CHFA
can purchase or be granted land to steward for affordable housing. (may open again as early
The third way a Town can approach this is to form a land bank, which as 2024)

is not recommend for Paonia at this time. e Donations

While this action was not identified as one to start now, the opportunity to acquire land does not
happen often. Should an opportunity to acquire suitable land for housing present itself, either directly or
jointly with a partner or partners, the Town should strongly consider prioritizing such an investment
given the potential for long-term benefits.

How to Implement

Create and maintain a partnership with the local Fertile Edge Community Land Trust and/or
another land trust interested in working in Paonia. Request to have a member of the Town
board serve on the organization’s board of directors and maintain regular communication.
Identify potential sites in Paonia that could be used for affordable housing. If it is a Town-owned
property, consider setting the property aside for that purpose. If it is not a Town-owned
property, engage in informal discussions with property owners regarding their willingness to
sell. Discussions should be handled carefully to not inflate the market and discourage private
activity.

Acquire property through voluntary donations, grants, or funds raised by the community land
trust. Seek to leverage grant opportunities that the Town may qualify for.

Once land is acquired, it can then be leveraged with private or non-profit developers in
exchange for affordable housing units. The community land trust can be involved in the
development, or a public-private partnership can be formed to do the development.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 72

96




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
C. ACTIONS TO START NEXT (YEARS 3-5)

Examples

Fertile Edge Community Land Trust is a new and local non-profit that is currently finalizing their
organization and setup. They will be able to own land, develop housing, and provide access to
affordable housing (often ownership) and equity building opportunities. In partnership with this
community land trust, the Town of Paonia submitted a letter of intent in the summer of 2023 to
access Proposition 123 funds to acquire land, but was not placed on the list inviting them to
apply. The community land trust will continue to track Proposition 123 that has funding
specifically for land banking and will soon benefit from tax exemptions passed via House Bill 23-
1184.

The Town of Ridgway acquired a privately owned site that was found to meet their vision for an
affordable housing project. The site is now home to 30 affordable units for low and very low
income households.

The Chaffee Housing Trust purchased land from the Town of Salida to build six units of
affordable housing: https://www.chaffeehousing.org/.

The Moab Area Community Land Trust received a donation of land in 2017 that is currently
being developed into a large development of permanently affordable housing called Arroyo
Crossing: https://www.moabclt.org/arroyo-crossing.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 73

97



https://www.chaffeehousing.org/
https://www.moabclt.org/arroyo-crossing

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
D. FUTURE ACTIONS (YEARS 5+)

D. FUTURE ACTIONS (YEARS 5+)

The following actions may be considered in the future. They are presented in order of priority, but
implementation of these actions should be considered as opportunities or needs arise.

Future Action

Explanation

Considerations

Update Negotiate affordable housing as | e This can ensure that any additions to the Town
Annexation part of annexation agreements. help with affordable housing.
Policy The Town has discretion in e This is only effective if annexations are
negotiations. happening, which will most likely be limited
while the water tap moratorium is in place. The
current comprehensive planning efforts should
discuss if the community even desires outward
growth and where.
Create a Many action items need It can take a community years to determine
Dedicated funding to execute. Start to what finding might work and to get it in place.
Funding determine a funding source It is good to start this conversation sooner
Stream that could work for the rather than later.
community and get that going This will require research to determine what
through something like a sources could be used and for what purpose,
regulatory fee or a tax. The like subsidizing infrastructure costs, land
funds could go toward what the banking, building, etc.
community desires. This may have to go to a formal vote of the
citizens.
This could be similar to the Occupation Tax
created in 2021 on marijuana to help fund
infrastructure improvements.
Create a Allow for additional density for Bonuses must be large enough to entice

Density Bonus

affordable housing projects that
meet defined criteria.

development yet small enough for livability and
compatibility.

This can be an incentive to build just one or a
few more units.

Create a Deed
Restriction
Policy

Establish template deed
restriction language and 1)
Require a certain percent of
deed restricted units for all
planned unit development
requests, and/or 2) Promote
voluntary deed restrictions in
which one could add a deed
restriction to their own
property.

Having the same/similar deed restriction
language simplifies compliance monitoring.
Can make deed restrictions self-executing,
requiring little staff time.

Iltem 1: Sets expectations for future
developments and ensures any growth
contributes to the provision of affordable units.
Only helps if development is happening.

Item 2: A great way to promote and encourage
residents to leave a community legacy. See
Town of Mountain Village’s, YES Deed
Restriction Program:
https://townofmountainvillage.com/communit
y/housing/yes-deed-restricted-program/

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 74



Future Action

Explanation

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
D. FUTURE ACTIONS (YEARS 5+)

Considerations

99

Establish a
Housing "One
Stop Shop"
Hub

Create and maintain a housing
resource hub that can provide
information on programs,
resources, available housing,
roommate matching, and more.
May assist with housing search
and/or provide education and
counseling. Could be online or a
physical location.

This can make a big impact without a lot of
resources.

It requires informed staff and time.

This could match seniors with roommates to
help them age in place, or match employers
who can provide housing with workers who
need housing.

The new Existing Public Housing Resources
document would help inform this effort.
This could be run by the Town if resources are
allocated or by a non-profit.

Obtain Right of
First Refusal on
Housing

Town or non-profits secure a
right of first refusal on
“naturally occurring affordable
housing” properties, so when
they are ready to be sold, the
entity can purchase the
property and preserve it as
affordable.

This can help avoid outside investors buying up
affordable properties as well as reduce short-
term rental creation.

It requires a lot of funds to make the initial
purchase.

This is more appropriate for a non-profit to do,
like a community land trust or Habitat for
Humanity.

Allow for Fee
Deferrals

Allow for builders/developers
of truly affordable housing to
pay fees/taxes at a later time
rather than up front.

Deferred fees are typically due any time before
a certificate of occupancy is issued so the Town
retains leverage to collect payments.

This can change the Town’s cash flow but
should not impact revenue.

This can reduce cash needed at the start of a
project and make it more feasible to
undertake.

Allow for Fee
Reimburse-
ment or Waiver

For defined affordable housing
projects, waive fees or
reimburse people for their
building permit fees,
water/sewer tap fees (once
moratorium is lifted), or other
fees. Can be in part or whole.

This is often applied to incentivize
development of affordable units, typically with
a deed restriction or some mechanism to keep
the unit affordable into the future.

This improves the financial feasibility of the
developer/builder’s project.

This reduces the Town's revenue, or even costs
the Town, which could be difficult given the
costly infrastructures improvements needed to
lift the water tap moratorium.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 75




E. LAND USE REGULATIONS REVIEW

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
E. LAND USE REGULATIONS REVIEW

Local land use policies set the stage for what housing can be built within the community and where. Per
the awarded scope of work, the consultant team conducted a review of the Town’s municipal code and
interviewed code users to ascertain how the land use and regulatory environment may be creating
barriers to housing production. The following table contains consultant-recommended edits to the land
use regulations that would better facilitate the creation of Housing for the Community in Paonia. Any
changes to the municipal code must go through the Town’s established process. During that process, the
community can decide which of the below recommendations to make and how.

Note that it is good practice to update land use regulations as a first step to implement a new or
updated comprehensive plan. This way, the code can be edited to better align with the goals and

policies of the plan.

Code Section

Recommended
Edits

Explanation

100

Ch. 16-18, overall

Clean up the code
to make it easier to
use

Check and update all cross references, reorganize for
better flow (e.g., all processes in one location), move
applicable regulations to Town standards for
infrastructure, add a link to the referenced fee schedule.

Ch. 16-18
Enforcement

Modify to more
easily enforce

Clean up violations for Ch. 16-18. It appears as if any
violation is a municipal misdemeanor, which is either a
fine up to $2,650, up to 1 year in jail, or both. Allow for
official notice to be given with a timeline to cure, then
assess a fine commensurate with the violation and/or a
stop work order. Establishing a fine schedule that
increases by day can be helpful in gaining compliance.

Chapter 16 Zoning

16-1-100
Definitions

Revise building
height definition

Consider measuring height to the midpoint on a pitched
roof. The current definition could encourage flat roofs
rather than pitched roofs, which better match the
character of older homes in Paonia.

Revise dwelling,
multiple-family
definition

Expand to more than just 3 units, or add other residential
building types to the definitions and use tables to allow
for more variety of housing types by right.

Revise dwelling
unit definition

Use the same definition adopted with the International
Building Code, “A single unit providing complete,
independent living facilities for one or more persons,
including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating,
cooking and sanitation.”

If the definition is not replaced, remove “on a monthly or
longer basis” from the existing definition as regulations do
not belong in definitions and this has caused confusion as
to the regulation of STRs.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 76




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
E. LAND USE REGULATIONS REVIEW

101

Recommended
Code Section Edits Explanation
Revise family Expand to include more than just 3 unrelated individuals.
definition This is restrictive to roommates wanting to rent a larger

single-family home, which is mostly what is available in
Paonia.

Revise lot line

Remove the last sentence that constrains corner lots to

definition larger setbacks.

Refine These terms are defined later in Ch. 16 and 18. Reconcile
manufactured and update all definitions of these terms and related
building, terms and locate with all other definitions.
manufactured

home,

manufactured

housing unit, and
mobile home
definitions

Delete rooming
unit definition

It does not appear to be used in the code anywhere so
there is no need to define it.

16-2-10 Zoning
districts

Consider removing
zoning districts not
on the zoning map

Estate Residential (E-1), Mobile Home Park Subdivision
(MH, MH1, MH2), and Industrial (I-2) districts are not on
the zoning map. Once an updated comprehensive plan is
adopted, consider removing these districts if they are not
desired in the future and add districts that are desired.
Keep in mind that the Mobile Home Park districts may
provide opportunities for affordable housing and other
higher density districts can help with the cost of housing.

Zoning map

Update zoning
map

Most properties are zoned R-1. Consider changing some
to R-2 to allow for gentle density. Properties zoned R-3
are mostly small lots where multifamily housing would be
very difficult to develop. This indirectly prohibits
multifamily—thus affordable—housing. Once an updated
comprehensive plan is adopted, consider rezoning
properties to meet the community’s vision.

16-3-20 Schedule
of uses, residential
districts

Allow more
residential uses in
more residential
zones

For example, allow duplexes in R-1, allow multifamily by
right in R-2, and allow multifamily 6+ units by right in R-3.
Currently any residential development of more than 6
units is not allowed by right anywhere in Town. Also
consider defining more residential use types, like
cohousing, and allowing for those by right in many
districts.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 77




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
E. LAND USE REGULATIONS REVIEW

102

Recommended
Code Section Edits Explanation
16-3-30 Schedule Add flexibility Allow for smaller lot sizes in all districts for all uses.

of requirements,
residential districts

Consider using one front setback requirement per zone,
rather than having different setbacks based on the street
frontage classification. Consider reducing setbacks for all
residential districts. Reduce minimum lot widths. Remove
minimum lot coverage.

If regulations are not necessary to preserve community
character, increased flexibility can improve affordability.
Let the building code regulate building spacing and other
safety concerns.

16-3-40 Average
lot area

Reduce minimums
to add flexibility
for smaller units

This is a great option but reduce the minimums in this
section to allow for more flexibility.

16-3-70 Schedule
of uses,
commercial and
industrial districts

Expand by right
residential uses in
C-1and C-2

Allow dwellings as part of a business use and multiple
family dwellings, especially if part of a mixed-use
development. Residential uses in upper floors should be
encouraged.

16-5 Planned Unit
Development
(PUD)

Allow for more
flexibility

PUDs are supposed to allow for more flexibility than
existing regulations. This section seems more prescriptive
than standard regulations. Consider removing detailed
standards from this section and if desired, move them to
subdivisions and/or Town specifications. Some could even
go in future design standards or guidelines.

Allow for more density than permitted by right.

16-5-10(a)

Allow for smaller
projects

Consider allowing for PUDs on lots smaller than 5 acres.

16-5-330

Remove spacing
requirements

Remove spacing requirements and allow the building code
to regulate it.

16-5-240(c)(13)
and 16-5-410(2)a

Refine references
to low- and
moderate-income
housing

Edit requirement in 16-5-240(c)(13) to show it only if
required as part of the PUD.

Edit 16-5-410(2)a to explain that, if required, the provision
applies.

16-5-530(f) and (h)

Common and
private open space

Consider reducing the required 20% open space
requirement. Consider reducing or removing the private
open space requirement.

16-6-10 Off-street
parking spaces
required

Reduce parking
requirements

Consider 1 rather than 1.5 for efficiency/one bed, and 2
spaces for all other residential units, rather than basing it
on number of bedrooms. Consider further reductions
downtown.

16-6-20 | Allow for shared When uses have different parking demand times, consider
parking allowing shared parking, like offices and residential.
16-6-40 | Allow off-site The provision exists for businesses uses. Consider
parking for expanding to allow for residential uses in downtown or
residential uses commercial districts.
downtown

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 78




Code Section

Recommended
Edits

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
E. LAND USE REGULATIONS REVIEW

Explanation

103

16-6-50 | Re-create the Consider revisiting and reestablishing the parking fund to
parking fund allow for a fee to be paid in lieu of providing parking
downtown.

16-6-60 | Add flexibility Expand exception to allow additional residential use types
to not have to hard surface their parking areas, like maybe
up to 6 units.

Increase the number of spaces in a parking area that
trigger landscaping requirements from 6 to maybe 20. Or
only require landscaping of parking areas for non-
residential uses.
16-8 Update and Revise and reconcile regulations with other parts of code
Manufactured/ reconcile various (e.g., definitions and the newly adopted 18-5), as well as

mobile home
requirements and
regulations

related regulations
throughout the
code

DOLA’s processes and regulations for manufactured/tiny
homes and houses. Allow for state-inspected residential
housing anywhere residential uses are allowed. If certain
design standards within these regulations and similar
regulations throughout the code are found to be
necessary and important to the community, apply those
to all residential development.

16-8-240 and 250

Add flexibility

Allow for mobile home park subdivisions on properties
smaller than 4 acres and allow more density than 7 units
per acre.

16-8-330

Add flexibility

Only require two direct access points to a public road
when over a certain number of units, like 25. Allows
internal circulation roads to be private driveways and not
be constructed to public road standards.

16-8-400

Update and
reconcile

Reconcile definitions and allowances for manufactured
housing.

16-11-30 Renting
of rooms

Delete

Consider removing this section completely. This is difficult
for the Town to enforce and is not necessary for the Town
to regulate.

16-11-60
Requirements for
accessory buildings
and uses

Add flexibility

Do not add larger setbacks or more restrictions on
accessory buildings; this will be especially pertinent if
allowing for ADUs.

Reconcile this section with 18-13 Accessory Buildings,
Structures and Uses.

Chapter 17 Subdivision

17-3-40 Dedication
of land for public
use

Increase trigger for
land dedication

Rather than requiring for all subdivisions resulting in 1 or
more dwelling or lot, increase that number to something
like 10. Also consider if the Town has the capacity to take
care of more land for public use.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 79




Code Section

Recommended
Edits

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
E. LAND USE REGULATIONS REVIEW

Explanation

104

Chapter 18 Building Regulations

18-5-40 Remove minimum | Let the zoning code regulate lot size for mobile and
lot size modular homes and consider reducing minimum lot sizes
as stated above.
18-12-10 Add option to live | Consider adding a temporary use to include owner

Temporary uses in RV while occupancy of an RV/5™ wheel/full-service camper on-site
building for up to 1 year during construction of the owner’s
dwelling unit on the same site.
Misc.
7-7-30 Establish a limit on | Consider adding a limit to the total number of dogs and/or

dogs/cats

cats that can be on one property. With potentially
increasing density in Town, concentration of domestic
animals can become an issue.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 80




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

SAMPLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Possible Town Roles

Housing development is a long and challenging process. A project usually takes about 2 years from
concept to occupancy, assuming no unforeseen issues arise. For a small town like Paonia, when
contemplating where the community can invest its limited resources to support the growth of new
Housing for the Community, it is important to first understand the general real estate development
process. See the image below for a quick overview.

The Town can take a variety of roles in the development of Housing for the Community. There are
generally four main roles the Town can play:

1. The Town could take a regulatory approach and create a flexible land use code allowing for
more housing types and uses. Under this approach, the Town is seeking to create the best
possible economic conditions for private development to meet the market needs. Note: this
approach is identified as an action in this Plan.

2. The Town could also take an incentive approach by identifying desired housing development
outcomes and providing incentives to make it more desirable or feasible to build. Incentives can
take many forms, including a density bonus, fee reimbursements/waivers, and fast track
processing. Note: creating a density bonus and allowing for fee reimbursement or waivers are
identified in this Plan as actions to consider in the future.

3. The Town could develop housing directly. Acting as the developer is the most challenging role
the Town could play. Given the Town'’s size, staff capacity, and other pressing issues, this role is
not recommended at this time.

4. The Town could be a land partner. The Town’s main role using a land partnership approach
would be to leverage existing Town-owned property for new housing development.
Alternatively, the Town could identify and buy a suitable site, or gain site control through a

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 81

105




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

contract with another public entity to market and develop the site in partnership or on behalf of
the organization. Site control is the first step in any development project. The Town can then
contribute its land through a partnership agreement to incentivize and facilitate new housing
construction. This is a suitable role for the Town, given its current land holdings and its limited
capacity.

Steps for a Land Partnership Approach

The following steps are based on using the land partnership approach, whereby the Town’s contribution
to a housing development is the land/property. The use of this approach mitigates the front-end risk to
private developers who like to avoid lengthy or costly negotiations to acquire land.

Using this approach, the community can seek to meet its housing goals without having to act as the
developer. It is important to recognize that while this approach can be less risky, the Town will need to
commit staff time, including legal services and some land planning.

The following steps are presented in an order that is common for private development, but are not
exhaustive. The Colorado Affordable Housing Developer’s Guide provides additional details and
considerations for development of affordable housing: https://developers-guide.chfainfo.com. Housing
development is an iterative process that requires constant refining and revisiting. The iterative nature of
development will become evident as the first three steps are worked through. Also know that site
constraints or cost may limit the ability to achieve the full vision. It is important to remain flexible
throughout the process. There are many variables that can change along the way, such as a spike in

interest rates or increases in the cost of lumber.

1. Develop a Vision

Establish a vision that answers the question, “What does success look like?” This should include
programmatic goals and areas where the Town is willing to play a key role, like providing land. It is
important to commit to something as either an official policy, or an approach that communicates what
the community is willing to support. Articulating a clear vision will assist in attracting a good developer.

During this project, the following development attributes For Sale vs. For Rent

were identified that may assist in more clearly establishing When considering supporting a

the Town’s vision. housing project, keep in mind that the
ability to finance a project plays a
critical role in its success. Having a mix
of for-sale and for-rent units in the

e Upto 35 units
e Smaller scale development on well-designed sites

that is consistent with the local building character same project can complicate the
e A mix of for-rent and for-sale housing units financing, making the development
e Preferably a mix of incomes and home sizes, challenging. Generally, it is
including smaller homes for one- and two-person recommended to choose one or the
households other based on the site.

2. Select a Site

In this example, the assumption is that existing Town-owned property is used (Town has site control).
Consider the following when selecting a site:

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 82

106



https://developers-guide.chfainfo.com/

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

e Review the site’s zoning, infrastructure, topography, and other constraints to ensure the site
could accommodate the vision, or at least get close to achieving the vision.

»  Note: later in the project the developer will perform a detailed feasibility analysis, although
the Town should be prepared to assist. This may include providing a utility map, topographic
map, list of required public improvements, and fee estimate (if possible).

e Having an appraisal done is useful, but they can be expensive and they expire.

3. Create a Conceptual Site Design

Complete a preliminary conceptual design grounded by the original vision that accounts for the site’s
physical and regulatory opportunities and constraints. The design doesn’t need to be complicated but
should indicate the layout, number of units, and infrastructure. Consider the following when creating a
conceptual site design:

e The Town can do something as simple as printing out a map of the site and sketching a concept.
If a larger site is selected, consider completing a master plan for the full site. It is good practice
to include the community leadership in conceptual site design efforts to the extent practicable.

e This could be done in-house, by a consultant, or through a program like University Technical
Assistance described in the Funding for Development section below.

e ltisimportant to keep conceptual site design plans grounded in market reality. Including
additional items like parks, trails, greenspace, and other amenities is nice but they cost money
and impact project feasibility.

e Approach the building(s) design with cost in mind, especially when building affordable units.
Attractive affordable housing units exist across the state, but some features are more expensive
than others. Scale and replicability are important to keeping costs down. The Town may need to
consider compromises to the vision to ensure project affordability.

e [tisimportant to have a market study to support the vision and design. A private developer will
likely have to complete their own market study to satisfy the requirements of their lenders. This
is a normal expense that is built into their financial plan. Part 1 — Housing Needs Assessment will
provide a solid foundation for such a study.

4. ldentify a Developer

Real estate development is difficult, and construction can be even more difficult and stressful. It is
important to determine who the project developer will be since in this land partnership approach they
will be the ones to hire the contractors and obtain financing. The two common approaches to find a
developer are requests for qualifications (RFQs) and requests for proposals (RFPs). Keep in mind that the
Town’s procurement rules need to be adhered to regardless of which approach is used.

Consider using an RFQ instead of an RFP. Too often communities load RFPs with requests for site plans,
sketches, and financial plans. This costs a developer time and money with no assurances that they will
be awarded the project. Good developers usually have numerous projects in the queue and are
reluctant to respond to an RFP because they are not reliant on such processes to procure work.
Remember, time is money. RFPs also often have artificial timelines that are inconsistent with the
development process, including things like scheduling subcontractors, weather, and the timing of
financing.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 83

107




The RFQ can and should be simple—ask for a letter of
interest and some background on similar projects. Issuing an
RFQ with a rolling deadline that remains open until a
developer is identified is recommended as it ensures public
transparency and mitigates the RFP issues identified above.

Once the RFQ is prepared, the next step is ensuring
potential developers receive it. The developer could be a
private developer, a non-profit partner, housing authority,
or other entity. Keep in mind that developers typically don’t
monitor platforms like Rocky Mountain BidNet, which is a
platform many Colorado communities use to publish RFQs
and RFPs.

Establish a leadership team that can review responses to the
RFQ and negotiate with the developer. Make sure those on
the leadership team are empowered to make decisions and
direct staff. Considering a normal development process
takes up to 2 years, the Town will be entering a long-term
relationship with the developer, so it is important to allow
ample time to find a good fit for the community.

When the community receives a response to the RFQ from a
developer they are interested in partnering with, consider

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

Be Proactive
e Consider identifying already-built

affordable housing projects that
might fit well in Paonia and reach
out to each community they are in.
Ask that community about the
developer and their experience
working with them. This is a good
way to learn from others.

If the developer sounds like they
could be a good fit in Paonia, invite
them to share their experience.
Start with a simple question, “How
would you approach this project if
you were the developer?”
Developers like to be asked, and
they like to share their opinions.
Not only will such conversations be
informative, but they can also bring
focus to the local project. If their
response presents an interesting
enough opportunity, ask them to
submit a response to the RFQ.

offering the developer an Exclusive Right to Negotiate (ERN) as opposed to awarding the project. An ERN
will allow for time to complete a development agreement that meets both the community’s and
developer’s needs. In this instance, if the Town enters into an ERN with a developer and through

development agreement conversations determines they are not a good fit, the Town can simply reopen

the RFQ.

Consider using a “Term Sheet” to outline the deal points in a future development agreement. Using a
Term Sheet allows for greater efficiency in negotiations. Essentially, a Term Sheet articulates what the
Town plans to contribute to the project and what a developer will do in return. It should define the

affordability requirements, project quality, and other details.

5. Finalize Development Details

This step consists of sorting out all the details needed to get to construction including partnerships, site
and building design, agreements defining roles, financing, and more. The steps to finalize development
details are dependent on the specifics of the development project, and adjustments will happen as
these items are worked through. For example, a potential funder might require a change in the mix of
units, or a new partner may need to be brought on board to assist with a particular funding source.

As explained in the Capital Gap section of Part 1 — Housing Needs Assessment, the cost of constructing
new housing affordable to locals will likely exceed local households’ ability to pay for it. Filling in this
capital gap is paramount. The selected developer should play a major role in determining how to fund
the project through completion. For rental projects, this includes ongoing operations and property

management.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 84

108




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

There are currently tremendous state grant opportunities available to Colorado communities (see
Funding for Development, below). Grant funding can vary from technical assistance grants to planning
and assessment grants to grants for large-scale infrastructure needs. The Town will likely need to bring
grant funding to the table to help the project work financially. Keep in mind, the higher the grant
amounts the more likely the Town will need to demonstrate readiness. The Town may also provide labor
to assist with public infrastructure work for the project like utilities and roads.

6. Groundbreaking Celebration

Once the project is fully financed and entitled, be sure to schedule a groundbreaking event inviting the
whole community to celebrate on-site. Thank and recognize all partners to date, explain the impact the
project will have on the community, and take pictures.

7. Project Construction and Compliance Monitoring

In this example, the Town’s selected developer will manage construction and monitor compliance with
development and funding agreements. The Town’s building inspector will need to provide inspections as
required and the Town should communicate with the public about any construction impacts, like road
closures. Town staff should be in regular communication with the developer, tracking applicable
agreements and grants.

8. Project Operations and Open House

The developer/property manager will want to start selling/leasing the units before construction is
completed. They will need to ensure compliance with all funding source restrictions and requirements,
like income restrictions. Once construction is completed, schedule an open house celebration with the
community to allow for tours of the completed project.

Potential Partners

Potential partners for a housing project could include the following:

e The Delta Housing Authority. This partnership could capitalize on this organization’s experience
and expertise, as well as other benefits such as a property tax exemption. They can be a great
resource or a special limited partner on a development project.

e Fertile Edge Community Land Trust or other land trust non-profits. The Community Land Trust
model is a “shared equity housing” model where the land trust owns the land, and the
homebuyer/household owns the house. Households get a below-market price and often the
opportunity to build equity (usually capped), while the land trust ensures the home remains
affordable over the long term.

e Local banks. Banks provide financing to real estate projects and local banks may be willing to
participate. They also work with CHFA and have access to programs including down payment
assistance for individual buyers.

e Delta County. There have been successful projects across the state where the county plays an
integral role in the development of Housing for the Community. The county may be able to
provide labor, equipment, staff time, or even funding.

e Delta County Joint School District. Local school districts can be key partners in the development
of Housing for the Community. They may be able to bring land to the table, staff time, student
time, and even funding.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 85

109




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

Local employers. As seen
in the graphic below,
about 30% of employers
responding to the
employer questionnaire
indicated they would be
interested in opportunities
to help with housing for
local employees in the
future.

Yes, for my

Yes, for any
mployee in the
community
19%

Uncertain,
more
informat
53%

No, | am not willing to or
cannot support housing
for employees
16%

Funding for Development

There are numerous public and non-profit entities that could help fund an affordable housing project in
Paonia. The two primary state funding entities in Colorado are CHFA and DOLA. CHFA provides technical
assistance and financing for affordable housing projects. DOLA has substantial pools of grant funding for
housing.

Examples of funding and programs that could assist in Paonia include the following:

CHFA’s Small-scale Affordable Housing Technical Assistance Program. Potential small-scale
projects, of 30 units or less, may apply for affordable housing planning and development
technical assistance services and pre-development grants to further their work.
https://www.chfainfo.com/community-partnerships/technical-assistance

University Technical Assistance Program. Offered by DOLA and the Colorado Center

for Community Development at the University of Colorado — Denver can provide initial planning
and design work. A program like this may be helpful in master planning for a larger development
site. https://dlg.colorado.gov/university-technical-assistance-program

Proposition 123 funding. Paonia has filed their commitment to increase affordable housing
above a baseline amount to be able to apply for funding under Proposition 123. Rental program
funding can be found at https://coloradoaffordablehousingfinancingfund.com/ and
homeownership program funding can be found at https://cdola.colorado.gov/office-of-housing-
finance-sustainability/funding-application.

Housing Tax Credits. The federal Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program provides tax
credits to developers of affordable rental housing, incentivizing investors to invest in affordable
housing construction. Colorado State Housing Tax Credits are also available. Tax credits are
administered by CHFA and provide a significant source of equity for affordable housing projects.
https://www.chfainfo.com/rental-housing/housing-credit

Impact Development Fund. This is an example of a non-profit that helps finance affordable
housing projects in Colorado. https://impactdf.org/

There are many other funding sources that could be used. The CHFA Funding Sources Inventory tool is a
useful resource to identify possible funding as a development vision and concept begin to take shape. It
can be found at https://developers-guide.chfainfo.com/funding-sources-inventory.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 86

110



https://www.chfainfo.com/community-partnerships/technical-assistance
https://dlg.colorado.gov/university-technical-assistance-program
https://coloradoaffordablehousingfinancingfund.com/
https://cdola.colorado.gov/office-of-housing-finance-sustainability/funding-application
https://cdola.colorado.gov/office-of-housing-finance-sustainability/funding-application
https://www.chfainfo.com/rental-housing/housing-credit
https://impactdf.org/
https://developers-guide.chfainfo.com/funding-sources-inventory

PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT SITES

The following is a list of public sites in Paonia that could be considered for the development of Housing
for the Community. The owners’ willingness or desire to change the use of the property will have to be
investigated before moving forward. Each site has different opportunities and challenges, which will also
need to be considered in detail before any decision can be made to try to develop the property.

Property | Building Notes and
Site Location Owner Size Size Zone Considerations
Old Sewer S of Samuel | Town 3.5ac NA -1 Vacant site. Completed
Lagoon Site/ | Wade Rd., Targeted Brownfields
Twin Lakes near river Assessment. [1]
Public Works | 401, 403, Town 0.52 ac (in | 4,000sf, | C-2 Occupied by Town and
Warehouse and 405 2" 2 parcels) | 2,000 sf, EMS. 2021 Capital
and Property | St. 4,500 sf Improvements Plan states
buildings are generally in
good shape.
Riverside W side of Town 0.56 ac NA R-1 Appears to be part of the
Estates Lots 4t st,, (all 4 lots) library’s landscaped area.
12-15 north of
library
Public Main Ave. | Town 0.8 ac NA C-1 Currently used for public
Parking Lot behind and Town Hall parking.
Town Hall
Public 236 Main Town 0.153 ac NA C-1 Currently used as public
Parking Lot Ave. parking.
Old Paonia 218 4t st DCSD 5.6 ac 33,860sf | P Vacant building. Town has
Middle (2.53 ac considered purchasing in
School/Vo- was for the past. [1]
tech building sale)
School Bus 135 Main DCSD 0.23 ac 7,000 sf R-2 Currently used as the bus
Barn Ave. barn.
South vacant | 846 Grand | DCSD ~10 ac NA P DCSD may have plans for
portion of K- | Ave. the vacant area, and it
8 Lot may be in the floodplain.
USFS 403 Rio USA 3.28 ac NA DR The USFS may have plans
Grande for the property’s vacant
Ave. area.
USFS 117,119, USA 0.24 ac 710 - R-1 3 small single-family
121 Clark 800 sf homes currently on-site.
Ave.
[1] Numerous members of the community identified these sites as top locations for new Housing for the Community during this
project.

USFS — United States Forest Service; DCSD — Delta County Joint School District 50J; PW — public works; EMS — emergency
medical services; ac — acres; sf — square feet.
SOURCE: DELTA COUNTY ASSESSOR, TOWN OF PAONIA ZONING MAP, CONSULTANT TEAM

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 87

111




PART 2: HOUSING ACTION PLAN
F. POTENTIAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

Map of Potential Development Sites

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 88

112




APPENDICES




APPENDICES
APPENDIX A — FAMILY INCOME VS. HOUSEHOLD INCOME

APPENDIX A - FAMILY INCOME VS. HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The body of this report relies on the 2023 Colorado income limits, which are based on the Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) fiscal year 2023 (FY2023) Multifamily Tax Subsidy Program
income limits. The federal HUD income limits are prepared annually and are the result of numerous data
sources, tests, and adjustments. Details of the methodology are publicly available on HUD's website
(www.hud.gov) and briefly summarized below, relying heavily on language from HUD documentation, as
applicable to Delta County, Colorado, for FY2023.

1) HUD begins with historical American Community Survey (ACS) data (in this case 2017-2021 ACS)
and uses the change in consumer price index (CPI) to adjust the historical ACS data to arrive at
the rounded FY2023 estimate of median family income ($75,900).

2) In Delta County, 50% of the Colorado non-metro median family income ($45,450) is greater than
half of the median family income presented in #1 above ($75,900/2 = $37,950), and therefore
the higher amount is used and then adjusted. In this case, the adjustment is based on the
maximum allowed increase from FY2022 and rounded down to $43,500.

3) This figure (very low income, or 50% AMI for a family of four = $43,500) is then adjusted for
each family size from one to eight. Family sizes smaller than four are reduced by 10% per
person, and those greater than four are increased by 8% per person.

4) The very low income, or 50% AMI figures, are then increased or decreased to match the AMI
percentages. For example, the 100% AMI income threshold by family size is twice that of 50%.
Family Income

HUD income figures are predicated on the incomes of family Why is this important?

households. Because family households tend to earn more Federal and state housing funding is
than non-family households (people living alone and linked to Area Median Income (AMI)
households comprised of unrelated roommates), the income = figures. Because the AMI amounts are
dollar amounts for each AMI level are higher than if it higher than household incomes, more
accounted for all households in Delta County. This is true households in Paonia would qualify
regardless of the Colorado non-metro median family income = for housing developed with federal
adjustment. and state housing funding.

With this in mind, the household income and family income statistics reported by the U.S. Census
Bureau’s American Community Survey (ACS) are included below for reference.

Household Income

The median income of all households in the Town of Paonia (not just family households) is about
$53,600 per year. This means half of the households have an annual income lower than this, and half
have a higher income.

There is a very large difference between households who own and those who rent. Renter households in
Paonia have much lower incomes than owners (39% lower according to the most recently available
2015-2019 ACS 5-year estimate). Renters across the county and state have incomes that are roughly half
that of owners—52% and 47%, respectively.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 90

114



http://www.hud.gov/

APPENDICES
APPENDIX A — FAMILY INCOME VS. HOUSEHOLD INCOME

Household Income, 2021

Colorado Delta County Town of Paonia
Average income $107,446 $72,549 $72,552
Median income $80,184 $51,803 $53,646
Median owner household income $99,715 $61,544 $48,438
Median renter household income $53,087 $29,611 Not available

According to the 2017-2021 American Community Survey, the median family income in Paonia was
$69,167 and the median income of all households was $53,646. This disparity is important in that single
and roommate households, often renters, can afford a lot less than families that are larger (average
family size is about three people). In addition, the most recently available median family income
estimate in Paonia (569,167) is much lower than HUD’s FY2023 published median family income of
$75,900, which means even more local households fall into lower AMI brackets.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 91

115




APPENDICES
APPENDIX B — AREA MEDIAN INCOME

APPENDIX B - AREA MEDIAN INCOME

The Area Median Income (AMI) is included throughout this report because it is a metric used by
affordable housing funders. AMl is published annually by HUD for each county and varies by household
size.

Delta County 2023 Income Limits
AMI 1 Person | 2 Person | 3 Person | 4 Person | 5Person | 6 Person | 7 Person | 8 Person
30% | $18,270 | $20,880 | $23,490 | $26,100 | $28,200 | $30,300 | $32,370 | $34,470
50% | $30,450 | $34,800 | $39,150 | $43,500 | S$47,000 | $50,500 | $53,950 | $57,450
60% | $36,540 | S41,760 | $46,980 | $52,200 | $56,400 | $60,600 | $64,740 | $68,940
80% | $48,720 | $55,680 | $62,640 | $69,600 | $75,200 | $80,800 | $86,320 | $91,920
100% | $60,900 | $69,600 | $78,300 | $87,000 | $94,000 | $101,000 | $107,900 | $114,900
120% | $73,080 | $83,520 | $93,960 | $104,400 | $112,800 | $121,200 | $129,480 | $137,880
160% | $97,440 | $111,360 | $125,280 | $139,200 | $150,400 | $161,600 | $172,640 | $183,840
180% | $109,620 | $125,280 | $140,940 | $156,600 | $169,200 | $181,800 | $194,220 | $206,820

Households by AMI

The income distribution of households in the Town of Why is this important?
Paonia by AMI is shown on the next page. It is the result of Federal and state resources for
comparing the Delta County income limit figures above with homebuyers and housing

what households in Paonia make. Because AMI represents development subsidies use AMI to
the median family income of an area, it does not determine whether families are
incorporate incomes from non-family single and roommate eligible.

households that represent over half (54%) of households in

Paonia. Therefore, household incomes in Paonia are generally lower than the family income limits
presented above (see the detailed explanation in Appendix A), and as a result, the share of households
with incomes less than 100% AMI is more than 50% of households.

A large percentage of households in Paonia are in the lower tiers of the income scale. This aligns with
other indicators of income disparity in Town, such as the share of households in poverty or using other
public assistance programs.

e Almost one in five (18%) Paonia residents live in poverty, which is similar to the poverty rate in
Delta County.

e Roughly 10% of Paonia households receive food assistance through Food Stamps/Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits.

The income disparity by tenure is highlighted in the figure below, which includes the income range of a
two-person household for reference. About 59% of renter households and 37% of owner households
have incomes of 80% AMI and under.

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 92

116




Town of Paonia Household Income Distribution by Tenure and AMI, 2023

Household Income

APPENDICES

APPENDIX B — AREA MEDIAN INCOME

117

Range Renter Owner

AMI (2-person household) Households Households All Households
<=30% $0-520,880 34% 12% 17%
30.1- 60% $20,881-541,760 17% 16% 16%
60.1 - 80% $41,761-555,680 8% 9% 8%
80.1 - 100% $55,681-569,600 6% 10% 9%
100.1-120% $69,601-583,520 2% 9% 8%
120.1 - 160% $83,521-5111,360 10% 17% 16%
160.1 - 180% $111,360-5125,280 6% 6% 6%
> 180% >$125,280 17% 21% 20%

Total (2023 estimate) 150 525 675

May not sum to 100% due to rounding.
SOURCE: CHFA INCOME LIMITS 2023 (DELTA COUNTY), RIBBON DEMOGRAPHICS, LLC, CONSULTANT TEAM

About half (52%) of senior households (age 65+) have an income corresponding with 80% AMI or less.
This includes 73% of senior renter households and almost half (47%) of senior homeowner households.

TN

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan

Page 93




APPENDICES
APPENDIX C - EXISTING PUBLIC HOUSING RESOURCES

APPENDIX C - EXISTING PUBLIC HOUSING RESOURCES

[intentionally blank]

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 94

118




APPENDIX C - EXISTING PUBLIC HOUSING RESOURCES

I
PAONIA

*O+*R*"A*D-0

APPENDICES 119

EXISTING PUBLIC HOUSING RESOURCES - JUNE 2023

Contact

Program
Home Ownership

Permanently Affordable
Homeownership, Delta

Population Served

Low-income individuals and
households, 4 homes currently
being rehabilitated

Habitat for Humanity, Delta County
hfhofdelta@gmail.com

AND

Elevation Community Land Trust
720.822.0052
info@elevationclt.org

Want to help? Volunteer for Habitat for Humanity of Delta County
970.985.8489 or makisheila@yahoo.com

Home Buyer Education Classes —
in-person (Grand Junction) or virtual
classes held monthly

Prospective homebuyers

Housing Resource Center of Western CO
970.241.2871
Debh@hrwco.org

Home Loans, downpayment
assistance and more, various types

First time homebuyers, VA,
conventional, low-income

Community Resources & Housing
Development Corporation
720.595.3704

Single Family Housing Direct Home
Loans — payment assistance to help
reduce mortgage payments
temporarily

Rental Housing

Low- and very-low-income

USDA Rural Development, Colorado
Delta Office

970.399.8198
victoria.martinez@usda.gov

nicki.barks@usda.gov

Housing Choice Vouchers (previously
called Section 8)

Low-income people including
elderly, disabled, families, and
singles

Delta Housing Authority
970.874.7266
voucher@deltahousingauthority.org

Want to
Delta H

help? Become a Housing Choice Voucher landlord
ousing Authority, 970.874.7266 extension 3 or 5

Project Based Voucher (PBV) for
Creek Vista Apartments,
Vista Drive, Paonia

Low-income people 62 years or
older

Delta Housing Authority
970.874.7266
pha@deltahousingauthority.org

Project Based Voucher (PBV) for
Residences at Delta
Villa Street, Delta

Low-income people 62 years or
older

Delta Housing Authority
970.874.7266
pha@deltahousingauthority.org

1-bedroom apartments and 2-3-4
bedroom single family homes
Various locations, Delta

Low-income including elderly,
disabled, families, and singles

Delta Housing Authority
970.874.7266
pha@deltahousingauthority.org

Alta Vista de |la Montana Agricultural
Worker Housing

Agricultural workers

7108 Hwy 50, Delta

Community Resources & Housing
Development Corporation
970.874.6166



https://www.hfhofdelta.com/
mailto:hfhofdelta@gmail.com
https://www.elevationclt.org/
mailto:info@elevationclt.org
mailto:Volunteer%20for%20Habitat%20for%20Humanity
mailto:makisheila@yahoo.com
https://www.hrwco.org/what_we_do/homebuyer-education/
https://www.hrwco.org/what_we_do/weatherization/
mailto:Debh@hrwco.org
https://crhdc.org/Services/Lending
https://crhdc.org/Services/Lending
https://crhdc.org/
https://crhdc.org/
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/single-family-housing-direct-home-loans/co
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/single-family-housing-direct-home-loans/co
https://www.rd.usda.gov/co
mailto:victoria.martinez@usda.gov
mailto:nicki.barks@usda.gov
https://deltahousingauthority.org/section-8/
https://deltahousingauthority.org/
mailto:voucher@deltahousingauthority.org
https://deltahousingauthority.org/
mailto:pha@deltahousingauthority.org
https://deltahousingauthority.org/
mailto:pha@deltahousingauthority.org
https://deltahousingauthority.org/
mailto:pha@deltahousingauthority.org
https://crhdc.org/Services/Rentals/articleType/CategoryView/categoryId/8/Agricultural-Worker-Housing
https://crhdc.org/Services/Rentals/articleType/CategoryView/categoryId/8/Agricultural-Worker-Housing
https://crhdc.org/
https://crhdc.org/

Program

Home Repairs and Modifications

APPENDIX C - EXISTING PUBLIC HOUSING RESOURCES

Population Served

APPENDICES 120

Contact

Handy Helper — minor home
maintenance and repairs

People over 60 years of age

Habitat for Humanity, Delta County
AND

Region 10
For services: 844.862.4968

Want to help? Volunteer as a Handy Helper
970.318.0995 or dobermeyer@region10.net

Rehabilitation Loan Program —
technical and financial assistance for
general repairs and improvements

Low to moderate-income
homeowners

Habitat of the San Juans
970.650.2502
steve@buildinglives.org

Want to help? Volunteer for Habitat for Humanity of the San Juans

970.650.2509 or whitney@buildingl

ives.org

Weatherization Assistance Program —
free energy efficiency and health and
safety services

Income qualifying residents,
including homeowners and
renters

Housing Resource Center of Western CO, in
partnership with Colorado Energy Office
and DMEA

970.241.2871

Single Family Housing Repair Loans
and Grants — loans for homeowners
to repair, improve or modernize their
homes; grants to elderly
homeowners to remove health and
safety hazards

Counseling and Education

Loans: Low- and very-low-
income homeowners
Grants: 62+ and unable to
repay a repair loan

USDA Rural Development
Delta Office
970.399.8198
nicki.barks@usda.gov

Counseling and Education —
pre-purchase, post-purchase, reverse
mortgage (has a fee), financial
capability, default

Everyone

Housing Resource Center of Western CO
Intake: 970.773.9188

Counseling and Education

Prospective homebuyers, those
in foreclosure, those wanting to
improve their financial
capability

Community Resources & Housing
Development Corporation
303.428.1448

Walk-In Resource Center, Free
Every Wednesday 11am-1pm

Emergency and Transitional Housin

Everyone

g

Westminster Hall
135 4% Street, Delta, CO 81416
970.874.7911

The Abraham Connection Homeless
Shelter — emergency nightly shelter

Emergency shelter for men,
women, and families.
October 23 — mid-April,
annually

The Abraham Connection
970.773.8290
abrahamconnectiondelta@gmail.com
480 Silver Street

Delta, CO 81416

Haven House — transitional housing

Primarily serves families with
children without safe housing

Haven House

970.323.5280
nfo@havenhousehomeless.org
4806 North River Road

Olathe, CO 81425



https://www.hfhofdelta.com/
https://region10.net/
mailto:dobermeyer@region10.net
https://www.buildinglives.org/apply/rehabilitation-loan-program/
https://www.buildinglives.org/
mailto:steve@buildinglives.org
mailto:whitney@buildinglives.org
https://www.hrwco.org/what_we_do/weatherization/
https://www.hrwco.org/
https://dmea.com/free-home-weatherization
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/single-family-housing-repair-loans-grants/co#overview
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/single-family-housing-programs/single-family-housing-repair-loans-grants/co#overview
https://www.rd.usda.gov/
mailto:nicki.barks@usda.gov
https://www.hrwco.org/what_we_do/housing-counseling-and-education-program/
https://www.hrwco.org/
https://www.hrwco.org/
https://crhdc.org/Services/Counseling-Education
https://crhdc.org/
https://crhdc.org/
https://deltaabrahamconnection.org/
mailto:abrahamconnectiondelta@gmail.com
https://havenhousehomeless.org/
mailto:nfo@havenhousehomeless.org

APPENDICES

121

APPENDIX C - EXISTING PUBLIC HOUSING RESOURCES

Program Population Served Contact

Additional Resources

Fertile Edge Community Land Trust: Currently being established. mmommaerts@gmail.com, 970.312.7489.

Colorado Housing Connects: Provides Coloradans with general housing and fair housing resources.

Colorado Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LEAP): Provides assistance in paying for winter home heating costs
for low-income households.

Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (CHFA): Offer financial resources to strengthen homeownership and
affordable rental housing.

Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Division of Housing: Partners with local communities to create housing
opportunities from homelessness prevention to homeownership.

USDA Rural Development: Invests in rural America with loans, grant, and loan guarantee programs.

AARP Foundation: Hosts a rent and mortgage assistance resource center online.



mailto:mmommaerts@gmail.com
https://coloradohousingconnects.org/
https://cdhs.colorado.gov/leap
https://www.chfainfo.com/
https://cdola.colorado.gov/housing
http://www.rd.usda.gov/
https://heretostay.aarpfoundation.org/mortgage-rent-support/

APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

APPENDIX D - OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

[intentionally blank]

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 98

122




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

I
PAONIA

*O+*R*"A*D-0

OPEN HOUSE - SUMMARY

HELD JULY 13, 2023, 5:30PM - 8:30PM

ELLEN HANSON-SMITH (TEEN) CENTER

Publicizing the Open House

The event was publicized widely via

e fliers on posting boards around town,

e Facebook posts on both the Town’s page and the Paonia Colorado Message Board page,
e published in a Town Board meeting packet,

e added to the Town’s website and calendar,

e listed on KVNF’s event page (and requested to be shared verbally on the radio),

e emailed directly to all emails collected during this project,

e emailed to organizations for them to share with their email lists, and

e fliers passed out at the farmer’s market.

Attendees

The project consultants from Urban Rural Continuum hosted this Open House and were supported by
the following six volunteers throughout the evening, most of whom are also members of the Housing
Task Force.

e Alicia Michelsen, The Learning Council

e Dave Knutson, Town Trustee

e Lyn Howe, Planning Commissioner

e Paige Smith, Town Trustee

e Patti Kaech, Realtor, Paonia Realty

e Jeremiah Paul, Fertile Edge Community Land Trust

Throughout the evening, 31 community members and the volunteers participated.

Overview of Event and Feedback

The event was set up in a circuit with five stations.

1. Start Here - participants were greeted by volunteers and given instructions along with a handout,
pen, 3 blue dots, and 3 yellow dots.

Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan: Open House - Summary | 1

123




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY
2. Project Background - participants learned a little about this project including how it came to be and

what remained.

3. Data & Issues - participants were encouraged to read the two boards below, which framed the
issues through data and other information.

Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan: Open House - Summary | 2

124




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

Participants were then asked to vote for their top three issues, although all three votes could go to one

issue. Votes are tallied in the table below.

Issues

Votes Received

Short-term rentals have reduced housing choice.

21

The water tap moratorium has fixed the supply of housing.

17

Rental options are limited and unaffordable for many locals.

[N
ul

Too few homes for sale affordable to locals.

Home prices have increased three times faster than wages.

Zoning rules contain barriers to affordable housing.

Building costs exceed what most locals can afford.

The housing stock is very old and many need repairs.

Home size is misaligned with household size.

Locals struggle to compete with cash buyers.

Commuting to work is prevalent and expensive.

The housing stock is very homogenous.

The town’s population has changed very little over time.

The town’s population is aging. 43% of residents are 55+ years old.

OO|R|IRLININPPOIN|IN|LO

Tools - participants were asked to vote for their top three tools. All three votes could be applied

toward one tool if desired. The boards offered quick explanations of each tool and participants could
read printed handouts with additional considerations if desired. Many participants took their time
and sat down with the handouts to read through them, then placed their votes. Many conversations
were held among participants, consultants, and volunteer Housing Task Force Members. Votes are

tallied in the table below.

Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan: Open House - Summary | 3

125




Tools

APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

Votes Received

Short Term Rental (STR) Restrictions

13 [1]

Allow for Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU)

12 2]

Public-Private Partnerships to Build Affordable Housing

11

Small Scale Development and Sweat Equity for Homeownership

[N
o

Allow Gentle Density

Align Community Infrastructure Investments

Utilize, Promote, and Build on Existing Resources

Acquire Land/Bank Land

Update Zoning Regulations to Remove Barriers and Add Incentives

Annexation Policy

Dedicated Funding Stream

Create a Density Bonus

Deed Restriction Policy

Housing "One Stop Shop" Hub

Right of First Refusal on Housing

Revise Parking Requirements

Fee Deferral

ORIRLPIELRININIW|IAM U O (Y|

Fee Reimbursement or Waiver

0

[1] The consultant team heard a lot of support for STR restrictions prior to this Open House so votes could be applied to
either or both of the two STR restriction options presented - 7 votes were received for “Prohibit completely” and 6 were

received for “Limit the total allowed.”

[2] The consultant team heard a lot of support for ADUs prior to this Open House so votes could be applied to either or both
of the two ADU options presented if desired - 5 votes were received for “Allow in all residential areas” and 7 votes were

received for “Allow in some residential areas.”

Next Steps — participants were presented with the board below that identified next steps, the
timeline and deliverables of this project. Handouts were also collected at this final station. All
submitted handouts are attached. The consultant team has reviewed all comments and will
incorporate, as appropriate, in the development of the Needs Assessment and Action Plan.

Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan: Open House - Summary | 4

126




S s e e et e ettt e e BSENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 17

Open House Handount
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someorie with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2} Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementablie
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2, Backarownd

1} Review the board to learn about this project.

2} Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members.

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3} Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

N L) Q_M \_fkq‘. (\ N -B‘-

< T e ..QA»,,‘*-W‘E__‘ JUS 2 i PSR S
s e K ) “ﬂg NN T S T T
Y. Soeew ' it uoete  Saeress i

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

128

Station #4 Tools

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. if you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officiais-housing-toclkit.cdola.colorade.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools (details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor) ;

ﬂL (b{ﬁfﬁﬁ—’i [?]Q A ‘( /1%1“6_ z_:jfw /-u)gj ; éta%}‘jm “—{H‘[ngajﬂ

e ‘mu.,,, N pu oo ,__“f“\' g feesd 1B y 7 %u.i_” _‘“
&(CA.« T T IR VI . *T’t‘.“]f*cLLL H,w o AT I l Lgf: PRIV TP TS
s T ‘Jp .:»Jk. b.c;,ﬁ S TR Y W S ] Q_, J{ ...C@:—#:‘*@ \_EQA R E
- XLL;.., ,ﬁ@wkfg R A [« T M{Q c;._iﬁay:_x,.t.,gm ALG Y}UL C
e e e Se U T thu«. ;..o::m‘,,i L aea el ( theo
\T‘ . @_,L\ A “h 3 \i C“U_ﬁ ; \C:‘ Ty { > S 2N oSV S of T
J{m%‘ e m‘(\) ~ohis G“U‘(‘ ol ‘}’V\ B OA TN S <SR- YT .f;.!_d.‘l:mm?xc.?-_',{._

AN

/

S\j‘a+iow #5 Next Steps
Q Other comments:
. \( Q__L&

- LQQL 'Oa\ eyt f’w’ e \ ;.ﬁm m CN C,. ‘C\_f‘ Q

“”U.u:_‘ L.L“QM AN\ Vﬂ B = . g L\; RN of g e
\ S Q\ k; AT g i K\_L.L,u_, -t h.o:.‘ @»J«, oS (M?/"&
&7%:@\) _— "‘-')._E‘ AL E:J-’ US 4,_;?7;(‘3 ik lx&uﬂij

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk vou for vour participation and interest in Paownia remaining a
complete and vibravt communityl

Open House Handout | 2



" APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

129

P Open House Handont
(G Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
el July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community,
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Statiov #2. Background

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2} Thingsto keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a.household’s gross income {i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing selutions in addition to
community members,

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated ares.

3) Comments on data and issues (anythlng missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

Qﬂi;‘f& ELINEIIIES @Mﬁm @ 7/’ o) #wfé ¥ @&CS te Z/Jc/

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

Station #4 Tools

APPENDICES

130

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit hiips://officials-housing-toclkit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the

designated area.

3) Comments on tools {details about tools on the hoards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk you for your participation and ivterest in Paonia rewmaining a

complete avd vibravt commumiy!

Open House Handout | 2




APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

131

Open House Handont
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1} Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you heed any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To-gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2 Background

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

o There is no one solution to housing affordability.

o Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members,

Station #3 Pata & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2} Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3) Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

132




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

133




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

134




. g
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

135

Open House Handont

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #4 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find sormeone with

“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the deveiopment of an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting'input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2 Backaroud

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

Housing is affordable whenthe monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.

Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role te play in housing solutions in addition to

Q

community members.

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on'the boards. Read through the issues.

2} Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.
3) Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprlsmg, etc. )
Tb‘}ﬁt ‘, 7[ [/)E}us «1\7

oo TS
—J:}':c# ._....L;H,.«_.ﬂb 5ff vs< o./ :C: o TR

;gb C—f SR endels 3 cof [pc ' \r\-? $.d ueg-ekic r\ijc IG [ 3 =k

:ht me,__ pen tals U
auufn. e f\if@ wj L o %4 ;fé%/{afﬁ o

aviisd o vental }g,fcc V.

Open House Handout | 1




APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 136

Station #4 Tools

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential toois to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3_) Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

any of fhese  fools haw _uevy o ffevent=
M ‘Eco wimndpw S ;i o Qp [ / estima ff"‘lf’ .

!M ‘? C 1[ r"p o ,J\,S F“"lﬂce g STR e AN fq_ { bd’h R
wau/d o C/ /O()  n 7L 5 O N L AR L, ol

" )

A ﬁ'(fd o/ql»- e hovs I ka ks el WQ\'J L comstry mLO ~
q/ o Q_ii BTN RO YO NV R 7#«/ éfA poodl |
Ldéj shoo fcf .}pr._.fuu.: 1Lze M—,ﬁ’?c/‘ :4 = ‘r‘— 07 A A

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

50[ Fion should emphasize commontsy
Cﬁ 71'» .\)fg ____CDJC; —H‘\e )iUJV«""'{- QFf(‘fﬁ;"O/q 4
ff%ou ’wa_J c[us "V s Com rﬂlé % Tha fL o i»LACh\—- g‘ R,

Q0 Pn & Sc o

/’oo /awjf ﬂf, fﬂ 71‘=>vu o} 0{: S ) C) B

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk you for your participation and interest in Paovia remainivg a
complete and vibravt comminity!

QOpen House Handout | 2



APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

137
Opev House Handont
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023
Station #4 Start Here
1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help; find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.
2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.
Station #2 Backaroud
1) Review the board to learn about this project.
2) Things to keep in mind:
o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment {rent or mortgage, plus utilities} is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income {i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.
There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members.
Station #3 Data & Tssues
1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues. o
i
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area. f\?
—X
3} Comments on data and issues (anythmg mlssmg, inaccurate, surprlsmg, etc.}:
HL

:\_. \nz\;k

d
A 0\9\1 ,mwb. () ;\/7 s, )g*-\,. ~ \& —y »gmf} -
e i e - e neta n e S ,«,.-.,; e - '_—.‘ TR \
o g T .'L»“rup\ d\{»\ ﬂ\J' Len C‘f&‘ nf\c CT“ﬂxﬁw - %
LNaAR Ao Ty }E\ P){.«\ s ﬂ, o * froun) | V}x \ FAX XTI MY
YA e ol " ““i;“;u_v.: c_r:_w P L\X Open House Handout | 1 J
P 3 " i g
Qi) \N-_ AVEN \J\Ea_\* S }!@ Vaoius S8 (Do ’z?“"“'\“w\ A L Cr*( *LE\ a‘\-ﬁ"
S el - T s 4o 2098 axe U 4 Sanep s “\ ,A,c:' W“W’



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

138

Statiov #4 Tools

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to iearn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can aiso
visit hitps://officials-housing-toslkit.cdola.colorade.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3} Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

~1 \\*,&“’ﬁm b
WM\W;L\@;( “Q
Lm kb R n}m L% dos ol {WQ

N U o N R - “4-35,“\_5'} AT VA _( (JJ\,,TQ&&(

Station #5 Next Steps

1} Other comments:

/\:E@W NP A)L o —lr o
S farhd:\ Cf\x_f = d“ww ‘(@m\u&

\m\d

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk vou for vour participation and interest in Paovia remaining a
complete avd vibrant commuanity!

Open House Handout | 2



APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

139

Open House Handont

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan

+ation tart here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

July 13, 2023

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2. Backgrouwnd

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:
o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities} is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.
o There is no one solution to housing affordability.
o Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to

community members,

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.

2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3) Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc. )'

" (/W f} @ '/EW»\ ’ﬁ"mu&# . wm"&— (pr@ﬂ@:uﬁ L* ‘3‘m€e ~(¢f;_;

rﬁfuﬁs

'H/—e:l‘ c:"R:Cd OL‘?

Pﬂ(‘sce L’ow%[[gcﬁ "o /aq,y rf’tcamg,

Open House Handout | 1.



APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 140

Station #4 Tools

1} Readthrough all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to iearn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https.//officials-housing-togcikit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more,

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1} Other comments:

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk you for vour participation and interest in Paovia remaining a
complete and vibrant communityl

Open Hguse Handout | 2



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

141




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

142




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

143




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

144




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

145




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

146




o e e e Ry VT o) (o S

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 147

Open House Handount
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of :an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are-most favored by the community.

Station #2 Backaround

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment {rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

o There is'no one solution to housing affordability.

Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members,

Station #23 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3) Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

~Pow & aed | cenie ;«%mc\ *haJr HOre AT A 2D bho(’f “Yerom
centls 9 | o

ke Hese Pnrb’\b oty T
X el MO o€ nar! } MoSE .

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 148

Station #4 Tools

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-tooikit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):
=T om W< aloesng wo —c-,ﬂb\)s O weTesl ooy
~Meq <« \Ct‘nofﬁ o0 conn c:mC\ rfﬂ’m\% ( 6 Mot of
NS
RO

e S 33 rech. SYESA YD Dﬂl?. ol 4o
L onOe a0 \ana\\urz:k% LYY noee mor\f.l'j
o€ YPC&@Q A\Qw} ot o Wl dneir poulQe L

Station #5 Next Steps

1} Other comments:

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk vou for your participation and interest in Paovia remaiving a
complete and vibrant community!

Open House Handout | 2



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

149




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

150




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

151




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

152




~ APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 153

Open House Handont

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1} Directions: Piease visit each station in numerical order; review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the commuriity supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input an which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2 Backaround

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than.30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum-wage to six figures and above.

< Thereis no one solution to housing affordability.

Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members.

Station #3 Pata & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.

2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3) Comments on data and issues {anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

154




APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 155

Open Hounse Handount .

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help; find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the cammunity:
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2. an@round

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:
o Housing is affordable when the morithly payment {rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to

community members.

Station #2 Pata & Tssues

1} Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3} Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.}):

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

156




APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

157

Open House Handont
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #4 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

+atio ackaromnnd

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2} Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in-addition to
community members,

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3} Comments on data and issues (anythmg missing, inaccurate, surprzsmg, etc.):

A dre j’

. - ﬁ - "
lﬂ/ ! ;\3 ;i f}(k‘f"}"ﬁ Gt & ? W(j.‘__

TD A @lcf, LL%W N reusitg o
O uc{x{muﬁ, Lmu‘ﬁjﬂaii/ (im mnmfu fi (mg < ._;}« f’w/\ ti}\i
C’&L& Llatentiuts oo D<A¢& Ackdai, : zjm_{“(f g
e YU B b A NN s oy T S
Frwas. surprisiog he : ,;%&%fﬂdﬁﬁﬁ
..—ith.m., baslid Lo, (s pecXo W= < G Y v
£ rf{,a{a‘i} ke b b %} r}f&ii\.’uij"r:.j’ 40 collécr o5 ”wf‘ﬂ g-”.;:* 065 t?w“'ibiﬁ“

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

Station #4 Tools

APPENDICES

158

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
‘about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit htips://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more..

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the

desigrated area.

3) Comments on tools (details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk you for your participation and interest in Paovia remaiing a

complete and vibrawt commumityt

QOpen House Handout § 2




S S SN I APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 150

Opev House Handont

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station # Start Here

1) Directions; Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards; and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the.community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2. Background

1) Review the board to learn aboutthis project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities} is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members.

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1} Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by pla'cing a blue dot in the designated area.

3) Comments on data and issues (anythmg missing, inaccurate, surpr;smg, etc.):

: K'\‘Lfa {ESQ rﬁ

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 160

Station #4 Tools

1) Readthrough all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn mare
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-tooikit.cdola.coicrado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools (details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

2) Piease drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thank you for your participation and nterest i Paovia remainivg a
complete and vibrant community!

Open House Handout | 2



" APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

161

Open House Handount

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #4 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a. Determining which housing issues.are most pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2. Background

1} Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a rale to play in housing sotutions in addition to

community members.

Station #2 Pata & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.

2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the desigriated area.

3) Comments on data and issues (anythmg missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc. )

ﬁ:}/ﬂf f ons.

ﬂo

@7’7“.“1& 45500e s f /’/ ’Wéf e M”/

Open House Handout | 1




APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 162

Station #4 Tools

1) Read through ail 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to fearn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colarado.gav/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in-the
designated area.

3} Comments on tools {details about tools oh the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

2} Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer,

Thavk you for vour participation and wterest v Paonia remaining a
complete and vibrant communityl

Open House Handout | 2



et o S S et . e R PPENDICES ™"

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 163

Open House Handont
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
ori this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a, Determining which housing issues.are maost pressing to the community.
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2. j&aogroumd

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is-affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, pius utilities) is equal to
no.more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e.; income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to playin housing solutions in @ddition to
community members.

Is]

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1} Browse through the data on the bgards Read through the issues.

2) Vote on your top 3 nmst pressing lssue;%y placing a blue dot in the designated area.

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

164

Station #4 Tools

1) Read through ali 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn evern more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yeliow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools (details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1} Other comments:

{\_ C/ ri.
i ‘ C‘“ﬁ’” (’Q( “P— PL LL N\_,_ Lu c»f*%} \ A
AN T WA S / S /tﬂ FPUNCT @

W T,

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or'with a volunteer.

Thank vou for your participation and interest i Paovia remaining a
complete and vibrawt community!

Open House Handout | 2



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

165




APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

Station #4 Tools 3/,;;1 &\@u}

APPENDICES

166

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential toois to address housing issues. Ifyou want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit hitps://officials-housing-toolkit.cdoia.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2} Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the

designated area.

3) Comments on tools (details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thank vou for vour participation and interest in Paonia remainivg a

complete and vibrant commumity!

Open House Handout {2




APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

167
Open House Handout
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023
Station #4 Start Here
/ 1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
h on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with

“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:

a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.

b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2 Backarownd
_ 1) Review the board to learn about this project.
\/ 2} Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

o There is no one solution to housing affordability.

Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members.
Statiow #2 Data & Tssues
1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by piacing a blue dot in the designated area.
3) Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

"Q aeSow - Yo e Dj‘ e S\Mocl Yecn rff,vx-im,ﬂ[ﬁ =V <SR

R 'CM;!MQ( -2 jpe. wfg»z.,.JE.e.c i YO '."?.ﬁi:«:v:p\a U e S"E’.Sf L. \Dta»“ ?, e e
e NS Yoo Mﬂﬂ\j ST s urﬁ,oaov\%\ [opesoted. Vlj D\J:}B\cta ine fas.“fs?

° T B a1 S 55-:&\’..?{.,.1.,‘3.;,{1 . mrwl NlP‘(w& i oy w I E_i_‘..,..:jrv\!\.l_‘k.‘._C;..;.S.P,ﬁfﬁﬂ_&_.m ‘DE”\'W;’_.t:vx
e hacslns ru_zcts af\,t‘\\f‘ﬂ“-*unﬁé kil {ml:z,;‘ f v 13/ Cl\bi e m,:u:j.\.&x, Bl Al Wolallant ch t i..z-gg)

G DUV O IMW,

e e - Loy __‘f:\._’n-,._g.m,pe,ca?_lc.‘. Cvabe ek e aftord A  \ive Wnere 7

. Open House Handout |.1
u M oEV SurDeis) Aata was e Aca Ao ) S 0 ) .
\ e b amme NG increase of  castha " \onas ?u“hﬁb

M | 2oz, vs. 2021, Mre Weese b“ﬂ“ﬁ Meving Yo Yaenia end Vivine Wereo

“Neew  soc pmsea\__...ﬂnn,,,&s ee Ale.pre ua\A\gna 2. o......:.....mmrﬂ.h’ﬂq,iiu\;



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

168

Station #4 Tools

1) Read through all-3 boards of potential toois to-address housing issues. If you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-toolkit.cdola.colorada.gov/ on your phone to learn even more

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

1. U?c\oc\ e Zmnk@& ~allowe Sor ADUs o allows o Jah‘(\c dens. \K
R y k,...,._..ugbckm’fe« K_Dc\r\ém“c Ceairevaents
) Q‘“‘ﬁ“ C-:Jw\mw.md Nebvastreefure.

. ..‘..,‘..ﬂ‘f\flf_x’.ﬁ-hﬂ‘v’\- KU\\CQ
‘E«%\“+ 'D '&'\‘r S, I 2V \f\.'au,n
2 E FC_SW'\A“\“i <:\--\Uf “\ J(“(_ Corey, Qc - \v_\\ - -

Thes s Twe paost . u\ou\cu;], &.}JE \Dmnr {Df ‘o\-\cl-’\ lma\_ A DAy

K\"f AR mnast e T .\.Aifl-__,t_,t.u oD c_rr(‘of e

“?ESL—L Lacky (=8N ‘f:;\'\‘-‘e'\*\f}\ G'-\\ DLa '\ oo L TLS Ci{? Nee. "rg g Tu\«—\ . [Eat .l SR

Srerm condals while pronioihng, outtide invesiors Sromm N\“"L;Y"-_—_{’
o bus iness Srop EBPaonia rratal incoen o C\.\sk\gk ess erntiall,

COovnnwae red

¢ie 7e5 Wl ¢Sy \ . \ ;" e RJ
Statiow #5 Next Steps s ° resrciend m'\ Aistre )

j;aws 'h/'"\i? = (1

1-) Other comments:

At seeons toowne [ Y. V- ey oY Thv Aoo\s prese .L“‘a‘( ..kc.,ADU.Lf;.L..(&c(
bc. lNiP‘er”}*mrL'/‘éiC[ bj “the. "hm_(oa ‘R:r Aosa cost . b\ﬁf_\(\mr\ iv’ki The

'Z_Dhn-\ LK), C«D('{&S an_ck a\kauaw\ ’Pacf\ LA LS. iI“D 2V oes e uvi -
\\E\? Pacoans. use/Fnd Te vesoortes. evala bfe AR e intain oujhtj Yiowne
Elliows . JADWs o o B 'anm Ao e e pmore aceas ol tounn.

P\c\c\ c\e;ns_, \\)\ a,nA '\D\"QSQV\)L_ Ljf”eer\ Space. . arxcL PU\\Q\\L oL e

Tecrtaton. arcas.

Ul Do _\si_b?k ENCoURAGE. (or Allow) DEVELOPERS ..N !

. o

Pavrsa 15 « very specvat Place, full oF waigue and ereatbve individuals.
2) Pleas-e—dfepﬂﬁ%his—papeﬁﬁ—th&drep—bﬂx er~w1’eha—voiunteen
Q(\C\ L S\Ah‘\“a \;\m\Q\Q o\raol\ ﬂ“o . g

_\a\it (‘_,\f\auznﬁc_, Tlae shetus. Buc
, Yes Ve r\QecQ LAAS NS \;‘uoSm
P e cc(‘\'ofr“\ub‘t \’\.ou':.wxil buﬁ e C{D m:‘\ .’\cu\ QU\'{‘S\C(C C\GUQ lqu Ay

4o sohue s ?ft)‘.g\{ff\‘ Use e ex istive

\f\“(“ﬂﬁ' "T we-Fuoe € via P "l"o
Tmminmoupmmamﬂm m&u:t&msﬁmdmm&mmmw

s (e rezoning e and-Vibrant-tonynunidl

4o allow the \cgmlq“ \g a'g Pasrio, Yo \)(0‘(_\'\ Lrone Y\
%TDLQ‘\'\m T2V ‘Pﬂ»‘c\r\‘;o.“

Open House Handout | 2

The S’tW\P\E. AL mj Ve e movS“\“ e,gg:ec:\\\)t ez



" APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

169

Open House Handont

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2} Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development-of an implementable
Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:
a, Determining which housing issues are mast pressing to the cammunity,
b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2. Backaround

1} Review the board to learn about this project.

2} Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment {rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.,

There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public; private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members.

Station #2 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.
2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3) Co&nents on data and issues {anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

JA{/%Z ZO//ZQ/ ! ﬁ{&w ‘f gy Temnenetendenlt



APPENDICES

APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY 170

Statiov #4 Tools

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you'want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housing-tooikit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

3) Comments on tools (details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

2} Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer.

Thavk you for your participation and interest in Paonia remaining a
complete avd vibrant commuvity!

Open House Handout | 2



APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

171

Open House Handont
Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards, and follow instructions
on this handout and on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find somecne with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable

Housing Action Plan that the community supports by:

a. Determining which housing issues are most pressing to the community.

b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the commun'ity

obig ¢ 3 .

vive T P t’?ma e L “«’%‘ sy, ;}m e wﬁ”s Fite 7
- LAY, - )
Si‘:}t',§ ﬁi{&{, ;3 =
%fu; WA Licises 7

Statio ackaround

1) Review the board to learn abou(t }h]
Cenlal

2) Things to keep in mind:
o Housing'is affordable when the monthiy payment (rent or mortgage elus utlimes) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.
There is no one solution to housing affordability.
Public, private, and non-profit sectors have a role to play in housing solutions in addition to
community members. :

= Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.

N £
Sedef e
. CETh R ut

2) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.

3} Comments on data and issues (anything missing, inaccurate, surprising, etc.):

UGy - Open House Handout | 1

oL } );ﬁ
Y f%{w "U“L ud uf ; r;g.agj\ vl



APPENDICES
APPENDIX:D— QBEN HOUSE SUMMARY, .

1) Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
aboutany of these taols, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officiais-housing-tooikit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

2) Vote on your top 3 most favored tools across all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
designated area.

Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor)

. ( | E"‘ . ‘. A
‘x)-,r 1l “f
1(:9~ quL‘LlF w’
if)s A
fl%s,pﬁ

E}?v ,f ’,»---

2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer
‘o ; {f’ 3,'( /’/"1: “? zf: ;} ;;{ Vi i : 1’( ii‘} »L'ﬁg,i;';if E'rf; (: ?A’%

§

H
o

f fé&tf }’Lﬂgﬂ; 5 j»il :

Thavk you for vour participation and interest i Paovia remaining a
complete and thmvﬁ' comwmunity!

172 |



APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

173

Open House Handont

Paonia Housing Needs Assessment & Action Plan
July 13, 2023

Station #1 Start Here

1) Directions: Please visit each station in numerical order, review the boards; and follow instructions
on this handoutand on the boards to provide input. If you need any help, find someone with
“Volunteer” on their name tag.

2) Goal: To gather input from the community to inform the development of an implementable
i i i : : - G778
Housing Ac‘.uo_n Plan-that the. cornmun:ty supports by. \ e :J}’“Q Cf:‘ R
a. Determining which hﬁql_lilﬂ&liﬁues-are most pressing to the community. ¥ }L/P ﬁTLH S

b. Getting input on which tools are most favored by the community.

Station #2 Backaround

1) Review the board to learn about this project.

2) Things to keep in mind:

o Housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities) is equal to
no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above. |

o There is no one solution to housing affordability.

o /P?fﬁﬁ-s, private, and nﬁﬁ,nfpm’ﬁ"t sectors have a role to play in housing sofutions in addition to

community members. M g‘ )/Q_ﬁE @Qﬂ:-P_\PKJ l=

Station #3 Data & Tssues

1) Browse through the data on the boards. Read through the issues.

M(f))\) Vote on your top 3 most pressing issues by placing a blue dot in the designated area.
mﬂ ts on data and issues (anything;m lsswf, inaccurate, surprlsmg, etc ):
= B
197 J (T

__)

Vawmisc torpoasc | Fies LIMIED #= plon g 4&‘@"*’\“
4 & * NOT B "'ﬁ 3 , P&%&
L }25\)0 VATE ¢ o» stc:s

Open House Handout | 1



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

174

Station #4 Tools

1)} Read through all 3 boards of potential tools to address housing issues. If you want to learn more
about any of these tools, read the printouts that include detailed considerations. You can also
visit https://officials-housine-tootkit.cdola.colorado.gov/ on your phone to learn even more.

W\I " Vote on your top 3 most favored tools scross all 3 boards by placing a yellow dot in the
Nb/aesignated area.

ey

3) Comments on tools {details about tools on the boards or other tools you would favor):

Station #5 Next Steps

1) Other comments:

STubigs/stpvers b fvfﬁc
A—W&" C 7\) . /’ A‘\D @ ; C A@? Lﬁ(,__,
2) Please drop off this paper in the drop box or with a volunteer. S/jv\/ E \{ 'T-
for— 202 K '(
Thank vou for your participation and interest in Paonia remaining a
complete and vibrant communityl

Open House Handout | 2



APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

175




APPENDICES
APPENDIX D — OPEN HOUSE SUMMARY

176




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

APPENDIX E - TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

[intentionally blank]

NP

Town of Paonia — Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
Page 153

177




APPENDICES 178
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

I
PAONIA

*O+*R*"A*D-0

PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND
HOUSING ACTION PLAN

Housing Task Force Meeting 1 - Summary

Wednesday, May 24, Introductions

2023 In attendance: Patty Kaech, Dave Knutson, Bobby Reedy, Alisha

5:00-6:30 pm Michelsen, Marissa Mommaerts, Linda McCone, Paige Smith, Mary

Town Hall Difranco, Andrew Coburn, Shay Coburn

Top housing issues: housing affordability in general, people wanting to
maximize sale prices/rental income, lack of good jobs, aging housing and
residents, need for housing upkeep/maintenance, high utility costs, short
term rentals, water moratorium, health impacts, out of town investors,
and more.

Project Overview

This project includes using data to identify the housing needs and issues
in the community (Needs Assessment) and developing a plan to help
meet that need and address issues (Action Plan). Please visit
www.urbanruralcontinuum.com to see examples from other Colorado
communities. While this project will not solve all issues related to housing
affordability, it will create a path for the community to address the issues.
Although the Town Board plays a key role, keep in mind that this is a
community-wide project and the public, private, and non-profit sectors
have a role to play in the solutions.

Project Principles

e No surprises: regular Board updates and community participation

e Strong coordination with Master Plan efforts

e Avoid going to the well too many times: don’t exhaust public
participation

e Don’t reinvent the wheel: use past plans and studies when applicable

e Be realistic: see Paonia as it is and plan within its capacity

e Keep it simple: documents will be clear and concise



http://www.urbanruralcontinuum.com/

APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

Role of the Task Force

You are project advocates and champions of this effort for your community. We want you to help
connect the community to this project and connect us to the community. We hope you can attend three
more Task Force meetings and the housing-specific open house, review draft documents, and provide
guidance and input. Trustees Smith and Knutson are the project’s Board liaisons.

What Has Been Completed and What is Coming Up

Completed: Kicked off the project, reviewed background docs, worked on forming the Housing Task Force
and planned first meeting, started data collection, created list of existing housing resources that will be
refined throughout the project, drafted employer questionnaire, created page on Town’s website about
the project and to collect email addresses for project updates.

We are working on: Finalizing the Housing Task Force, publishing the employer questionnaire, preparing
for interviews/focus groups, conducting interviews and focus groups, data analysis, and developing an
initial list of strategies.

Monthly updates are being provided to the Town Board for the first meeting of each month. Please see
the updates for more information.

For Discussion

e Schedule

0 Task Force meeting #2 for the week of June 19 — Planned Wednesday, June 21, 5-6:30pm

0 Open house for the week of July 10 — Planned for Thursday, July 13, 5:30pm, location and other
details to be determined.

e Terminology — affordable housing, community housing, etc.

0 What term(s) should we all use and not use?

0 Affordable housing is typically defined as housing that costs no more than 30% of a household’s
gross income. This way it is a simple math problem that is applied the same way whether a
household’s income is $25,000/yr. or $250,000/yr.

0 “Affordable housing” can be a problematic term and is mis-used by many. We will use the
definition that housing is affordable when the monthly payment (rent or mortgage, plus utilities)
is equal to no more than 30% of a household’s gross income (i.e., income before taxes). This
definition is industry standard and used by federal and state housing programs. This applies
across the income spectrum, from minimum wage to six figures and above.

0 “Housing for the Community” is the Task Force’s preferred term and it means, dwellings
occupied by residents who live and/or work in Paonia. This concept is sometimes referred to as
“workforce” or “attainable” housing. The intent is that community housing meets the full range
of rental and ownership housing types and prices needed to support household changes over
time and ensure Paonia remains a complete and vibrant community.

O The consultant team will be sure to define any technical terms used. Terms can be revisited with
the Task Force later in the project if needed.

179




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

e Employer questionnaire — what is this and why is it helpful? Please review. What is the best
approach for us to publicize this to local employers?

0 The consultant team hopes to learn from employers about the demand for housing, commuting
patterns, impact of housing on operations and housing issues and needs. This is data that is not
available elsewhere.

O This questionnaire will first be shared with the Task Force for their input. Then it will be shared
with businesses in and around Paonia, not employers solely in other towns.

O The Task Force expressed concerns that the Paonia residents who employ themselves through
one or more cash jobs will likely not fill out the survey which may leave a gap in the data.

O The Task Force will help spread the word to employers and those self-employed to fill out the
questionnaire.

e Interviews/Focus Group —we need to connect with local realtors, property managers, builders, and
others to help inform the Needs Assessment. Discuss who might be helpful to connect with.

O The group brainstormed a list. The Consultant team will connect with those identified.

e Project goals.

O The group brainstormed what people were not yet represented by the Task Force. Those

identified will be contacted with an invitation to the Task Force.

What the Task Force Should Do After This Meeting

e Save the date and plan to attend the next Task Force meeting and Open House. See dates above.

e Complete a test run of the draft employer questionnaire and send comments to
andrew@urbanruralcontinuum.com by end of day on Friday, May 26. Also help us get local
employers to fill it out. Link to be provided via email.

180



mailto:andrew@urbanruralcontinuum.com

APPENDICES 181
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

I
PAONIA

*O+*R*"A*D-0

PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND
HOUSING ACTION PLAN

Housing Task Force Meeting 2 - Summary

Wednesday, June 21, Introductions

2023 In attendance: Linda McCone, Alicia Michelsen, Bob Reedy, Dave Knutson,

5:00-6:30 pm Paige Smith, Jennica Schevene, Patti Kaech, Gia Fanelli, Marissa

Town Hall Mommaerts, Mary Difranco, Lyn Howe, Molly Wheelock, Andrew Coburn,
Shay Coburn.

Consultant Update: What Has Been Completed and What is Ongoing or
Coming Up

Completed: project kick off, formation of the Task Force, Task Force
meeting 1, review of past plans and studies.

In progress: employer questionnaire (getting a good number of responses,
will work to get more), interviews (completed about 10, have about 5
more), drafted resources list, data gathering and analysis, drafted issues,
drafted potential actions list, and planning for the Open House.

Coming up: targeted outreach, Open House event, draft Housing Needs
Assessment, and continue to refine the list of strategies.

For Discussion

e Housing Resources Document — see attached, review and finalize

This document summarizes existing public housing resources. This will
be clarified on the document. The Task Force was concerned that
many of these resources are Delta-centric and expressed a desire for
more in Paonia.




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

Open House: July 13, 5:30-8:30pm, Teen Center — the Teen Center is now called the Ellen Hanson-
Smith Center, but people may not know it this way. When publicizing the Open House also say
something like “Teen Center in Paonia Town Park”

0 Format — a true open house where people can arrive at any time and stay for 30 minutes to the
full 3 hours. This will be made clear when the event is advertised.

0 Content — there will be a circuit for people to follow beginning with a Start Here table that gives
instructions for the event and defines the goals. The 2" station will include information about
the project. The 3" station will be about existing conditions and issues — and voting on top issues.
The 4 station will display potential actions and provide an opportunity to vote on preferred
actions. Consultants will create a summary of feedback received during the Open House and
share that with the public.

0 Plan to publicize — fliers will be posted around town, shared on Facebook, sent to email
addresses collected thus far, and some other organizations will share with their members. KVNF
was identified as another important way to publicize the event.

0 Will need volunteers to help host a station — many of the Task Force members volunteered to
help at the Open House. Consultants will be in touch with roles and details.

Review Initial Issues and Actions — see attached, review and refine to assist consultant team in
preparation for the Open House

Issues: A few surprising items were discussed like age distribution showing an aging community, the
number of short-term rentals not being higher, and how cash purchases of homes have increased.
Discussed that most data shared at the meeting is representative of residents living within the town
boundary, which is the geographic scope of this project. Some data inclusive of nearby areas in
unincorporated Delta County will be used/referenced (like area jobs data to inform housing
demand). Discussed many issues happening in the area and nationally. The information in the issues
document is generally okay to present at the Open House with a few tweaks.

Actions: The water moratorium was discussed and some of the actions will be adjusted to clearly
reflect that reality. Discussed current zoning and it was clear there is a desire to dig into that topic
further to potentially adjust current zoning regulations and the zoning map. Generally, the list of
potential actions presented is okay to present to the public during the Open House with the few edits
discussed at the meeting.

Schedule Task Force meeting #3 — July 31, August 1 or 2 — likely August 2 at Town Hall. The meeting
date and details will be confirmed via email.

Targeted Outreach — we plan to connect with various groups to gather more input. Any ideas and
contacts? A list of ideas was compiled. The consultants will reach out to this list.

What the Task Force Should Do After This Meeting

Plan to attend the Open House on July 13, 5:30-8:30pm, Teen Center.

Plan to attend the next Task Force meeting as planned during the meeting. Schedule time ahead of
the meeting to review the Draft Housing Needs Assessment.

182




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

I
PAONIA

*O+*R*"A*D-0

PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND

HOUSING ACTION PLAN

183

Tuesday, August 1,
2023

5:00-6:30 pm

Town Hall

Please review all
attached materials
prior to the meeting.
There is a lot to cover
in 90 minutes, so
targeted feedback is
requested.

Housing Task Force Meeting 3

Introductions

In attendance: Linda McCone, Dave Knutson, Lyn Howe, Molly Wheelock,
Bob Reedy, Paige Smith, Mary Difranco, Patti Kaech, Andrew Coburn, Shay
Coburn.

Consultant Update: What Has Been Completed and What is Ongoing or
Coming Up

Completed: project kick off, formation of the Task Force, Task Force
meeting 1, review of past plans and studies, Task Force meeting 2,
Existing Public Housing Resources document, employer questionnaire,
interviews, and community-wide Open House.

In progress: finishing up targeted outreach, draft Housing Needs
Assessment to be reviewed by Task Force today and then by Town Board
8/22, and draft Housing Action Plan.

Coming up: final Task Force meeting 4 and optional add-ons as approved
by the Board 7/25 (first draft of updated code language for up to 4 of
DOLA’s qualifying strategies and a strategy for development of an
affordable housing project).

For Discussion

e Open House debrief, see Summary

This document summarizes the Open House process and input
received. It will be an appendix to the final report and put on the
Town’s project webpage in the meantime. Observations were
discussed from the event and from the input received. It was noted
that many of the participants spent considerable time providing
thoughtful input and that the results of the voting and comments are
very important to consider for the Action Plan.




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

Review Draft Housing Needs Assessment

The draft Housing Needs Assessment was shared with the Task Force a week before this meeting for
their review. The purpose of this review was to identify inaccuracies, etc., prior to going to the Town
Board. This is part one of the project, with part two being the Action Plan. This Needs Assessment
includes more detail on the data and issues presented at the Open House.

Discussion included a comment that some information was surprising to learn about (i.e., commute
costs), the impact that the eventual coal mine closure will have on the community in the future,
tourism, the need for higher paying jobs, the water tap moratorium as it relates to mine owned taps
and housing strategies, pets in relation to ADUs and rentals, a desire to start action planning and
ideas or preferences for strategies, and the importance of actually taking action based on this
assessment and the forthcoming action plan.

Task Force comments will be accepted on the draft until the end of the day on Friday.

Schedule Task Force meeting #4 — Scheduled for Thursday, August 31 5-6:30pm at Town Hall.

What the Task Force Should Do After This Meeting

Plan to attend the next Task Force meeting as planned during the meeting (8/31). Schedule time
ahead of the meeting to review the Draft Housing Action Plan. The draft Action Plan will be in more
of a draft form than the Needs Assessment from this meeting.

Plan to attend the Board meeting on 8/22, where the Town Board will review the draft Housing
Needs Assessment.

184




APPENDICES 185
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

I
PAONIA

*O+*R*"A*D-0

PAONIA HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND
HOUSING ACTION PLAN

Housing Task Force Meeting 4 — Summary

Thursday, August 31, In attendance: Gia Fanelli, Dave Knutson, Linda McCone, Molly Wheelock,

2023 Lyn Howe, Paige Smith, Mary Difranco, Bob Reedy, Andrew Coburn, Shay

5:00 — 6:30 pm Coburn.

Town Hall Consultant Update: What Has Been Completed and What is Ongoing or
Coming Up

Completed: Finished targeted outreach - had detailed discussions with 36
community members, sent the draft Housing Needs Assessment to the
Board of Trustees which was then discussed at the Aug. 22 regular board
meeting, prepared a working draft of the Action Plan for this meeting.

Coming up: consultant team to address comments received on the draft
Housing Needs Assessment, send the draft Housing Action Plan to the
Board prior to the work session scheduled for Sept. 11, review the land use
code, prepare first drafts of 4 targeted code edits, prepare the example
development strategy, and compile the final document (expected end of
October 2023).

For Discussion

The consultant team noted that the purpose of this task force meeting
was to review the working draft of the Action Plan and ensure that it is
aligned with the issues and favored actions identified by the community
during this project prior to it going to the upcoming Board of Trustees

Thank you to the Task work session.

Force for your time Review Draft Housing Action Plan
and input through
this project. We
couldn’t have done it
without you!

e Goal for this plan:
0 Create a clear and concise plan for the community to address
housing issues.




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

0 Reach community consensus on the plan which is "we all agree that we can live with the
actions in the plan and won't actively undermine it." The distinction is you don't have to
wholeheartedly agree, but "understand and can live with it."

0 Seek action plan acceptance among the broader community so the plan can be
implemented.

The above goals for the plan were understood by the Task Force.

What to review:

0 Areany actions missing?

0 Do the action items align with what you have heard and what you think the community
supports?

0 Does the priority level align with what you have heard and what you think the community
desires?

Each attendee provided their feedback on the above questions. Generally, no actions were found

to be missing from the plan. Attendees delved into the details on some of the actions to ask

questions, share ideas, and clarify details.

Input on site for sample development strategy.

The consultant team is under contract to create a sample strategy for the potential development
of an affordable housing project. The task force discussed publicly owned properties in town and
which property might serve as a representative example for the consultant team to use. The old
sewer lagoon/twin lakes site was identified as the favored site. It was noted that regardless of
the site the consultant team focuses on, the information to be provided is intended to be
educational and illustrative in nature. It does not commit the town to anything and does not
mean that a development will come to fruition on any particular site.

Input on first draft code revisions.

The consultant team is going to prepare a first draft of code revisions as a separate deliverable
from the combined Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan. The first draft of code
revisions will address 4 topic areas: A) The creation of an expedited development review process.
B) Authorizing accessory dwelling units where appropriate. C) Ensuring small square footage
residential unit sizes are allowed. D) Regulating residential units rented on a short-term basis (30
or fewer days). The intent is for the Town to use this first draft to begin the process of updating
the land use code through their typical process.

The consultant team recommended that the regulations be simple and enforceable, and that the
most important things are regulated first and adjusted later once more is learned about what is
working and what is not. The consultants shared their suggestions for regulating short-term
rentals and allowing for ADUs based on all public feedback received over the course of this
project as well as their experience. Attendees provided input and discussed the pros and cons of
different approaches.

186




APPENDICES
APPENDIX E — TASK FORCE MEETING SUMMARIES

What the Task Force Should Do After This Meeting

Consider attending the Town Board work session for their review of the draft Housing Action Plan.
We will email you with more information.

The work session is planned for September 11, 5-7 pm. The aim is to be able to accept public
comment at this work session.

Plan to attend the Board meeting where the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Action Plan
will be considered for adoption. We will email the Task Force with more information.

187




TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Town of Paonia Board of Trustees will hold a Public
Hearing at 6:30 pm. on Tuesday, November 14, 2023, at the Paonia Town Hall, 214 Grand Avenue,
Paonia, CO 81428.

The purpose of the Public Hearing will be to consider acceptance of the Housing Needs
Assessment final draft from Urban Rural Continuum.

Any person may appear at the Public Hearing and be heard regarding the matters under
consideration. For further information concerning the Public Hearing, please contact the Town Clerk
at 970-527-4101 during regular business hours.

Dated the 12 day of October, 2023.
TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO

Samira M Vetter
Town Clerk

188




189

INTERIM AD DRAFT

This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run in Delta County Independent on the dates indicated
below. If changes are needed, please contact us prior to deadline at (970) 249-3444.

Notice ID: pQh2qpSGCuRT7ulXzcL4 | Proof Updated: Oct. 12, 2023 at 02:22pm MDT
Notice Name: Housing Needs Assessment BoT PH

FILER

Samira Vetter
samirav@townofpaonia.com

(970) 527-4101

Columns Wide: 1

10/25/2023: Custom
11/01/2023: Custom
11/08/2023: Custom

This is not an invoice. Below is an estimated price, and it is
subject to change. You will receive an invoice with the final

price upon invoice creation by the publisher.

FILING FOR

Delta County Independent

Ad Class: Legals

17.03

14.87

14.15

Subtotal $46.05
Tax $0.00
Total $46.05

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE is hereby given that the
Town of Paonia Board of Trustees
will hold a Public Hearing at 6:30
Em. on Tuesday, Novernber 14,
023, at the Paonia Town Hall, 214
Grand Avenue, Paonia, CO 81428,

The Eurpose of the Public Hearin
will be to consider acceptance o
the Housing Needs Assessment final
draft from Urban Rural Continuum.

Any person may appear at the Public
Hearing and be heard regarding the
matters under consideration. For
further information concerning the
Public Hearing, please contact the
Town Clerk at 970-527-4101 during
regular business hours.

Dated the 12 day of October, 2023 .

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO

Samira M Vetter

Town Clerk

Published Wednesday, October 25,
Movember 1, 8, 2023

Housing Needs Assessment BoT PH - Page 1 of 1




PAO N IA TOWN OF PAONIA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
C+«+O-+L+0O=R

MLARAMLAE STAFF REPORT

190

AGENDA ITEM:

Agenda Item #3 - Consideration of Approval of Signing an MOU between
the BLM and the ToP as a Participating Agency for the UFO RMPA/EIS

SUBMITTED BY:

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

DATE:

11.12.23

BACKGROUND:

The U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management,
Uncompahgre Field Office is developing a resource management
plan amendment and completing an environmental impact
statement for lands enumerated in lawsuit settlements for the UFO
decisions area. Since these lands directly affect the Paonia
watershed and are otherwise of direct concern to the Town of
Paonia, the BLM UFO has offered a cooperating agency relationship
to the Town of Paonia. This MOU establishes that relationship and
provides a framework for cooperation between the two entities. As a
cooperating agency the ToP is expected to have expertise in plans
& resources within the Town and North Fork Valley; will provide
comments, information and technical expertise to the BLM UFO,
including but not limited to: identifying alternatives, public
involvement strategies, and identifying data needs.

BUDGET:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: | move to approve the
Memorandum of Understanding with the Bureau of Land
Management.

ATTACHMENT:

Attachment 1: 20231101 UFO RMPA MOU_TownofPaonia_draft




MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
AMONG THE
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR, BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT,
UNCOMPAHGRE FIELD OFFICE
AND THE TOWN OF PAONIA
FOR
DEVELOPMENT OF THE UNCOMPAHGRE FIELD OFFICE
RESOURCE MANAGEMNT PLAN AMENDMENT
AND
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT

l. Introduction

The U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management, Southwest District,
Uncompahgre Field Office (herein referred to as "BLM"), and the Town of Paonia
“Cooperator”, collectively referred to herein as "the Parties,” enter this Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) establishing a cooperating agency relationship, providing a
framework for cooperation and coordination, and documenting agreed upon procedures,
roles and responsibilities associated with the preparation of the proposed Uncompahgre
Field Office Resource Management Plan Amendment and Environmental Impact Statement
(RMPAVJEIS).

The BLM is the lead agency with responsibility for the completion of the RMP/EIS and the
Record of Decision. The BLM acknowledges that the Cooperator has special expertise
applicable to the RMPAV/EIS effort, as defined at 40 CFR §1508.1. The Town of Paonia is a
Cooperating Agency due to special expertise with Town plans and resources within
communities in and around the North Fork of the Gunnison River. The Town of Paonia is
within the planning area boundary for this planning effort.

The cooperating agency relationship established through this MOU shall be governed by all
applicable statutes, regulations, and policies, including the Council on Environmental
Quality's National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) regulations (in particular, 40 CFR
1501.7-8), the BLM's planning regulations (in particular, 43 CFR 1601.0-5, 1610.3-1, and
1610.4), and the Department of the Interior Manual (516 DM 2.5). This MOU will facilitate
an environmental review process that will satisfy the purpose of the RMP\EIS.

I Background

The Uncompahgre Field Office Approved RMP and Record of Decision (ARMP/ROD) was
signed in April 2020. The BLM received and settled three lawsuits on the ARMP/ROD.
Under one settlement agreement, in 2022 the BLM initiated two statewide planning efforts:

1

191




one for big game and one for Gunnison sage-grouse. Those planning efforts are currently
underway. In the remaining two settlement agreements, the BLM agreed to complete an
RMP Amendment process with a specific scope for the UFO decision area.

The BLM is initiating this planning effort to conform to two settlement agreements on
678,500 acres of BLM surface and 954,686 acres of subsurface mineral estate (see
Attachment A). The BLM must consider management of oil and gas resources, areas of
critical environmental concern, and lands with wilderness characteristics within the specific
parameters described in the settlement agreements. For consistency, the BLM may propose
additional alternatives to the settlement agreement which align with the alternatives
identified as BLM preferred in the other two ongoing statewide plan amendments for big
game and Gunnison sage-grouse.

In the environmental analysis the BLM will carefully consider the impacts from proposed
oil and gas leasing decisions consistent with the settlement agreements. The BLM will also
consider the impacts of proposed ACEC designations and management of lands with
wilderness characteristics as previously analyzed under Alternative B in the 2019
Uncompahgre Field Office Proposed RMP and Final Environmental Impact Statement. The
cumulative impacts from other BLM multiple uses is something that BLM will analyze in
the RMPAJEIS.

I1l.  Purpose

A. To recognize the BLM as the lead agency with responsibility for the completion
of the RMPAV/EIS and Record of Decision (ROD). The BLM is required to prepare an
EIS per the settlement agreements which necessitate this RMPA/EIS.

B. To recognize the Town of Paonia as a Cooperating Agency in the RMPA/EIS process.

C. To provide a framework for cooperation and coordination between the BLM and the
Cooperator that will ensure successful completion of the RMPA/EIS in a timely,
efficient, and thorough manner that satisfies compliance requirements, including
completion of a document in less than two years (Notice of Intent to Decision) and that
is less than 300 pages in length, excluding appendices.

D. To formalize the commitment among the Parties regarding their respective
responsibilities and expertise in the RMPA/EIS process.

IV.  Authority

A. The authorities of the BLM to enter into and engage in the activities described within
this MOU include, but are not limited to:

1. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq.).

192




2. Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (43 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.).

B. Regulations implementing the above authorities:
1. Council on Environmental Quality regulations (40 CFR 81501.7 and 1501.8.)
2. U.S. Department of the Interior’s NEPA regulations, 43 CFR parts 46, et seq.,

3.

and its regulation regarding Cooperating Agencies, 43 CFR 8 46.225(d)
Bureau of Land Management planning regulations (43 CFR 1601 et seq)

This MOU does not grant the signatories any additional rights or powers, nor does it excuse
the signatories from fulfilling any other statutory obligation they might have. Each Party is
responsible for its own actions/omissions. This MOU does not incur upon the signatories a
shared statutory responsibility to fulfill the obligations of the other signatories.

V. Roles and Responsibilities

A. Responsibilities of all Parties:

1.

The Parties agree to participate in this planning process in good faith and make
all reasonable efforts to resolve disagreements.

Each party agrees the RMPA/EIS will be prepared in 300 pages or fewer
(excluding appendices) and will be completed within two years of Notice of Intent
publication.

The Parties agree to comply with the planning schedule provided as Attachment
B, which includes dates for RMPA/EIS milestones and timeframes for
Cooperating Agency reviews and submissions.

Each Party agrees to fund its own expenses associated with the project. This
MOU does not authorize funding from or to either party.

The Parties agree to carefully consider whether proposed meetings or other
activities would waive the Unfunded Mandates Reform Act exception to the
Federal Advisory Committee Act (2 U.S.C. 1534(b) and 5 U.S.C App.).

B. Lead Agency (BLM) Responsibilities:

1.

As lead agency, the BLM retains final responsibility for the content of all
planning and NEPA documents, which include the draft EIS, final EIS and the
Record of Decision. The BLM’s responsibilities include determining the
purpose of and need for the EIS, selecting alternatives for analysis, identifying
effects of the proposed alternatives, and selecting the preferred alternative. In
meeting these responsibilities, the BLM will follow all applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements.

To the fullest extent consistent with its responsibilities as lead agency, the BLM
will consider the comments, recommendations, data, and/or analyses provided
by the Cooperator in the RMPAJ/EIS process, giving particular consideration to

3

193




those topics on which the Cooperators are acknowledged to possess jurisdiction
by law or special expertise.

To the fullest extent practicable, after consideration of the effect such releases
may have on the BLM’s ability to withhold this information from other parties,
the BLM will provide the Cooperators with copies of documents underlying the
EIS relevant to the Cooperators’ responsibilities, including technical reports,
data, analyses, comments received, and working drafts related to environmental
reviews.

Ensure that Parties receive the internal draft EIS and internal final EIS and have
an opportunity to review and comment on the documents. Additionally,
responsibilities include coordinating with cooperating agencies during
opportunities outlined in Attachment C.

Provide the schedule to Cooperating Agencies as soon as it is available. The
schedule may or may not be modified if a party cannot meet a milestone.
Overview of milestones are outlined in Attachment B.

Maintain records management and the decision file to provide for the official
Project Record, protecting all proprietary information and data collected to the
extent allowed by the Freedom of Information Act, the Privacy Act, and/or other
Federal law.

BLM will have the lead role for National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) and
Section 106 compliance as well as NEPA compliance. This lead agency
designation includes fulfilling the collective responsibilities of the Cooperating
Federal Agencies under Section 106 of the NHPA for this undertaking on
federally owned or managed lands, including tribal consultation per 36 CFR
800.2(a)(2).

BLM will assume the lead role for special status species Section 7 consultation
of Endangered Species Act.

C. Cooperating Agency Responsibilities:

1.

3.

The Town of Paonia participating as a Cooperating Agency in this RMPA/EIS
process are recognized to have special expertise in the following areas: Town
plans and resources within communities in and around the North Fork of the
Gunnison River.

The Cooperators will provide information, comments, and technical expertise to
the BLM regarding those elements of the RMPAJ/EIS, and the data and analyses

supporting them, in which it has special expertise or for which the BLM requests
their assistance.

Within the areas of their special expertise, the Cooperator may participate in
activities that include, but are not limited to providing guidance on public
involvement strategies; identifying data needs; assisting with alternative
development to resolve issues; identifying effects of alternatives; and providing

4

194




VI.

written comments on administrative drafts of the RMPA/EIS and supporting
documents (participation identified in Attachment C).

4. Provide comments within the timeframe identified in the schedule. Limit
comments to those matters for which the Cooperating Agency has special
expertise with respect to any environmental issue (40 CFR § 1501.8(7).

5. If a milestone is anticipated to be missed, elevate any issue that may affect the
ability to meet the schedule to BLM for timely resolution. Additional time may
not be granted.

Other Provisions

. Authorities not altered. Nothing in this MOU alters, limits, or supersedes the

authorities and responsibilities of any Party on any matter within their respective
jurisdictions. Nothing in this MOU shall require any of the Parties to perform
beyond its respective authority.

. Immunity and Defenses Retained. Each Party retains all immunities and defenses

provided by law with respect to any action based on or occurring as a result of this
MOU.

. Conflict of interest. The Parties agree not to utilize any individual or organization

for purposes of plan development, environmental analysis, or Cooperator
representation, including officials, employees, or third-party contractors, having a
financial interest in the outcome of the RMPAJ/EIS. Questions regarding potential
conflicts of interest should be referred to BLM HQ or Field Ethics Counselors for
resolution.

. Documenting disagreement or inconsistency. Where the BLM and one or more

Cooperators disagree on substantive elements of the RMP/EIS (such as designation
of the alternatives to be analyzed or analysis of effects), and these disagreements
cannot be resolved, the BLM will include a summary of the Cooperators’ views in
the Draft RMPA/Draft EIS and the Proposed RMP/Final EIS. The BLM will also
describe substantial inconsistencies between its preferred alternative and the
objectives of state, local, or tribal land use plans and policies.

. Management of information. Any records or documents generated because of the

project become part of the official BLM record maintained in accordance with BLM
record management policies. The Cooperator acknowledges that all supporting
materials and draft documents may become part of the project record and may be
subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) and other
federal statutes. The BLM acknowledges that the Cooperator’s handling of these
materials may be impacted by §24-72-201 to 24-72-206, C.R.S. The Parties agree
that the BLM at its discretion may withhold from the cooperators those documents
that would otherwise be available for public release under 24-72-201 to 24-72-206,
C.RS.

195




VII.

Conflict Resolution. The Parties agree to make reasonable efforts to resolve
procedural or substantive conflicts. In the event any disagreement between the
parties cannot be resolved between the parties in a reasonable time, either party may
refer the disagreement to the Colorado BLM State Director to timely resolve the
issue. The decision of the Colorado BLM State Director will be the final decision for
purposes of resolving the issue. The Parties acknowledge that BLM retains final
responsibility for the analysis and decisions identified in the EIS and ROD.

The BLM will retain a contractor to assist with portions of the RMPA/EIS
preparation. Cooperators may communicate with the contractor only through
BLM’s representative. The Cooperator acknowledges that the BLM retains the
exclusive responsibility to authorize modifications to the contract, and that the
Cooperator is not authorized to provide technical or policy direction regarding the
performance of the contract.

. Contingent Upon Appropriations and Authorization. Where activities provided for

in the agreement extend beyond the current fiscal year, continued expenditures by
the United States are contingent upon Congress making the necessary appropriations
required for the continued performance of the United States’ obligations under the
agreement.

Contingent on Apportionment or Allotment of Funds. The expenditure or advance
of any money or the performance of any obligation of the United States under this
MOU shall be contingent upon appropriation or allotment of funds. No liability
shall accrue to the United States for failure to perform any obligation under this
MOU in the event that funds are not appropriated or allotted.

Agency Representatives

Each Party will designate a representative as described in Attachment D to ensure
coordination between the Cooperator and the BLM during the planning process. Each Party
may change its representative by providing written notice to the other Parties.

VIII.

A

B.

Administration of the MOU

Approval: This MOU becomes effective upon signature by the authorized officials
of the BLM and the Cooperator.

Amendment: This MOU may be amended through written agreement of all
signatories.

. Termination: If not terminated earlier, this MOU will end when the Proposed

RMPA/Final EIS is accepted by the BLM State Director. Any Party may end its
participation in this MOU by providing written notice to the other Party.

. Withdrawal: Any party may withdraw from the MOU with 30 days written notice.

196




IX.  Signatures

The Parties hereto have executed this MOU on the dates shown below.

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT (LEAD AGENCY)

By: Date:

Suzanne Copping, Uncompahgre Field Manager
BLM Colorado Uncompahgre Field Office

TOWN OF PAONIA (COOPERATING AGENCY)

By: Date:

Name
Title

197




198

Attachment A
Planning Area Map

Uncompahgre Field Office Resource Management Plan Amendment

Planning Area
BLM Colorado | Southwest District | Uncompahgre Field Office

. PITKIN COUNTY

~n

MESA COUNTY

s
et
/ D ar
y ':;/‘}_ 3d ? oty
7 4 7 e 2
S rstw

')
T +

h L
f Cedaredgé( | 77

Colorado

5 (e 9 s
‘ L2 e
g ¢ DELTACOU /W.,.f’/ s Péfn.a
T e

. Hotchkiss H=

COUNTY

f g
x,j/"’\ V5 G
=4 40 (OURAY COUNTY.
7 9
1 SAN MIGUEL
i COUNTY HINSDALE ¥
COUNTY AT

[ . s sy s 4 o

! 1
SAN JUAN. L |
COUNTY "y ! ’t

! DOLORES N
. faaal COUNTY N7 \
0 10 20 3 4 i
I Miles ¢ ! !
T =) | [
H o }
Planning Area Boundaries Surface Management Agency Map Produced by BLM Uncompahgre Field Office Staff |
File: 2022_RMPA_PrepPlanMaps i e
Uncompahgre RMP Planning Bounda Bureau of Land Management Date: 92172023
- pang 9 i 9 Map Scale; 1:920,000
N Outside of Decision Area National Park Service Coordinate System: NAD 1983 UTM Zone 13N
CO Reference System: U.S. PLSS NMM / 6th M
s 5 ’ Other Federal
Local Administrative Units )
l:l Private DISCLAIMER: No warranty is made by the Bureau of
@  City/ County Seat s Land Management as to the accuracy, reliability, or
tate completeness of these data for individual use or
& Other City or Town aggregate use with other data. Decisions in this
State, County. City Areas document only apply to BLM lands. Routes depicted
- C Bound ¢ on non-BLM lands are displayed for information i
L—-—J ounty, Boundary US Farest Service; purposes only and do not grant access to non-BLM i U
lands.




199

Attachment B
Preliminary Schedule Overview

Target Timeline Key Milestones
Fall 2023 Invite cooperating agencies; begin data sharing for the
RMPAV/EIS and plan cooperating agency meetings
Notice of Intent and 45-day scoping period, preliminary
January 2024 alternative development, identify issues, cooperating agency
meeting
May 2024 2-week review of internal draft RMPAJ/EIS
November 2024 Notice of Availability for the RMPA/DEIS and 90-day public
comment period
March 2025 2-week review of internal proposed RMPA/EIS
August 2025 Notice of Availability for the proposed RMPA/FEIS

Public Protest Period (30 days) and Governor’s Consistency
August — September 2025  Review (60 days). If protests, BLM’s protest resolution is an
internal review process

January 2026 Record of Decision/Approved Plan



Attachment C

Cooperating Agency Participation Opportunities

200

RMPAVJEIS stage

Potential activities of Cooperating Agencies within acknowledged areas
of expertise

Data share: conduct
scoping and identify
issues

Identify data needs; provide data and technical analyses within the
cooperator’s expertise. Identify coordination or consultation requirements;
identify significant issues; identify relevant local and regional organizations
and interest groups; provide non-financial sponsorship of public forums with
the BLM; collaborate in assessing scoping comments following the NOI.

Develop planning criteria

Provide any advice on proposed planning criteria. Identify pertinent elements
of relevant plans and legal requirements that shape other policies and
responsibilities.

Baseline assessment

Provide input on the Affected Environment, such as information on local
monitoring and baseline data related to expertise.

Formulate alternatives

May cooperate with the BLM Uncompahgre Field Office in developing
alternatives. Suggest goals and objectives for potential alternatives. Suggest
land allocations or management actions to resolve issues. Suggest
management actions to resolve issues.

Estimate effects of
alternatives

Review, and where appropriate, may develop effects analysis within area of
expertise; suggest models and methods of impact analysis; suggest mitigation
measures for adverse effects.

Select the preferred
alternative; issue Draft
RMP/EIS

Cooperate with the BLM Uncompahgre Field Office in evaluating
alternatives and in developing criteria for selecting the preferred alternative;
provide input on internal-Draft RMPA/EIS. Cooperating agencies may
provide written, public comments on Draft RMPA/Draft EIS if desired.
Decision to select a preferred alternative and to issue a Draft is reserved to
the BLM.

Respond to comments

As appropriate, review comments within expertise and provide assistance
in preparing the BLM’s responses.

Issue Proposed RMP/FEIS

Action reserved to the BLM.

Initiate Governor’s
Consistency Review

Once initiated by the BLM, State Cooperating Agencies may contribute
to the Governor’s Consistency Review.

Sign Record of Decision

Action reserved to the BLM.

Resolve protests; modify
Proposed RMP/FEIS if
needed; sign ROD

Action reserved to the BLM. A cooperator that has provided information
relevant to a protest may be asked for clarification. Cooperating
relationship does not negate an agency’s or government’s rights to
comment or protest the decision.




201

Attachment D
Agency Representatives

Bureau of Land Management

Primary Representative:
Angela LoSasso
Project Manager
BLM Colorado — Uncompahgre Field Office
alosasso@blm.gov
970-210-5579

Backup Representative:
Suzanne Copping
Uncompahgre Field Manager
BLM Colorado — Uncompahgre Field Office
scopping@blm.gov
719-225-0289

Town of Paonia

Primary Representative:
Name
Title
Email
Phone number

Backup Representative:
Name
Title
Email
Phone number


mailto:alosasso@blm.gov
mailto:scopping@blm.gov

«ReA+D-

PAONIA

TOWN OF PAONIA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
Sl STAFF REPORT

202

AGENDA ITEM:

Agenda Item #4 - Consideration of Approval to apply for DOLA
Planning Capacity Grant

SUBMITTED BY:

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

DATE:

11.12.2023

BACKGROUND:

The Local Planning Capacity Grant Program is meant to increase the
capacity of local government planning departments responsible for
processing land use, permitting, and zoning applications for housing
projects. The program is intended to support local governments'
capacity to address affordable housing, especially by expediting
development review, permitting, and zoning of affordable housing. A
LOl is due by 12/4/2023 and invitations for full applications will be sent
to local governments in 12/2023. Currently, with the recent change in
staff, leadership within staff is focused on getting caught up on major
requirements that have lapsed (e.g. FY-2022 Audit, FY-2023 Audit,
grant compliance, etc.), and planning and zoning decisions have taken
an inordinate amount of time to complete. This grant may allow the
Town to address its planning, zoning and community development
needs by supporting the wages of new staff, hiring consultants to assist
in planning & zoning, and implementing new software.

BUDGET:

Should the Town be approved to apply for the grant, the Town's match requirement is
20% of the ask. The maximum grant amount is $200,000 and would require a local
match of $40,000. The FY-2024 budget for the Building Department is: $63,600.

RECOMMENDATION:

Town Staff are bringing this grant forward for Trustee consideration,
and would like to be able to apply with the understanding that it
would allow for new software and hiring another employee.
RECOMMENDED MOTION: | move to approve an application for
the DOLA Planning Capacity Grant.

ATTACHMENT:

N/A




PAO N l A ';8XVIIK\IDO(§‘FP'II}I;)UNSI$EES MEETING

C+O+*L*O+R*A*D-"

Sl STAFF REPORT

203

AGENDA ITEM:

Agenda Item #5: Approval of Change Order for K&D Construction
for the Dorris Avenue Sewer Replacement Project

SUBMITTED BY:

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

DATE:

11.12.2023

BACKGROUND:

Town Hall was made aware of the amount for two change orders
upon reviewing the final invoice from K&D Construction for the
Dorris Sewer Main project on 11.2.2023. CO #1 includes
additional work for an unanticipated elevation change for a
manhole tie-in due to discovering existing service lines that failed
to have positive flow from being installed lower than the sewer
main, CO#1 $24,606.72. CO #2 due to unacceptable excavated
fill, an additional 229.12 tons of backfill was required at a cost of
$45/ton; (2) additional service lines were discovered that weren't
included in the original scope of work and needed to be tied into
the sewer main; and asphalt increases were required to finish the
project for an additional 160sy, CO#2 $50,045.55.

BUDGET:

Original Contract: $299,339.50; CO#1 $24,606.72; CO#2
$50,045.55; total new contract price: $373,991.77. DOLA EIAF
Reimbursable: $137,756.00.

RECOMMENDATION:

The work has already been completed and Staff recommend approval.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: | move to approve Change Order #1 in the
amount of $24,606.72 and Change Order #2 in the amount of
$50,045.55 for a total new not-to-exceed contract price of $373,991.77.

ATTACHMENT:

Attachment 1: Town of Paonia Change Order 1
Attachment 2: Town of Paonia Change Order 2




204

SECTION 00 06 80
CHANGE ORDER
Change Order No.:
| §/51/22
Project: Dorris Ave Sewer Replacement Date of Issuance:

Owner: Town of Paonia

Address: PO Box 460
Paonia, CO_ 81428

4t e
Contractor: w & S % éﬂ' u Engineer: Respec Company, LLC

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents:

Description: / )L—-ﬂ’] // M éﬁ W d_; X/Z?/&g
iy 2/25 £/2y 4725, £175 7

A /774«/%12 e o

urpose of Change rer:ﬁ 5///_{&&,,95 @‘
szmi‘c;/gf 0241/555:5%/&%—5 QL _Szryséde SN ES d’/f_ng////ﬂ_
hurde Shpteen bF Lthe /Z//ﬂc{m%w/%

Attachments (List Documents Supporting Change):

~

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: $ AY606. 7

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME: G (days or date)
Original Contract Price: $ A ??3‘?i . S0

Original Contract Time: -4/.5 (days or date)

Previous Change Orders:
No. ¥ toNo.

Net Change from Previous Change Orders:
3

—4 (days or date)

333.05 00 06 80-1 Town of Paonia
Dorris Ave Sewer Replacement



Contract Price Prior to this Change Order:
3
Contract TimesPrior to this Change Order:

% {days or date)

Net Incrgase of this Change Order:
3 7? r Aééé 4 ’2
Net Increase 2f the Change Order:

(days)

Net Decrease of this Change Order:
3
Net Decrease of this Change Order:

(days)

Net Ch:?ge of this Change Order:

$_ Y Lod, 7R
Net Change of this Change Order:
2—

(days)

Contgact Price with all approved Change Orders:
s 2 DY X%

Contract Ti gith all approved Change Orders:
Ey (days or date)

RECOMMENDED: APPROVED:
by: by:
Engineer Owner
END OF SECTION
33305 00 06 80-2

Contractor

Town of Paonia
Dorris Ave Sewer Replacement

205




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC.

507 Fruitvale Court, Uni%rand Junction, CO 81504
Date

Bill To: //J(//V ZF 2o/

CustomerfName;: Y

/1123

9 206

Project:/ QU AL AHE

— s /
NEultr Ftp/ALEMEANT

-

~ TIME AND MATERIALS INVOICE

Laﬁ' Hour Rate Ext. Price
W/ mnto /0 | 80005 0
Yrrotos X Z -0.7. | S0 6750 750.00
(ntorétS X 32— -7 SO 15250 57500
Toua Y7750
Eguipment A Hours Rate Ext. Price
JAM st D Jreeald | J7 | 8500 722 50
Total /’&? 5&
Materials Quanfity Cost Ext. Price
N Unwpt, hatepets| [ 274157297

IX b frentoie Lwplere J 5B |l
VA7 s o
[l £ pere :

"Total P e 42909
yd _ ; . S
T 57 )
N~ e
Description of Work Performed:

42(% s+ “TIE Lhprged % o
% dumkes £F EviSHe? 2T
47 Jipé. Overe e G g 1€ s
vy ot L J0l23 Ly

KA -

Approved by:




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC.

507 Fruitvale Court, Unit 4&,/Grand Junction, CO 81504 970712 207
Bill To: /éM/V 4/ W/d-' Date f ;j
Customer ffame: P 7
Preiect ‘ / MZM
e TIME AND MATERIALSINVOICE. |
Lab Hoyt Rate - Ext. Price
t12500 7 4500 gpw
ciaton 7 Ko o0
Total Gﬂw
Equipment _ Hopurs Rate Ext. Price
UL, AR,
Tb0 7 aedlot Tz |~ o 5k
Total .:’)47 JZ
Materials Quantity Cost Ext. Price
Total
Total Price / # ?ﬂ7 M )
Des on of Work Perform
(—JMJ/&&Z /08 Lz!% ﬂfg%iﬂ/&
7 ngc/é/éyﬂfz
| Sopitr /A2

Approved by:




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC.

507 Fruitvale Court, Unit A,,Grand Junction, CO 81504 97(-712 208
Bill To: /4 2 Date f WS
Customer e A / )7 i
projese LMY Y. - Notdsr Fee plad8ah 77—

| TIME AND MATERIALS INVOICE | |
Labor_ Hour Rate Ext. Price

[

L pergior X Z e K00 (S b
Orbprsrs X2 A\ Zoo o
- /.00
Equipment - — it Price
A0 jrpchlre (W0 \pipw
lphdire s 4t 25 5720
V7.2 NI 645w G20
Total ] /;Zf/m
Materials Quantity — Ext Price

Total

e ~

Total Price ( j p? 2 7 % /

y 5&2?255,“5 021;&//51// Grafe /é/W%NS
Lo VENI Y Lontre/ < ///6’—// zfﬂa’d s
o £ _Sewir/ime s Hsiat! 2 _Sajékwf 7.4
Vi Y2/ pu 47 Arom Ve sl fele
S WDl Elevnian Uiz M2 2L,

Approved by:




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC. 200

507 Fruitvale Court, Uni%rand Junction, CO 81504 970-71
Bill To: _/2LLN DF fRO7/EE - Date 4, /35/25‘7
Customer Hame: f

i S —.
Project, LM/ JPvt _ Y EC Htp/Bl i ENT
= “TIME AND MATERIALS INVOICE ]

Labor Hour Rate Ext. Prlce
QY ptr1n Peridlo F ARy ANY:
[pustoe X2 0T 2O 4750 [B5pL0
rhprens X2 OF A0 15250 psp.00
&
"Total S I, L0
Equipment Hours Rate Ext. Price
Q%M(/ Fy X Z A0 \2z5 ypys o
ﬁ%_ﬁ_/_" , [0 2SS )
fp0 T7zd ot Lyphet! | 0 §uSD Eﬁf/@
Total " T 455450
Materials Quantity Cost Ext. Price
Total —a\\
{z
Total Price / 7 j S79 S0 )
N <
Description of Work Performed: T—  —
evnsaor LhsigE SO WEro &7 Shwes /.
(Brgin pottolus Setvde /pdafransS &F
08 G /10,777, Y S, Sl _Bounss A
L e bemine Elevptyod g/ Llarpl &<
Werd &7 _Stwer fone.

Approved by:




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC.

507 Fruitvale Court, Unit As)Grand Junction, CO 81504 970 /
Bill To: /M/‘/ Ve W»’Q/ Date ﬁ‘z

Customer{Name:

Project; /Y WILS. i Sewzr /&w/%é/fzzx«/f-
[ TIME AND MATERIALS INVOICE |

fan)

Labor Hour Rate Ext. Price
epinntipilet 4 cﬂo 0064940
IS0 /S X - A/ 0 950
Laborers gz 2/ i{ﬁ? /35L&
o i 20
Equipment Hours Rate Ext. Price
MY X Z Al |Gz Z5p97.25

Lol ar , ot Méz%
Jho T7othloe bl | Jole |40 15725
TER i Mg T | f0)e |8$00, K11 5D

Total . / é ;
Materials Quantity Cost Ext, Price
Total _\
/ i N
Total Price ( 5f 7/ / 3 /

ﬁ;ﬁ?kpﬁ;}m; _Servial /Q(M«Qﬂd
S VErIFY 5/45 v 27O ///ff" Ll rige. N

Wew 87 Seewgr /roe

Approved by:




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC.
507 Fruitvale Court, Uni%rand Junction, CO 81504 970-71] 211

Bill T 2N LF [ 707 /d, pate _J/2I/EZ
Customer Iame:

Pro;ecJ % £ MJ / Qﬂ/mzﬂ/ 7L

= TIVE AND MATERTALS TNVOICE |

Labtr Hour Rate Ext. Price
Vptr i feormtld et b\ fp.00\ %00
(et X Z- Ao |0 \gp.a
Lhborir Y Z 2013500 \7p0.00
Total g?ﬂfﬂw
Equipment Hoprs Rate Ext. Price
UL L Y 15228 Lpsoo
A Tisthtioe 6 \f4So [oroo
£ ¢ D Sz
‘ lieny Jrial | J0 | £500 esp
e - 7500
Materials Quantity Cost Ext. Price
Total _\
4
Total Price / 4//\53 ¢ % /
Degscription of Work Performed: ey
%mé gh!! //5 \éé/uw e f/@ Licie d
Aempun S'-8 LsEw0E
{Seryel gfvprrar! aer 9rid
! put- 0.6 Wetw pihote Fo [owict 7

Approved by:




212

SECTION 00 06 80

CHANGE ORDER
Change Order No.: 9?
Project: Dorris Ave Sewer Replacement Date of Issuance: ? A 0/25

Owner: Town of Paonia

Address: PO Box 460
Paonia, CO 81428

Contractor: M %75 /// W'/ % Engineer: Respec Company, L1LC

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Docurments: é (s /L/
oeipin_fyport Botbtll - )T 77E4et & C?éj//ﬁ/cm
T Tidsrs IS Lovnss e Serrde LINE K7L g
Lol Moy 4 Pt ovrer Lonpneetons -~ llee /
Lot Sl om Hb —Rosurcnaing NErERSt L Aoh s e

s o b oo A8 Lonwrs éoérf;@:-
Straee Loppedtoers o uﬁjﬁ%&?ﬁ%gz 7, b
F2548.00 7070 pad R20Sy

' S
Asphort Lsed = 376,570 yp

Y psb. 75

Attachments (List Documents Supporting Change): = /. 7 oé—s = ‘y
P o¥s =5
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: $
CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME: & {days or date)
Y
Original Contract Price: $ 0'77 7 357,
Original Contract Time: ;{/ < (days or date)
Previous Change Orders:
No._ / toNo.
Net Change fiom Previous Change Orders:
$AY Zﬁé . 7L
& (days or date)
333.05 00 06 80-1 Town of Paonia

Duorris Ave Sewer Replacement



Contract Price Prior to this Change Order:
§ FA3PYL. LKL
Cenftract Ti grior to this Change Order:

é?e (days or date)

Net Increase of this Change Order:

$_SOOYS. 55

Net Increase of the Change Order:
v .

(days)

Net Decrease of this Change Order:

$
Net Decrease of this Change Order:

(days)

?et '%r%e ;giffgnge Order:

Net Change of this Change Order:
-

(days)

Contract Price with all approved Change Orders:

s S78399/. 27

Contract Time g; all approved Change Orders:
2’ (days or date)

RECOMMENDED: APPROVED:
by: by:
Engineer Owner
END OF SECTION
333.05 0006 80-2

u Contractor

Town of Paonia
Dorris Ave Sewer Replacement

213




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC. zl:
507 Fruitvale Court, Unit %Brand Junction, CO 81504 970-71 214

Bl T PN LF S Do d pue SN EYI2
Customer lame: p — . f s
Project /YU SHE _NELIEr el P/ FEENENT
= TIME AND MATERIALS INVOICE =
Lalfor Hour Rate Ext. Price

( pzptor /1. |45 | fsasp
(el gt 4 |0 b
L abossr | /Y)z. |Z5D Br.50
Total N2 00
Equipment Hours Rate Ext. Price
M LY /3 5228 4225
7)Y/ S 65428 a5
T sy ~ped Tl | A | KO0 S
Total : /:77525
Materials, - Quantity Cost Ext. Price
st MaterssdS / e [Foo
_ \// 5% 52.50
/\- £
Total I 57'05 R,
Total Price < j‘u@ /f . 75 )
Degcription of Work Performed: “3___"” g ;M
Nistasl /15 LowrsS Are Servie
Adotsonns 42! LY HEATET

Approved by:




K & D CONSTRUCTION, INC.

507 Fruitvale Court, Uliiﬁ Grand Junction, CO 81504 970-7121 215

Bill To: 1; ﬂm// ﬂ £ M s/ Date

Customer Name:

Project:

== ~ TIME AND MATERIALS INVOICE

Labor Hour Rate Ext. Price

'i‘otal
Equipment Hours Rate Ext. Price
Total
Matepials - Quantity Cost Ext. Price
/1 A 48 A9/ Y5 BT
/208 /x/n 2.0 (4D
( /J// 7
]
Total
Total Price

cljlptlon of Work Performed: g W// % @/
nt Ly ;‘

Approved by: -




216

Kevin Hopkins

From: Kevin Hopkins

Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 12:21 PM
To: James Starnes

Cc: Cory Heiniger PW

Subject: Unsuitable Soils

James & Cory,

K&D has ran into unsuitable native backfill material on the project site. We propose to bring in 1 1/2 road base. The
price to export the native material off site and bring in 180 Tons of 1 % or 100 CY hauled and installed is $45.00/Ton.

We have already sent the first truck to the pit for a load of the material.

Any questions, please let me know right away. Thanks

Respectfully,

K & D Construction, Inc

D’Anwv Hopking
Secrelowy/Treasver
(970) 433-7533 Office
(970) 986-1779 Cells




PAO N IA TOWN OF PAONIA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
C+«+O-+L+0O=R

MLARAMLAE STAFF REPORT

217

AGENDA ITEM:

Agenda ltem #6 - Consideration of Termination of the Contract
with Shums Coda Associates

SUBMITTED BY:

Stefen Wynn, Town Administrator

DATE:

11.12.2023

BACKGROUND:

Shums Coda Associates currently administers the Town's Planning
Review and Building Permit processes and inspections. The Town
has been working on processes to improve its services to
Residents, businesses, visitors, and prospective Residents and
businesses. As a part of that process, the Town has contemplated
an IGA with the City of Delta for Building Inspector and Planning
Reviewer services. The current consulting firm has a contract with
the Town that requires a (10) Days' notice for termination. Due to
significant changes in direction and service delivery improvements
planned for FY-2024, Staff recommends giving Shums Coda
Associates notice of contract termination, effective January 12,
2023. This will allow Staff time to collect building permit records from
the consultant, allow the consultant to give input for increases in
fees and fines, and enter into an agreement with the City of Delta.

BUDGET:

$62,600 budgeted for FY-2024

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is bringing this item forward for Trustee consideration, and approval is
recommended.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: | move to send notice to Shums Coda
Associates of the Town's intent to terminate the agreement between them
with the conditions as discussed by the Town Administrator.

ATTACHMENT:

Attachment 1: Contract with Shums Coda Associates




INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO,
AND
COLORADO CODE CONSULTING, LLC

THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered
into this 1% day of January 2021, by and between the Town of Paonia, a Colorado statutory town and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “Town”), and Shums Coda Associates, Inc dba
Colorado Code Consulting, ("Contractor").

RECITALS

A. The Town, as a Colorado statutory town located in Delta County, Colorado, has the power
and authority, in accordance with the enumerated powers granted to it under the Colorado
Constitution and those enumerated powers granted to statutory towns pursuant to C.R.S. 31-
15-101 et. seq., to enact and enforce municipal ordinances as codified in the Town’s
Municipal Code.

B. The Town is in need of an interim Building Official to conduct building inspection, review
certain building permits and demolition permits, provide guidance and feedback on applicant
design criteria, and to enforce certain provisions of the Town’s Building Code and Zoning
Code.

C. Contractor is in the business of providing professional level building inspection, plan review
and code consultation for a number of municipalities in the State of Colorado.

D. Contractor is duly licensed to serve as the Town’s interim Building Official.

E. The Town and Contractor wish to enter into this Agreement, wherein Contractor shall act as
an independent contractor, serving as interim Building Official when needed.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties
agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
TERM OF CONTRACT

1. 1.01. This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2021 (the “Effective
Date”) and shall continue in effect until March 31, 2021. Thereafter, this Agreement shall
automatically renew for successive one-month periods unless terminated by either party upon ten
(10) days’ written notice prior to the expiration of the then-current term.

Independent Contractor Interim Agreement - Page 1 of 4 “&
\

218




ARTICLE 2
SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR

2.01. Contractor shall perform shall serve as the Town’s Building Official.

2.03. Contractor shall determine the method, details and means of performing the above
described services; however, the specific work schedule for Contractor shall be agreed upon from
time to time between the Town and Contractor.

2.04. Contractor enters into this Agreement, and will remain throughout the term of this
Agreement, as an independent contractor. Contractor agrees that Contractor is not and will not
become an employee, partner, agent or principal of the Town while this Agreement is in effect.
Contractor is not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to the Town’s employees, including
disability or unemployment insurance, worker's compensation, medical insurance, sick leave,
retirement benefits or any other employment benefits. Contractor is responsible for providing, at
Contractor's own expense, disability, unemployment, worker's compensation and other insurance,
training, permits and licenses for Contractor.

2.05. Contractor is responsible for paying when due all income taxes, including estimated
taxes incurred as a result of the compensation paid by the Town to Contractor for services under this
Agreement. Contractor agrees to indemnify the Town against any claims, costs, losses, fees,
penalties, interest or damages suffered by Contractor resulting from Contractor's failure to comply
with this provision.

ARTICLE 3
FEES AND OTHER COMPENSATION

3.01. Contractor agrees to provide the following services for the Town as outlined on the
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, hereinafter the “Services™). Contractor shall
provide the Services at the following rates:

Building Inspection - $50.00 per inspection.
Plan Review - $120.00 an hour. It is anticipated that the actual costs incurred by
Contractor in undertaking plan review shall be 65% of a Building Permit Fee for the plans being
reviewed, and the Town shall be free to pass on such fees to the Building Permit applicant.
General Consulting Services - $120.00 an hour
In addition to the foregoing, Contractor shall charge the Town and the Town shall be
responsible for reimbursing Contractor’s travel time at a flat fee of $90.00 per visit to the Town by

Contractor.

ARTICLE 4
TERMINATION

Independent Contractor Interim Agreement - Page 2 of 4

219




4.0l Termination by Mutual Agreement or Unilaterally: This Agreement may be
terminated at any time by mutual agreement in writing or by either party’s giving not less than ten
(10) days’ notice to the other party, specifying the date of termination.

4.02  Automatic Termination: This Agreement shall automatically terminate, without
notice, upon the occurrence of any one of the following events: bankruptcy of Contractor, legal
disqualification to serve as the Town’s Building Official by Contractor, conviction of a crime
involving moral turpitude by Contractor or any of Contractor’s employees, including fraud, theft,
embezzlement or substance abuse, or breach by either party of the terms, conditions, obligations or
duties under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 5
GENERAL PROVISIONS

5.01. Entire Agreement: This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either
oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the engagement of Contractor by the
Town and contains all of the covenants and agreements between the parties with respect to that
hiring in any manner whatsoever. Each patty to this Agreement acknowledges that no representation,
inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any party or anyone
acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement
or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party, except that any
other written agreement dated concurrent with or after this Agreement shall be valid as between the
signing parties thereto.

5.02. Modifications: Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective only if it is in
writing and signed by the party to be charged.

5.03. Waiver: The failure of either party to insist on strict compliance with any of the
terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall not be deemed a waiver of
that term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any
one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other
times.

5.04. Partial Invalidity: If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless
continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

5.05. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Colorado.

5.06. Attorney's Fees: If any legal action is commenced or necessary to enforce or interpret
the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs,
and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled.

This Agreqment is executed in the Town of Paonia, County of Delta, State of Colorado, on
this (0 day of ‘Ui n,)q ,2021.

Independent Contractor Interim Agreement - Page 3 of 4

220




TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, a Colorado
statutory town:

By: £

J. Wn Administrator

CONTRACTOR: Shums Coda Associates dba
Colorado Code Consulting, LLC, a Colorado
limited liability company

‘ )

SNNE" , Authorized Signer
chier— ofes-ATIVNG  oFFIeel.

Independent Contractor Interim Agreement - Page 4 of 4

221




November 9th Annual Meeting of One Delta County - Trustee Stelter

After the meet and greet, and dinner, there were presentations by the sponsors of ODC,
Alpine Bank and DMEA/Elevate Hellman Motors.

Each of them praised the community and the work that the teamwork between them and
ODC that has made progress, bringing new industry to Delta County.

Greg Pope, the President of ODC gave a presentation that invoked the progress that has
been made and future plans. There has been a purchase of property on the south side of
HWY 92 between the current industrial park and 1800 rd. (Red Shed Produce) that will be
subdivided into 5 lots for industrial development.

There was also discussion of the current strategies in bringing in new business to the area,
and the grants available to the county to build or relocate new businesses and the tax
advantages that are available, such as an 8-year abeyance of property and income taxes
both for the company and their employees.

The was a presentation from Marco Pezzica, from Colorado Stone Quarry, located on HWY
50 south f Delta, that bought the Yule Marble Quarry in Marble and is currently making slab
marble, tiles and hardened marble suitable for architectural work throughout the world.
They have invested millions in their state-of-the-art plant in Delta and are employing many
locals. They are currently looking for more employees to expand their production and are
looking to start a second shift to up marble production. There was also a video tour of the
Marble quarry and a discussion of the production.

Dr, Nathan Perry from CMU in Grand Junction, gave a presentation on the statistical
information of the local real estate market, and the difficulty in predicting the market these
days. This market has broken nearly every expected standard, with high interest rates and
short inventories, as well as longer time on the market has not, so far brought a drop in
prices and it's not following traditional patterns.

Greg Pope gave a presentation on the Delta Workforce Project, an attempt to build
affordable housing for purchase.

There was much discussion of tactics to make this possible, the problems inherent and the
6th St. property, owned by the City of Delta, that is being planned as the location for the
project.

We saw the Norwood, CO project of affordable housing, the suggested model for the DWP,
utilizing manufactured homes, built in Buena Vista and constructed as prebuilt units, onsite
with cranes, making construction times much shorter onsite.

There was a long discussion of the gap between the cost of construction of affordable
housing, and the cost of building this housing and the price necessary to afford them,

222




A couple making $83K/ year are the low-end target market and the high end, being a
couple making $120K per year are the target market for these units. I would add that the
average income per person in Delta County is approx. $800- $900/ week, (64% of the
population makes less) making these units unaffordable for a great majority of locals.

There was some discussion of creating a local manufactured housing industry and the
history here, that pretty much ended in the banking crisis of 2008.

All in all, it was an informative meeting, and we got a unique view of the plans and
progress of ODC in the Delta area.

223




	Top
	1.	October 24, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	20231024 RegMeetMin

	2.	Liquor License Renewal - 2023-118 Blue Sage Center for the Arts Inc
	CA Blue Sage Renewal
	20231026 Blue Sage LL Renewal
	20231026 ToP Renewal Fee

	Presentation about Safe Routes to Parks Grant - Hannah Stevens with Western Slope Conservation Center
	RtboA Graves - CDOT Safe Routes to Parks

	Public Hearing to Consider acceptance of the Housing Needs Assessment
	Agenda Staff Report #2 HNA Acceptance_f
	2023.11.14 Paonia HNA-HAP_ForBoard
	20231012 BoT Public Hearing Notice
	Proof BoT PH

	Consideration of Approval of Signing a Memorandum of Understanding between the Bureau of Land Management and the Town of Paonia as a Participating Agency for the UFO RMPA/EIS
	Agenda Staff Report #3 MOU BLM_f
	20231101 UFO RMPA MOU_TownofPaonia_draft

	Consideration of approval to apply for DOLA Planning Capacity Grant
	Agenda Staff Report #4 Apply DOLA PCG_f

	Consideration of Approval for Change Orders from K&D Construction
	Agenda Staff Report #5 K&D CO's 1&2_f
	Town of Paonia Change Order 1
	Town of Paonia Change Order 2

	Consideration of Termination of the Contract with Shumscoda Associates
	Agenda Staff Report #6 Shums Coda Associates_f
	Building Official Agreement_Shums Coda Associates _2021

	Trustee Stelter - Report from One Delta County Annual Meeting
	One Delta County Report - Stelter

	Bottom

